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General Notice No. 994 of 2019

LEGAL SUPPLEMENT

The undermentioned Government Notices are 
published in the Legal Supplement to this number 
of the Government Gazette:

The Consumer Protection (Control of Imports) 
(Amendment No. 2) Regulations 2019.

(Government Notice No. 91 of 2019)

The Road Traffic (Crop Season) Regulations 
2019.

(Government Notice No. 92 of 2019)

Prime Minister’s Office,
Port Louis.

This 18th May, 2019.

First Publication

General Notice No. 995 of 2019

THE LAND ACQUISITION ACT

(Notice given under Section 8)

Notice is hereby given that I have decided to 
acquire compulsorily on behalf of the State of 
Mauritius a portion of land situate at L’Union as 
per title deed but in fact situate at Cap Malheureux, 
in the district of Riviere du Rempart for the public 
purpose of construction of a bypass at Cap 
Malheureux.

DESCRIPTION

Portion No. 30a (Serial No. 30a) 
[PIN:1317160425] of an extent of six thousand 
four hundred and eighty four and fifty one 
hundredths square metres (6484.51m2) is excised 
from a portion of land of an extent of four arpents 
and twenty five square perches (4A 25P) or one 
hectare and seven thousand nine hundred and 
thirty nine square metres (IHa 7939m2) belonging 
to SOCIETE ROUILLARD FRERES ET 
CIE holder of a business registration number 
F07000030 as evidenced by title deed transcribed 

in Volume TV 381/335 & TV 422/577 and is 
bounded as follows

Towards the East partly by Mont Choisy-Cap 
Malheureux Road (Bl3) on a line measuring four 
metres and four centimetres (4.04m) and partly by 
the surplus of land on one hundred and ninety three 
metres and eighty two centimetres (193.82m).

Towards the South West by Portion No. 31 
(Serial No. 31) of the plan mentioned below on fifty 
one metres and twenty two centimetres (51.22m).

Towards the West by the surplus of land on one 
hundred and twenty one metres and seventy seven 
centimetres (121.77m).

Towards the North West by Portion No. 29 
(Serial No. 29) of the plan mentioned below on fifty 
nine metres and sixty five centimetres (59.65m).

The whole as morefully shown on a plan 
registered at the Cadastral Unit as ACQ/75/000530, 
drawn up by Rajendra Kumar Baboolall, Land 
Surveyor on the 20/03/2019.

The plan may be inspected by the public at the 
Archives Office of the Ministry of Housing and 
Lands, Ebene Tower, Ebene, during office hours.

Every interested person is required to give to 
the Authorised Officer within fourteen days of the 
second publication of this Notice in the Gazette a 
written declaration of the nature of his interest in 
the land and the amount and details of his claim for 
compensation.

Date: 06/05/2019.

The Honourable Purmanund JHUGROO 
Minister of Housing and Lands

Ebene Tower
Ebene

First Publication

General Notice No. 996 of 2019

THE LAND ACQUISITION ACT 
(Notice given under Section 8)

Notice is hereby given that I have decided to 
acquire compulsorily on behalf of the State of 
Mauritius a portion of land situate at Baie Du 
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Tombeau, in the district of Port Louis for the public 
purpose of Reconstruction of Bruniquel Bridge 
at Baie du Tombeau.

DESCRIPTION

Portion No. 1 (Serial No. 1) [PIN:1115640285] 
of an extent of six hundred and forty nine and 
fifteen hundredths square metres (649.15 m2) 
is excised from a portion of land of an extent of 
nine thousand six hundred and seventy eight 
square metres (9678 m2) belonging to GLOBE 
FREIGHT LTD bearing business registration 
number C07018929 as evidenced by title deed 
transcribed in Volume TV 3649/47 and is bounded 
as follows: -

Towards the North East by the surplus of land on 
three lines measuring thirty five metres and sixteen 
centimetres (35.16m), twenty two metres and eight 
centimetres (22.08m) and twenty three metres and 
fifty five centimetres (23.55m) respectively.

Towards the South East by a common road 
three metres and twenty five centimetres (3.25m) 
wide on sixty eight centimetres (0.68m).

Towards the South West by Baie du Tombeau 
Road (B29) on a developed length measuring 
ninety two metres and thirty eight centimetres 
(92.38m).

The whole as morefully shown on a plan 
registered at the Cadastral Unit as ACQ/75/000518, 
drawn up by Mr. Rajendra Kumar BABOOLALL, 
Land Surveyor on the 25/01/2019.

The plan may be inspected by the public at the 
Archives Office of the Ministry of Housing and 
Lands, Ebene Tower, Ebene, during office hours.

Every interested person is required to give to 
the Authorised Officer within fourteen days of the 
second publication of this Notice in the Gazette a 
written declaration of the nature of his interest in 
the land and the amount and details of his claim for 
compensation.

Date: 09/05/2019

The Honourable Purmanund JHUGROO 
Minister of Housing and Lands 

Ebene Tower
Ebene

First Publication

General Notice No. 997 of 2019

THE LAND ACQUISITION ACT
(Notice given under Section 8)

Notice is hereby given that I have decided to 
acquire compulsorily on behalf of the State of 
Mauritius a portion of land situate at Baie Du 
Tombeau, in the district of Port Louis for the public 
purpose of Reconstruction of Bruniquel Bridge at 
Baie du Tombeau.

DESCRIPTION

Portion No. 2 (Serial No. 2) [PIN: 1115630127] 
of an extent of fifty nine and twenty one hundredths 
square metres (59.21 m2) is excised from a portion 
of land of an extent of four hundred and eleven 
square metres (411 m2) belonging jointly to 
(i) Mrs Ww Lutchmeenia RAMGOLAM 
(Widow of late Mr Sooklall RAMGOLAM) 
bom on 16/04/1929 holder of a national identity 
card bearing number Bl60429310203F for the 
usufruct and (ii) Heirs Veerjianan RAMGOLAM 
(Late Mr Veerjianan RAMGOLAM born on 
20/11/1949 holder of a national identity card 
bearing number R201149013113B, and deceased 
on 01/04/2006 as per death certificate bearing 
number 209/2006) for the bare ownership as 
evidenced by title deed transcribed in Volume TV 
2144/11 and is bounded as follows:-

Towards the North East by Portion No.3 (Serial 
No. 3) of the plan mentioned below on eight metres 
and eighty centimetres (8.80m).

Towards the South East by reserves of Baie 
du Tombeau Road (B29) on a developed length 
measuring fifteen metres and fifty centimetres 
(15.50m).

Towards the South West by land belonging 
to Mrs Dewyanee RAMGOLAM on thirty eight 
centimetres (0.38m).

Towards the North West by the surplus of land 
on two lines measuring five metres and thirty eight 
centimetres (5.38m) and twelve metres and twenty 
five centimetres (12.25m) respectively.

The whole as morefully shown on a plan 
registered at the Cadastral Unit as ACQ/75/000518, 
drawn up by Mr. Rajendra Kumar BABOOLALL, 
Land Surveyor on the 25/01/2019.
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The plan may be inspected by the public at the 
Archives Office of the Ministry of Housing and 
Lands, Ebene Tower, Ebene, during office hours.

Every interested person is required to give to 
the Authorised Officer within fourteen days of the 
second publication of this Notice in the Gazette a 
written declaration of the nature of his interest in 
the land and the amount and details of his claim for 
compensation.

Date: 09/05/2019

The Honourable Purmanund JHUGROO 
Minister of Housing and Lands

Ebene Tower
Ebene

First Publication

General Notice No. 998 of 2019

THE LAND ACQUISITION ACT
(Notice given under Section 8)

Notice is hereby given that I have decided to 
acquire compulsorily on behalf of the State of 
Mauritius a portion of land situate at Baie Du 
Tombeau, in the district of Port Louis for the public 
purpose of Reconstruction of Bruniquel Bridge at 
Baie du Tombeau.

DESCRIPTION

Portion No. 3 (SerialNo. 3) [PIN: 1115630128] 
of an extent of one hundred and seventy and thirty 
two hundredths square metres (170.32 m2) is 
excised from a portion of land of an extent of three 
thousand one hundred and sixty two and thirty one 
hundredths square metres (3162.31 m2) belonging 
to LIM HOW BROTHERS & CO. LTD bearing 
business registration number C07010750 as 
evidenced by title deed transcribed in Volume TV 
3355/17 and is bounded as follows: -

Towards the North East by Portion No. 4 (Serial 
No.4) of the plan mentioned below on fifteen 
metres and forty two centimetres (15.42m).

Towards the South East by an exit road (not open 
on site) six metres and fifty centimetres (6.50m) 
wide on a developed length measuring twenty six 
metres and thirty five centimetres (26.35m).

Towards the South West partly by road reserves 
on one metre (1.00m) and partly by Portion No.2 
(Serial No.2) of the plan mentioned below on eight 
metres and eighty centimetres (8.80m).

Towards the West by the surplus of land on 
twenty six metres and forty centimetres (26.40m).

The whole as morefully shown on a plan 
registered at the Cadastral Unit as ACQ/75/000518, 
drawn up by Mr. Rajendra Kumar BABOOLALL, 
Land Surveyor on the 25/01/2019.

The plan may be inspected by the public at the 
Archives Office of the Ministry of Housing and 
Lands, Ebene Tower, Ebene, during office hours.

Every interested person is required to give to 
the Authorised Officer within fourteen days of the 
second publication of this Notice in the Gazette a 
written declaration of the nature of his interest in 
the land and the amount and details of his claim for 
compensation.

Date: 09/05/2019

The Honourable Purmanund JHUGROO 
Minister of Housing and Lands

Ebene Tower
Ebene

First Publication

General Notice No. 999 of 2019

THE LAND ACQUISITION ACT 
(Notice given under Section 8)

Notice is hereby given that I have decided to 
acquire compulsorily on behalf of the State of 
Mauritius a portion of land situate at Baie Du 
Tombeau, in the district of Port Louis for the public 
purpose of Reconstruction of Bruniquel Bridge at 
Baie du Tombeau.

DESCRIPTION

Portion No. 4 (SerialNo. 4) [PIN: 1115630129] 
of an extent of one thousand and fourteen and forty 
five hundredths square metres (1014.45 m2) is 
excised from a portion of land of an extent of three 
thousand nine hundred and eight and sixty three 
hundredths square metres (3908.63 m2) belonging 
to LIM HOW BROTHERS & CO. LTD bearing 
business registration number C07010750 as 
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evidenced by title deed transcribed in Volume TV 
3355/16 and is bounded as follows: -

Towards the North East partly by Portion 
No.5 (Serial No.5) of the plan mentioned below 
and partly by land belonging to Heirs Boodhoo 
RAMGOLAM on a total length of fifty five metres 
and seven centimetres (55.07m).

Towards the South East by an exit road (not 
open on site) of six metres and fifty centimetres 
(6.50m) wide on thirty two metres and sixteen 
centimetres (32.16m).

Towards the South West by Portion No.3 (Serial 
No.3) of the plan mentioned below on fifteen 
metres and forty two centimetres (15.42m).

Towards the West by the surplus of land on 
three lines measuring twenty metres and twenty 
seven centimetres (20.27m), eighteen metres and 
twenty three centimetres (18.23m) and sixteen 
metres (16.00m) respectively.

The whole as morefully shown on a plan 
registered at the Cadastral Unit as ACQ/75/000518, 
drawn up by Mr. Rajendra Kumar BABOOLALL, 
Land Surveyor on the 25/01/2019.

The plan may be inspected by the public at the 
Archives Office of the Ministry of Housing and 
Lands, Ebene Tower, Ebene, during office hours.

Every interested person is required to give to 
the Authorised Officer within fourteen days of the 
second publication of this Notice in the Gazette a 
written declaration of the nature of his interest in 
the land and the amount and details of his claim for 
compensation.

Date: 09/05/2019

The Honourable Purmanund JHUGROO
Minister of Housing and Lands

Ebene Tower
Ebene

First Publication

General Notice No. 1000 of 2019

THE LAND ACQUISITION ACT
(Notice given under Section 8)

Notice is hereby given that I have decided to 
acquire compulsorily on behalf of the State of 

Mauritius a portion of land situate at Baie Du 
Tombeau, in the district of Port Louis for the public 
purpose of Reconstruction of Bruniquel Bridge at 
Baie Du Tombeau.

DESCRIPTION

Portion No. 5 (Serial No. 5) [PIN. l 115630130] 
of an extent of three thousand one hundred and 
thirty three and fifty hundredths square metres 
(3133.50 m2) is excised from a portion of land 
being all that remains of ninety five and three 
quarter square perches (0A 95 3/4P) or four 
thousand and forty one and forty eight hundredths 
square metres (4041.48 m2) belonging to Heirs 
Boodhoo RAMGOLAM (Late Mr Boodhoo 
RAMGOLAM deceased on 22/01/1996 as per 
death certificate bearing number 29/1996) as 
evidenced by title deed transcribed in Volume TV 
1375/187 and is bounded as follows:-

Towards the North East by the reserves of 
Rivulet Terre Rouge on fifty three metres and 
seventy centimetres (53.70m).

Towards the East by the surplus of land on three 
lines measuring sixteen metres and ninety two 
centimetres (16.92m), forty two metres and seventy 
six centimetres (42.76m) and eighteen metres and 
ninety centimetres (18.90m) respectively.

Towards the South West partly by Portion 
No.4 (Serial No.4) of the plan mentioned below 
and partly by land belonging to LIM HOW 
BROTHERS & CO. LTD on one hundred and 
fourteen metres (114.00m).

Towards the North by the reserves of Rivulet 
Terre Rouge on a developed length measuring 
forty two metres and seventy eight centimetres 
(42.78m).

The whole as morefully shown on a plan 
registered at the Cadastral Unit as ACQ/75/000518, 
drawn up by Mr. Rajendra Kumar BABOOLALL, 
Land Surveyor on the 25/01/2019.

The plan may be inspected by the public at the 
Archives Office of the Ministry of Housing and 
Lands, Ebene Tower, Ebene, during office hours.

Every interested person is required to give to 
the Authorised Officer within fourteen days of the 
second publication of this Notice in the Gazette a 
written declaration of the nature of his interest in 
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the land and the amount and details of his claim for 
compensation.

Date: 09/05/2019

The Honourable Purmanund JHUGROO 
Minister of Housing and Lands 

Ebene Tower 
Ebene

First Publication

General Notice No. 1001 of 2019

THE LAND ACQUISITION ACT

(Notice given under Section 8)

Notice is hereby given that I have decided to 
acquire compulsorily on behalf of the State of 
Mauritius a portion of land situate at Baie Du 
Tombeau, in the district of Port Louis for the public 
purpose of Reconstruction of Bruniquel Bridge 
at Baie Du Tombeau.

DESCRIPTION

Portion No. 7 (Serial No. 7) [PIN: 1217460058] 
of an extent of two hundred and forty four and 
fifty hundredths square metres (244.50 m2) is 
excised from a portion of land of an extent of five 
hundred square toises (500 T) or one thousand 
eight hundred and ninety nine and forty hundredths 
square metres (1899.40 m2) belonging to NEW 
GOODWILL COMPANY LTD bearing business 
registration number C06019286 as evidenced by 
title deed transcribed in Volume TV 1400/237 and 
is bounded as follows:-

Towards the North East by the surplus of land 
on three lines measuring twenty two metres and 
sixteen centimetres (22.16m), twelve metres and 
forty five centimetres (12.45m) and eighteen 
metres (18.00m) respectively.

Towards the South West by Baie du Tombeau 
Road (B29) on two lines measuring eight metres 
and fifteen centimetres (8.15m) and forty two 
metres and forty eight centimetres (42.48m) 
respectively.

Towards the North West by an access road on 
one metre and eighty eight centimetres (1,88m).

The whole as morefully shown on a plan 
registered at the Cadastral Unit as ACQ/75/000518, 

drawn up by Mr. Rajendra Kumar BABOOLALL, 
Land Surveyor on the 25/01/2019.

The plan may be inspected by the public at the 
Archives Office of the Ministry of Housing and 
Lands, Ebene Tower, Ebene, during office hours.

Every interested person is required to give to 
the Authorised Officer within fourteen days of the 
second publication of this Notice in the Gazette a 
written declaration of the nature of his interest in 
the land and the amount and details of his claim for 
compensation.

Date: 09/05/2019

The Honourable Purmanund JHUGROO 
Minister of Housing and Lands 

Ebene Tower
Ebene

First Publication

General Notice No. 1002 of 2019

THE LAND ACQUISITION ACT

(Notice given under Section 8)

Notice is hereby given that I have decided to 
acquire compulsorily on behalf of the State of 
Mauritius a portion of land situate at Baie Du 
Tombeau, in the district of Port Louis for the public 
purpose of Reconstruction of Bruniquel Bridge at 
Baie Du Tombeau.

DESCRIPTION

Portion No. 8 (Serial No. 8) [PIN: 1217160009] 
of an extent of one thousand five hundred and 
fifty five and thirty eight hundredths square 
metres (1555.38 m2) is excised from a portion 
of land of an extent of three arpents and seven 
square perches (3A 07P) or twelve thousand nine 
hundred and fifty eight and seven hundredths 
square metres (12958.07 m2) belonging to Heirs 
Mrs Dowlut MATABADUL (born Sossilah 
GOORCHARANE) bom on 06/08/1907 holder 
of a birth certificate 647/1907 as evidenced by title 
deed transcribed in Volume TV 1483/13 and is 
bounded as follows:-

Towards the North East by Baie du Tombeau 
Road (B29) on a developed length measuring one 
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hundred and sixty five metres and twenty seven 
centimetres (165.27m).

Towards the East by land being acquired from 
Mr Marie Eddy Eric SANDAPA & Mrs Marie 
Paulette Jacqueline LAJEUNE/Heirs Sossilah 
MATABADUL on twenty six metres and sixty 
one centimetres (26.61m).

Towards the South West by the surplus of 
land on two lines measuring thirty six metres 
and seventy four centimetres (36.74m) and one 
hundred and fourteen metres and four centimetres 
(114.04m) respectively.

Towards the North West by the surplus of land 
on seven metres and fifty centimetres (7.50m).

The whole as morefully shown on a plan 
registered at the Cadastral Unit as ACQ/75/000518, 
drawn up by Mr. Rajendra Kumar BABOOLALL, 
Land Surveyor on the 25/01/2019.

The plan may be inspected by the public at the 
Archives Office of the Ministry of Housing and 
Lands, Ebene Tower, Ebene, during office hours.

Every interested person is required to give to 
the Authorised Officer within fourteen days of the 
second publication of this Notice in the Gazette a 
written declaration of the nature of his interest in 
the land and the amount and details of his claim for 
compensation.

Date: 09/05/2019

The Honourable Purmanund JHUGROO
Minister of Housing and Lands

Ebene Tower
Ebene

First Publication

General Notice No. 1003 of 2019

THE LAND ACQUISITION ACT
(Notice given under Section 8)

Notice is hereby given that I have decided to 
acquire compulsorily on behalf of the State of 
Mauritius a portion of land situate at Nouvelle 
Decouverte in the district of Moka for the public 
purpose of upgrading of bend at Nouvelle 
Decouverte.

DESCRIPTION

Portion No. 15 (Serial No. 15) [PIN 
1812040240] of an extent of one hundred and 
seventy seven and three hundredths square 
metres (177.03 m2) is excised from a portion of 
land of an extent of six hundred and thirty three 
square metres (633 m2) belonging jointly to
(i) IMMOBILUS CONSULTANTS LTD bearing 
business registration number C07027626 and
(ii) GOLDEN SEASON PROPERTIES LTD 
bearing business registration number C13118817 
as evidenced by title deed transcribed in Volume 
TV201812/001413 and is bounded as follows: -

Towards the East by a common road three 
metres and five centimetres (3.05m) wide on eight 
metres and sixteen centimetres (8.16m).

Towards the South by Ripailles-Nicoliere Road 
(B49) on a developed length measuring twenty two 
metres and fourteen centimetres (22.14m).

Towards the South West by an access road 
five metres (5.00m) wide on a developed length 
measuring eight metres and seven centimetres 
(8.07m).

Towards the North by the surplus of land on 
two lines measuring one metre and nineteen 
centimetres (1.19m) and twenty three metres and 
seventy seven centimetres (23.77m) respectively.

The whole as morefully shown on a plan 
registered at the Cadastral Unit as ACQ/75/000528 
drawn up by Mr Rajendra Kumar BABOOLALL, 
Land Surveyor on 06/03/2019.

The plan may be inspected by the Public at the 
Archives Office of the Ministry of Housing and 
Lands, Ebene Tower, Ebene, during office hours.

Every interested person is required to give to 
the Authorised Officer within fourteen days of the 
second publication of this Notice in the Gazette a 
written declaration of the nature of his interest in 
the land and the amount and details of his claim for 
compensation.

Date: 26/04/2019

The Honourable Purmanund JHUGROO
Minister of Housing and Lands

Ebene Tower 
Ebene
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General Notice No. 1004 of 2019

THE LAND ACQUISITION ACT

(Notice Given Under Section 8) 

CORRIGENDUM

In the Notice given under Section 8 of the Land 
Acquisition Act dated 17/11/2014 containing 
the description of a portion of land being 
Portion No. 29 (Serial No. 65) [PIN 1420070204] 
situate at St Julien D’Hotman in the district of 
Flacq for the public purpose of constructing a 
bypass in connection with the improvement of 
Moka - Camp de Masque - Flacq Road (A7), 
published in the Government Gazette in its issues 
of 22/11/2014 and 06/12/2014 under General 
Notices No. 2937 of 2014 and No. 3159 of 2014 
and transcribed in Volume TV201501/001087 
on 30/01/2015, the following words “situate at 
St Julien D’Hotman” are hereby deleted and 
replaced by the following words “situate at St 
Julien” and following words and figures “belonging 
to Mr Leeladhar DOORGAKANT as evidenced 
by title deed transcribed in Volume TV 5166/38” 
are hereby deleted and replaced by the following 
words and figures “belonging to (i) Mrs Leelawtee 
DOORGAKANT (bom MAREACHEALEE) bom 
on 07/12/1927 holder of a national identity card 
bearing number M071227160029E for the usufruct 
and to (ii) Mr Leeladhar DOORGAKANT bom 
on 11/08/1955 holder of a national identity card 
bearing number DI 108551806121 for the bare 
ownership as evidenced by title deeds transcribed 
in Volumes TV 1668/144 and TV 5166/38” 
wherever they appear.

Date: 07/05/2019

The Honourable Purmanund JHUGROO 
Minister of Housing and Lands 

Ebene Tower
Ebene

General Notice No. 1005 of 2019

THE LAND ACQUISITION ACT 

(Notice given under Section 8) 
CORRIGENDUM

In the Notice given under Section 8 of the Land 
Acquisition Act dated the 26/02/2018 containing 

the description of a portion of land being Portion 
No. 28 (Serial No. 28) situate at L’Union as per 
title deed but in fact situate at Cap Malheureux, 
in the district of Riviere du Rempart for the 
public purpose of construction of a bypass at Cap 
Malheureux, published in the Government Gazette 
in its issues of 10/03/2018 and 24/03/2018 under 
General Notice No. 359 of 2018 and No. 469 of 
2018 and transcribed on 21/05/2018 in Volume 
T.V201805/001398, the description of the said 
portion is hereby deleted and replaced by the 
following description:

“Portion No. 28 (Serial No. 28) 
[PIN:1317160420] of an extent of four thousand 
seven hundred and fifty three and eighty hundredths 
square metres (4753.80m2) is excised from a 
portion of land of an extent of nine arpents and 
eighty square perches (9A 80P) or four hectares and 
one thousand three hundred and sixty five square 
metres (4Ha 1365m2) belonging to SOCIETE 
ROUILLARD FRERES ET CIE bearing 
business registration number F07000030 as 
evidenced by title deed transcribed in Volume 
TV 318/484 & TV 422/577 and is bounded as 
follows: -

Towards the North West by the surplus of 
land on two lines measuring sixty seven metres 
and fifty seven centimetres (67.57m) and ninety 
seven metres and twenty six centimetres (97.26m) 
respectively.

Towards the South East partly by Portion No. 29 
(Serial No. 29) of the plan mentioned below on 
seventy three metres and sixty six centimetres 
(73.66m) and partly by the surplus of land on 
two lines measuring thirty five metres and ninety 
centimetres (35.90m) and thirty six metres and 
sixty six centimetres (36.66m) respectively.

Towards the South West by State Land 
[TV201805/000963] on forty nine metres and 
eighty eight centimetres (49.88m).”

The whole as morefully shown on a plan 
registered at the Cadastral Unit as ACQ/75/000530, 
drawn up by Rajendra Kumar Baboolall, Land 
Surveyor on the 20/03/2019.

The plan may be inspected by the public at the 
Archives Office of the Ministry of Housing and 
Lands, Ebene Tower, Ebene, during office hours.
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Every interested person is required to give to 
the Authorised Officer within fourteen days of the 
second publication of this Notice in the Gazette a 
written declaration of the nature of his interest in 
the land and the amount and details of his claim for 
compensation.

Date: 06/05/2019.

The Honourable Purmanund JHUGROO 
Minister of Housing and Lands

Ebene Tower 
Ebene

General Notice No. 1006 of 2019

THE LAND ACQUISITION ACT
(Notice given under Section 8)

CORRIGENDUM

In the Notice given under Section 8 of the Land 
Acquisition Act dated the 26/02/2018 containing 
the description of a portion of land being Portion 
No. 29 (Serial No. 29) situate at L’Union as per 
title deed but in fact situate at Cap Malheureux, 
in the district of Riviere du Rempart for the 
public purpose of construction of a bypass at Cap 
Malheureux, published in the Government Gazette 
in its issues of the 10/03/2018 and 24/03/2018 
under General Notice No. 360 of 2018 and No. 
470 of 2018 and transcribed on the 15/05/2018 in 
Volume T.V201805/000957, the description of the 
said portion is hereby deleted and replaced by the 
following description:

“Portion No. 29 (Serial No. 29) 
[PIN:1317160423] of an extent of six thousand 
three hundred and sixty seven and four hundredths 
square metres (6367.04m2) is excised from a 
portion of land of an extent of six arpents and 
twenty one square perches (6A 2IP) or two 
hectares and six thousand two hundred and 
twelve square metres (2Ha 6212m2) belonging 
to SOCIETE ROUILLARD FRERES ET 
CIE bearing business registration number 
F07000030 as evidenced by title deed transcribed 
in Volume TV 317/403 & 422/577 and is bounded 
as follows:-

Towards the North by the surplus of land on 
six lines measuring thirty one metres and twelve 
centimetres (31.12m), thirty five metres and 

thirty four centimetres (35.34m), forty metres 
and eighteen centimetres (40.18m), eight metres 
and seventy centimetres (8.70m), four metres and 
eighty four centimetres (4.84m) and five metres 
and ninety centimetres (5.90m) respectively.

Towards the East by Mon Choisy-Cap 
Malheureux Road (Bl3) on four lines measuring 
twenty one metres and three centimetres (21,03m), 
twenty five metres and seven centimetres (25.07m), 
thirteen metres and fifty eight centimetres (13.58m) 
and nine metres and fifty four centimetres (9.54m) 
respectively.

Towards the South partly by Portion No. 30a 
(Serial No. 30a) of the plan mention below on fifty 
nine metres and sixty five centimetres (59.65m) 
and partly by the surplus of land on five lines 
measuring seventy four metres and forty five 
centimetres (74.45m), seven metres and fifty six 
centimetres (7.56m), twenty eight metres and fifty 
five centimetres (28.55m), twenty nine metres 
and forty one centimetres (29.41m) and ninety 
two metres and forty nine centimetres (92.49m) 
respectively.

Towards the North West by Portion No. 28 
(Serial No. 28) of the plan mentioned below on 
seventy three metres and sixty six centimetres 
(73.66m).”

The whole as morefully shown on a plan 
registered atthe Cadastral Unit as ACQ/75/000530, 
drawn up by Mr Rajendra Kumar BABOOLALL, 
Land Surveyor on the 20/03/2019.

The plan may be inspected by the public at the 
Archives Office of the Ministry of Housing and 
Lands, Ebene Tower, Ebene, during office hours.

Every interested person is required to give to 
the Authorised Officer within fourteen days of the 
second publication of this Notice in the Gazette a 
written declaration of the nature of his interest in 
the land and the amount and details of his claim for 
compensation.

Date: 06/05/2019.

The Honourable Purmanund JHUGROO
Minister of Housing and Lands

Ebene Tower 
Ebene
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General Notice No. 1007 of 2019

THE LAND ACQUISITION ACT
(Notice given under Section 8)

CORRIGENDUM

In the Notice given under Section 8 of the Land 
Acquisition Act dated the 26/02/2018 containing 
the description of a portion of land being Portion 
No. 31 (Serial No. 31) situate at L’Union as per 
title deed but in fact situate at Cap Malheureux, 
in the district of Riviere du Rempart for the 
public purpose of construction of a bypass at Cap 
Malheureux, published in the Government Gazette 
in its issues of the 10/03/2018 and 24/03/2018 
under General Notice No. 362 of 2018 and 
No. 472 of 2018 and transcribed on the 15/05/2018 
in Volume TV201805/000959, the description of 
the said portion is hereby deleted and replaced by 
the following description:

“Portion No. 31 (Serial No. 31) 
[PIN: 1317160424] of an extent of one hundred 
and ninety nine and sixteen hundredths square 
metres (199.16m2) is excised from a portion of 
land being all that remains of an extent of four 
arpents and twenty eight square perches (4A 
28P) or one hectare and eight thousand three 
hundred and nineteen square metres (1 Ha 8319m2) 
- after excision of a plot of land of an extent of 
three hundred and six and sixty five hundredths 
square metres (306.65m2) acquired compulsorily 
by the State of Mauritius by virtue of a Notice 
given under Section 8 of the Land acquisition 
Act transcribed in volume TV201805/000958- 
belonging to SOCIETE ROUILLARD FRERES 
ET CIE bearing business registration number 
F07000030 as evidenced by title deed transcribed 
in Volume TV 345/59 & 422/577 and is bounded 
as fol lows:-

Towards the North East by Portion No. 30a 
(Serial No. 30a) of the plan mentioned below 
on fifty one metres and twenty two centimetres 
(51.22m).

Towards the South East by State Land 
[TV201805/00095 8] on four metres and twenty 
two centimetres (4.22m).

Towards the South West by Portion No. 32 
(Serial No. 32) of the plan mentioned below on 

forty nine metres and thirty one centimetres 
(49.31m).

Towards the West by the surplus of land (Estate 
Road) on four metres and thirty eight centimetres 
(4.38m).”

The whole as morefully shown on a plan 
registered at the Cadastral Unit as ACQ/75/000530, 
drawn up by Rajendra Kumar Baboolall, Land 
Surveyor on the 20/03/2019.

The plan may be inspected by the public at the 
Archives Office of the Ministry of Housing and 
Lands, Ebene Tower, Ebene, during office hours.

Every interested person is required to give to 
the Authorised Officer within fourteen days of the 
second publication of this Notice in the Gazette a 
written declaration of the nature of his interest in 
the land and the amount and details of his claim for 
compensation.

Date: 06/05/2019.

The Honourable Purmanund JHUGROO 
Minister of Housing and Lands

Ebene Tower
Ebene

General Notice No. 1008 of 2019

THE LAND ACQUISITION ACT
(Notice given under Section 8)

CORRIGENDUM
In the Notice given under Section 8 of the Land 

Acquisition Act dated the 26/02/2018 containing 
the description of a portion of land being Portion 
No. 32 (Serial No. 32) situate at L’Union as per 
title deed but in fact situate at Cap Malheureux, 
in the district of Riviere du Rempart for the 
public purpose of construction of a bypass at Cap 
Malheureux, published in the Government Gazette 
in its issues of the 10/03/2018 and 24/03/2018 
under General Notice No. 363 of 2018 and 
No. 473 of 2018 and transcribed on the 15/05/2018 
in Volume TV201805/000962, the description of 
the said portion is hereby deleted and replaced by 
the following description:

“Portion No. 32 (Serial No. 32) 
[PIN: 1317050447] of an extent of one thousand 
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eight hundred and twenty six and twenty five 
hundredths square metres (1826.25m2) is excised 
from a portion of land of an extent of four arpents 
(4A OOP) or one hectare and six thousand eight 
hundred and eighty three square metres (IHa 
6883m2) belonging to SOCIETE ROUILLARD 
FRERES ET CIE holder of a business 
registration number F07000030 as evidenced 
by title deed transcribed in Volume TV 365/582 & 
422/577 and is bounded as follows:-

Towards the North East partly by Portion No. 31 
(Serial No. 31) of the plan mentioned below on forty 
nine metres and thirty one centimetres (49.31m) 
and partly by State Land [TV201805/000958] on 
two lines measuring five metres and thirty five 
centimetres (5.35m) and six metres and fifty two 
centimetres (6.52m) respectively.

Towards the South East by State Land 
[TV201805/000966] on forty eight metres and 
fifty nine centimetres (48.59m).

Towards the South West by the surplus of land 
on four lines measuring eight metres and seventy 
three centimetres (8.73m), thirty metres and 
seventy seven centimetres (30.77m), twenty four 
metres and thirty seven centimetres (24.37m) and 
fifteen metres and thirty one centimetres (15.31m) 
respectively.”

The whole as morefully shown on a plan 
registered at the Cadastral Unit as ACQ/75/000530, 
drawn up by Rajendra Kumar Baboolall, Land 
Surveyor on the 20/03/2019.

The plan may be inspected by the public at the 
Archives Office of the Ministry of Housing and 
Lands, Ebene Tower, Ebene, during office hours.

Every interested person is required to give to 
the Authorised Officer within fourteen days of the 
second publication of this Notice in the Gazette a 
written declaration of the nature of his interest in 
the land and the amount and details of his claim for 
compensation.

Date: 06/05/2019.

The Honourable Purmanund JHUGROO
Minister of Housing and Lands

Ebene Tower
Ebene

General Notice No. 1009 of 2019

THE LAND ACQUISITION ACT

(Notice given under Section 8)

CORRIGENDUM

In the Notice given under Section 8 of the Land 
Acquisition Act dated the 26/02/2018 containing 
the description of a portion of land being Portion 
No. 12 (Serial No. 12) situate at Union Ribet as per 
title deed but in fact situate at Cap Malheureux, 
in the district of Riviere du Rempart for the 
public purpose of construction of a bypass at Cap 
Malheureux, published in the Government Gazette 
in its issues of the 10/03/2018 and 24/03/2018 
under General Notice No. 352 of 2018 and No. 
462 of 2018 and transcribed on the 15/05/2018 in 
Volume T.V201805/000973, the description of the 
said portion is hereby deleted and replaced by the 
following description:

Portion No. 12 (Serial No. 12) 
[PIN: 1317070808] of an extent of three thousand 
two hundred and twenty two and eighty eight 
hundredths square metres (3222.88m2) is excised 
from a portion of land of an extent of sixteen 
thousand eight hundred and seventy one and fifty 
hundredths square metres (16871,50m2) belonging 
to SOCIETE CIVILE IMMOBILIERE 
D’ATTRIBUTION HAPPYHOME as evidenced 
by title deed transcribed in Volume TV 7375/42 
and is bounded as follows:-

To wards the North by State Land 
[TV201805/000952] on seven metres and nine 
centimetres (7.09m).

Towards the East partly by the surplus of land 
on five lines measuring ninety seven metres and 
ten centimetres (97.10m), fourteen metres and 
ninety five centimetres (14.95m), twelve metres 
and seventy one centimetres (12.71m), twenty nine 
metres and thirty three centimetres (29.33m), fifty 
nine metres and ninety eight centimetres (59.98m) 
respectively and partly by a common road three 
metres and sixty six centimetres (3.66m) wide on 
seven metres and thirty centimetres (7.30m).

Towards the South East by a common road 
three metres and sixty centimetres (3.60m) wide 
on one hundred and twenty one metres and fifty 
nine centimetres (121.59m) and on a developed 



2368 The Mauritius Government Gazette

length of two metres and eighty nine centimetres 
(2.89m).

Towards the West by Vingt Pieds Road (B45) 
on a developed length measuring one hundred 
and fifty two metres and eighty three centimetres 
(152.83m)”, wherever they appear.

The whole as morefully shown on a plan 
registered at the Cadastral Unit as ACQ/75/000438, 
drawn up by Mr Rajendra Kumar BABOOLALL, 
Land Surveyor on the 16/05/2018.

The plan may be inspected by the public at the 
Archives Office of the Ministry of Housing and 
Lands, Ebene Tower, Ebene, during office hours.

Every interested person is required to give to 
the Authorised Officer within fourteen days of the 
second publication of this Notice in the Gazette a 
written declaration of the nature of his interest in 
the land and the amount and details of his claim for 
compensation.

Date: 06/05/2019.

The Honourable Purmanund JHUGROO 
Minister of Housing and Lands 

Ebene Tower
Ebene

General Notice No. 1010 of 2019

THE LAND ACQUISITION ACT

(Notice given under Section 8)

CORRIGENDUM

In the Notice given under Section 8 of the Land 
Acquisition Act dated the 26/02/2018 containing 
the description of a portion of land being Portion 
No. 14 (Serial No. 14) situate at Pavilion (Mare 
Seche) as per title deed but in fact situate at Cap 
Malheureux, in the district of Riviere du Rempart 
for the public purpose of construction of a bypass 
at Cap Malheureux, published in the Government 
Gazette in its issues of the 10/03/2018 and 
24/03/2018 under General Notice No. 353 of 
2018 and No. 463 of 2018 and transcribed on the 
15/05/2018 in Volume T.V201805/000953, the 
description of the said portion is hereby deleted 
and replaced by the following descriptions:

Portion No. 14 (Serial No. 14) 
[PIN:1317060389] of an extent of one thousand 
one hundred and five and twenty five hundredths 
square metres (1105.25m2) is to be excised from a 
portion of land of an extent of one thousand eight 
hundred and ninety seven and twenty hundredths 
square metres (1897.20m2) belonging jointly to 
(i) Mr Hussen BAUKER born on 30/11/1969 
holder of a national identity card bearing 
number B3011691000034 (ii) Mrs Bibi Fatmah 
TOONAH (born BAUKER) born on 07/12/1965 
holder of a national identity card bearing number 
B0712651002377 civilly married under the legal 
community of goods to Mr Anowar TOONAH 
born on 30/06/1956 holder of a national identity 
card bearing number T300656100137E and
(iii) Mr Mansoor BAUKER born on 01/04/1963 
holder of a national identity card bearing 
number B0104631000670 as evidenced by title 
deed transcribed in Volume TV 3912/9 and is 
bounded as follows: -

Towards the North West by a common road 
three metres and sixty centimetres (3.60m) wide on 
seventy eight metres and ninety nine centimetres 
(78.99m).

Towards the East by Portion No. 18 (Serial 
No. 18) of the plan mentioned on sixteen metres 
and fifty eight centimetres (16.58m).

Towards the South by the surplus of land 
on two lines measuring fifty six metres and ten 
centimetres (56.10m) and eighteen metres and 
ninety nine centimetres (18.99m) respectively.

Towards the South West by State Land 
[TV 201805/001405] on twenty metres and eighty 
six centimetres (20.86m)”, wherever they appear.

The whole as morefully shown on a plan 
registered at the Cadastral Unit as ACQ/75/000438, 
drawn up by Mr Rajendra Kumar BABOOLALL, 
Land Surveyor on the 16/05/2018. The plan may 
be inspected by the public at the Archives Office of 
the Ministry of Housing and Lands, Ebene Tower, 
Ebene, during office hours.

Every interested person is required to give to 
the Authorised Officer within fourteen days of the 
second publication of this Notice in the Gazette a 
written declaration of the nature of his interest in 
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the land and the amount and details of his claim for 
compensation.

Date: 06/05/2019.

The Honourable Purmanund JHUGROO 
Minister of Housing and Lands 

Ebene Tower
Ebene

General Notice No. 1011 of 2019

THE LAND ACQUISITION ACT 
(Notice given under Section 8)

CORRIGENDUM

In the Notice given under Section 8 of the Land 
Acquisition Act dated the 26/02/2018 containing 
the description of a portion of land being Portion 
No. 15 (Serial No. 15) situate at Cap Malheureux, 
in the district of Riviere du Rempart for the 
public purpose of construction of a bypass at Cap 
Malheureux, published in the Government Gazette 
in its issues of the 10/03/2018 and 24/03/2018 
under General Notice No. 354 of 2018 and No. 
464 of 2018 and transcribed on the 21/05/2018 in 
Volume T.V201805/001400, the description of the 
said portion is hereby deleted and replaced by the 
following descriptions:

“Portion No. 15 (Serial No. 15) 
[PIN: 1317060390] of an extent of three hundred 
and seven and twenty six hundredths square 
metres (307.26m2) is excised from a portion of 
land of an extent of one thousand and fifty five 
square metres (1055.00m2) belonging to Mrs 
Archana WOODUN (born GUDDOY) born 
on 13/09/1990 holder of a national identity 
card bearing number G130990310921C 
civilly married under the legal community 
of goods to Mr Dharam WOODUN born on 
14/08/1987 holder of a national identity card 
bearing number W1408873034911 and as 
evidenced by title deed transcribed in Volume 
TV 8549/34 and is bounded as follows:-

Towards the North East by Portion No. 16 
(Serial No. 16) of the plan mentioned below on 
four metres and twenty two centimetres (4.22m).

Towards the South by Portion No. 18 (Serial 
No. 18) of the plan mentioned below on fifty six 
metres and sixty three centimetres (56.63m).

Towards the South West by a common road 
three metres and sixty six centimetres (3.66m) 
wide on seven metres and ninety three centimetres 
(7.93m).

Towards the North West by the surplus of land 
on forty eight metres and thirty one centimetres 
(48.3 lm)” wherever they appear.

The whole as morefully shown on a plan 
registered at the Cadastral Unit as ACQ/75/000438, 
drawn up by Mr Rajendra Kumar BABOOLALL, 
Land Surveyor on the 16/05/2018.

The plan may be inspected by the public at the 
Archives Office of the Ministry of Housing and 
Lands, Ebene Tower, Ebene, during office hours.

Every interested person is required to give to 
the Authorised Officer within fourteen days of the 
second publication of this Notice in the Gazette a 
written declaration of the nature of his interest in 
the land and the amount and details of his claim for 
compensation.

Date: 06/05/2019.

The Honourable Purmanund JHUGROO 
Minister of Housing and Lands

Ebene Tower
Ebene

General Notice No. 1012 of 2019

THE LAND ACQUISITION ACT
(Notice given under Section 8)

CORRIGENDUM
In the Notice given under Section 8 of the Land 

Acquisition Act dated the 26/02/2018 containing 
the description of a portion of land being Portion 
No. 16 (Serial No. 16) situate at Cap Malheureux, 
in the district of Riviere du Rempart for the public 
purpose of the construction of a bypass at Cap 
Malheureux, published in the Government Gazette 
in its issues of the 10/03/2018 and 24/03/2018 
under General Notice No. 355 of 2018 and 
No. 465 of 2018 and transcribed on the 21/05/2018 
in Volume T.V201805/001399, the description of 
the said portion is hereby deleted and replaced by 
the following description:

Portion No. 16 (Serial No. 16) 
[PIN:1317060391] of an extent of eighty three 
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and twenty four hundredths square metres 
(83.24m2) is excised from a portion of land of 
an extent of seven hundred and seventeen square 
metres (717m2) belonging to Mrs Marie Yeildy 
HENRY (born BISSON) born on 08/07/1954 
holder of a national identity card bearing 
number B0807540202097 civilly married 
under the system of legal separation of goods 
to Mr Daniel Andre Germain HENRY as per 
marriage certificate bearing number 60/1990 as 
evidenced by title deed transcribed in Volume TV 
6700/68 and is bounded as follows: -

Towards the North East by Portion No. 17 
(Serial No. 17) of the plan mentioned below on 
one metre and sixty eight centimetres (1.68m).

Towards the South East by Portion No. 18 
(Serial No. 18) of the plan mentioned below on 
forty two metres and twelve centimetres (42.12m).

Towards the South West by Portion No. 15 
(Serial No. 15) of the plan mentioned below on 
four metres and twenty two centimetres (4.22m).

Towards the North West by the surplus of land 
on two lines measuring eighteen metres and eighty 
centimetres (18.80m) and twenty three metres and 
twenty three centimetres (23.23m) respectively”, 
wherever they appear.

The whole as morefully shown on a plan 
registered at the Cadastral Unit as ACQ/75/000438, 
drawn up by Mr Rajendra Kumar BABOOLALL, 
Land Surveyor on the 16/05/2018.

The plan may be inspected by the public at the 
Archives Office of the Ministry of Housing and 
Lands, Ebene Tower, Ebene, during office hours.

Every interested person is required to give to 
the Authorised Officer within fourteen days of the 
second publication of this Notice in the Gazette a 
written declaration of the nature of his interest in 
the land and the amount and details of his claim for 
compensation.

Date: 06/05/2019.

The Honourable Purmanund JHUGROO 
Minister of Housing and Lands 

Ebene Tower 
Ebene

General Notice No. 1013 of 2019

THE LAND ACQUISITION ACT

(Notice given under Section 8)

CORRIGENDUM

In the Notice given under Section 8 of the Land 
Acquisition Act dated the 26/02/2018 containing 
the description of a portion of land being Portion 
No. 17 (Serial No. 17) situate at Cap Malheureux, 
in the district of Riviere du Rempart for the public 
purpose of the construction of a bypass at Cap 
Malheureux, published in the Government Gazette 
in its issues of the 10/03/2018 and 24/03/2018 
under General Notice No. 368 of 2018 and No. 
478 of 2018 and transcribed on the 21/05/2018 in 
Volume T.V201805/001401, the description of the 
said portion is hereby deleted and replaced by the 
following descriptions:

“A portion of land being Portion No. 17 
(Serial No. 17) [PIN: 1317060392] of an extent 
of twenty eight and sixty five hundredths square 
metres (28.65m2) is excised from a portion of 
land of an extent of three hundred and thirty 
eight square metres (338m2) belonging to 
Mr Hoopmendre CAUSSY born on 30/06/1976 
holder of a national identity card bearing 
number C3006764610230 as evidenced by title 
deed transcribed in Volume TV 4902/42 and is 
bounded as follows:-

Towards the North East by a common road 
three metres and sixty centimetres (3.60) wide on 
one metre and eighteen centimetres (1.18m).

Towards the South East by Portion No. 18 
(Serial No. 18) of the plan mentioned below on 
twenty three metres and thirty one centimetres 
(23.31m).

Towards the South West by Portion No. 16 
(Serial No. 16) of the plan mentioned below on 
one metre and sixty eight centimetres (1.68m).

Towards the North West by the surplus of land 
on two lines measuring seventeen metres and 
thirty one centimetres (17.31m) and five metres 
and eighty six centimetres (5.86m) respectively”, 
wherever they appear.

The whole as morefully shown on a plan 
registered at the Cadastral Unit as ACQ/75/000438, 
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drawn up by Mr Rajendra Kumar BABOOLALL, 
Land Surveyor on the 16/05/2018.

The plan may be inspected by the public at the 
Archives Office of the Ministry of Housing and 
Lands, Ebene Tower, Ebene, during office hours.

Every interested person is required to give to 
the Authorised Officer within fourteen days of the 
second publication of this Notice in the Gazette a 
written declaration of the nature of his interest in 
the land and the amount and details of his claim for 
compensation.

Date: 06/05/2019.

The Honourable Purmanund JHUGROO 
Minister of Housing and Lands 

Ebene Tower
Ebene

General Notice No. 1014 of 2019

THE LAND ACQUISITION ACT

(Notice given under Section 8)

CORRIGENDUM

In the Notice given under Section 8 of the Land 
Acquisition Act dated the 26/02/2018 containing 
the description of a portion of land being Portion 
No. 18 (Serial No. 18) situate at Mont Mascal as 
per title deed but in fact situate at Cap Malheureux, 
in the district of Riviere du Rempart for the public 
purpose of the construction of a bypass at Cap 
Malheureux, published in the Government Gazette 
in its issues of the 10/03/2018 and 24/03/2018 
under General Notice No. 369 of 2018 and 
No. 479 of 2018 and transcribed on the 15/05/2018 
in Volume T.V201805/000954 the description of 
the said portion is hereby deleted and replaced by 
the following description:

“Portion No. 18 (Serial No. 18) 
[PIN:1317060393] of an extent of six thousand 
two hundred and sixteen and seventy six 
hundredths square metres (6216.76m2) is excised 
from a portion of land of an extent of seven arpents 
and nine square perches (7A 09P) or twenty nine 
thousand nine hundred and twenty five and ninety 
seven hundredths square metres (29925.97m2) 
belonging to SOCIETE DE PREVOYANCE as 

evidenced by title deed transcribed in Volume TV 
1540/119, 7nt(b) and is bounded as follows:-

Towards the North East by a common road three 
metres and ninety centimetres (3.90m) wide on 
four metres and ninety three centimetres (4.93m).

Towards the South East by the surplus of land 
on five lines measuring one hundred and fifty six 
metres and twenty four centimetres (156.24m), 
forty one metres and fourteen centimetres 
(41.14m), forty one metres and thirty centimetres 
(41.30m), forty five metres and ninety six 
centimetres (45.96m) and thirty three metres and 
thirty one centimetres (33.31m) respectively.

Towards the West by Portion No. 14 (Serial 
No. 14) of the plan mentioned below on eighteen 
metres and sixty four centimetres (18.64m).

Towards the North West partly by Portion 
No. 15 (Serial No. 15), partly by Portion No. 16 
(Serial No. 16) and partly by Portion No. 17 (Serial 
No. 17) of the plan mentioned below on a total 
length measuring one hundred and twenty three 
metres and sixty five centimetres (123.65m), 
partly by the width of a common road three metres 
and sixty centimetres (3.60m) wide and partly by 
State Land [TV201810/001854] on a total length 
measuring one hundred and eighty nine metres and 
sixty four centimetres (189.64m) respectively”, 
wherever they appear.

The whole as morefully shown on a plan 
registered at the Cadastral Unit as ACQ/75/000438, 
drawn up by Mr Rajendra Kumar BABOOLALL, 
Land Surveyor on the 16/05/2018.

The plan may be inspected by the public at the 
Archives Office of the Ministry of Housing and 
Lands, Ebene Tower, Ebene, during office hours.

Every interested person is required to give to 
the Authorised Officer within fourteen days of the 
second publication of this Notice in the Gazette a 
written declaration of the nature of his interest in 
the land and the amount and details of his claim for 
compensation.

Date: 06/05/2019.

The Honourable Purmanund JHUGROO 
Minister of Housing and Lands 

Ebene Tower 
Ebene
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General Notice No. 1015 of 2019

MINISTRY OF SOCIAL SECURITY, NATIONAL 
SOLIDARITY AND ENVIRONMENT AND 

SUSTAINABLE DEVELOPMENT

(ENVIRONMENT AND SUSTAINABLE 
DEVELOPMENT DIVISION)

NOTICE FOR PUBLIC INSPECTION OF 
EIA REPORT

Notice is hereby given under Section 20 of 
the Environment Protection Act 2002 by the 
Department of Environment, Ministry of Social 
Security, National Solidarity, and Environment 
and Sustainable Development (Environment 
and Sustainable Development Division) that an 
application for an EIA Licence has been submitted 
on 13 May 2019 under Section 18(1) of the Act for 
a scheduled undertaking and that the EIA report 
shall be opened for public inspection.

(a) The undertaking concerns the Proposed 
Hotel Development Project under the 
Invest Hotel Scheme (IHS) comprising 
of 69 residential units for Phase 1 over a 
plot of land of an extent of 5 Arpents by 
Anse des Salines Ltd

(b) The location of the proposed undertaking 
is at Les Salines Koenig in the district of 
Black River

(c) The report may be inspected during normal 
office working hours (i.e. 08.45 hrs to 
12.00 hrs and 12.30 hrs to 16.00 hrs) at 
the Resource Centre of the Department 
of Environment, Ground Floor, Ken Lee 
Tower, Cnr. Barracks and St. Georges 
Streets, Port Louis and at the District 
Council of Black River

The report may also be inspected on the 
Ministry’s website at the following address: 
http://environment.govmu. org

(d) Public comments should be submitted in 
writing to the Director of Environment on 
7 June 2019 at latest. The envelope should 
be marked “EIA comments”, on the top 
left hand comer and addressed to:

The EIA Desk
Department of Environment 
Ministry of Social Security,
National Solidarity, and Environment 
and Sustainable Development 
5th Floor, Ken Lee Tower
Cnr. Barracks and St. Georges Streets 
Port Louis

15 May 2019

Department of Environment 
Ministry of Social Security, 

National Solidarity, and Environment 
and Sustainable Development

General Notice No. 1016 of 2019

NOTICE

NATIONAL ARCHIVES DEPARTMENT

PUBLIC RECORDS APPRAISAL COMMITTEE (2nd Meeting of 2019)

The Committee has recommended the destruction after a period of thirty days from the date of 
publication of this Notice of the following records. In accordance with Section 21(1) of the National 
Archives Act 1999 (Act No. 22 of 1999).

PASSPORT AND IMMIGRATION OFFICE (LIST 6/2019)

Item Official Ref. No. Description Physical Form Period Covered

1 IP 185/2019-1 Application for Mauritius
Passport

Bundles Each of
100 application 
files

2003

http://environment.govmu
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2 IP 185/2019-1 International Embarkation 
and Disembarkation Cards

Bundles Each 
of 100 to 500 
ED Cards

2003

NATIONAL AUDIT OFFICE (LIST 10/2019)

Item Official Ref. No. Description Physical Form Period Covered

1 NAO/ADM/DSPRC Payroll Box Files July 1999 to Dec 2000,
Aug 2002,
June 2007,
Jan 2008 to Dec 2011

2 NAO/ADM/DSPRC Payment Vouchers Box Files July 2003 - Sept 2010 
& May 2011 - Dec 2011

3 NAO/ADM/DSPRC Abstract Bundles Financial Year 
1999/2000 to
Fin. Year 2010/2011

4 NAO/ADM/DSPRC Contribution to National 
Savings Fund

Bundles Financial Year 
2006/2007 to 
Fin. Year 2007/2008

5 NAO/ADM/DSPRC Employee Declaration Form Box File July 2007 to Nov 2011

6 NAO/ADM/DSPRC Local Purchase Form Box File Oct 2010 to Dec 2010

7 NAO/ADM/DSPRC Mileage Claim Form Box File Oct 2010 to Dec 2010

8 NAO/ADM/DSPRC Refund of Travelling by bus Bundles Oct 2004 to May 2008

9 NAO/ADM/DSPRC Checklist (Validation of
Payment vouchers)

Bundles Jan 2010 to Sept 2011

10 NAO/ADM/DSPRC Form 228G
(Updating of Basic data)

Bundles July 2009 & May 2011

11 NAO/ADM/DSPRC Form 2281 (Adjustments) Bundles Aug 2010 & June 2011

12 NAO/ADM/DSPRC Statement of Emoluments Bundles 30.06.2004,
30.06.2005,
30.06.2006

13 NAO/ADM/DSPRC Departmental Warrant Bundles Financial Year:
2006/2007,
2007/2008,
2008/2009

14 NAO/ADM/DSPRC Refund Bus Fare Box Files May 2006 to Dec 2010

15 NAO/ADM/DSPRC Telephone Bills Box Files June 2004

16 NAO/ADM/DSPRC Adjustment Voucher Bundles Fin. Yr 2006/2007 to
2010/2011
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MINISTRY OF PUBLIC INFRASTRUCTURE AND LAND TRANSPORT (LIST 7/2019)

Item Official Ref. No. Description Physical Form Period Covered
1 MPI/F/1/138 V2 Payroll Bound Volumes Jan 1990 to Dec 2009

2 MPI/F/1/138 V2 Other Charges Bound Volumes Nov 1990 to Dec 2009

MINISTRY OF INDUSTRY, COMMERCE & CONSUMER PROTECTION/MAURITAS 
(LIST 3A/2019)

ADMINISTRATION FILES

Item Official Ref. No. Description Physical Form Period Covered
1 IND/E/50 V3 Laboratories: List of

Assessors
Flat Files 1998

2 IND/E/50 V3 Establishment Matters Flat Files 1997 to 2012

3 IND/E/50 V3 Miscellaneous
Correspondence

Flat Files 2008-2012

5 IND/E/50 V3 Order of Publications Flat Files 1997 to 2001

6 IND/E/50 V3 Office Requirements Flat Files 1997 to 2010

7 IND/E/50 V3 Training of Staffs
(MAURITAS)

Flat Files 2006 - 2008

8 IND/E/50 V3 Budget Proposals Flat Files 2004-2011

9 IND/E/50 V3 Technical Cooperation
among Developing
Countries

Flat Files 2007 - 2009

10 IND/E/50 V3 Miscellaneous Circulars Flat Files 2006-2012

11 IND/E/50 V3 Quality Circles Flat Files 2005
12 IND/E/50 V3 MAURITAS Press

Communique
Flat Files 2014

13 IND/E/50 V3 Import Permits Flat Files 2006 to 2008

INTERNATIONAL AND REGIONAL ACCREDITATION COOPERATIONS

Item Official Ref. No. Description Physical Form Period Covered
28 IND/E/50 V3 Training of Laboratory 

Assessors
Flat Files 1999-2008

REGISTRATION FORMS FOR PARTICIPANTS FOR SEMINARS/TRAINING COURSES, 
ETC

Item Official Ref. No. Description Physical Form Period Covered
29 IND/E/50 V3 Laboratories: List of

assessors
Flat Files 1997- 1999

30 IND/E/50 V3 Training of Quality 
Managers of Laboratories 
10-13 May 1999 -
Registration Form

Flat Files 1999
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31 IND/E/50 V3 Training of Quality 
Managers from Medical 
Laboratories
- Registration Form

Flat Files 2000

32 IND/E/50 V3 Training of Quality
Managers from Medical 
Laboratories
- Evaluation Form

Flat Files 2000

33 IND/E/50 V3 Awareness Seminars on 
Importance of Accreditation 
April - May 2004 (02 April)

Flat Files 2004

34 IND/E/50 V3 Awareness Seminars on 
Importance of Accreditation 
April - May 2004 (03 April)

Flat Files 2004

35 IND/E/50 V3 Awareness Seminars on 
Importance of Accreditation 
April - May 2004 (03 April) 
Feedback Forms

Flat Files 2004

36 IND/E/50 V3 Internal Auditor Training 
Courses (Registration
Forms/Feedback Forms)

Flat Files 2004

37 IND/E/50 V3 Confirmation Forms Flat Files 2005
38 IND/E/50 V3 List of Assessors - Training

Course ISO/IEC 17021:2006
19-20 Jan 2009

Flat Files 2009

40 IND/E/50 V3 21.2.2011 - Half day 
workshop on accreditation 
& International Recognition

Flat Files 2011

41 IND/E/50 V3 MAURITAS Advisory
Council

Flat Files

42 IND/E/50 V3 IAF MLA-IAF Survey Flat Files 2001

43 IND/E/50 V3 IAF Guidance Documents 
Guide 66

Flat Files 2006

45 IND/E/50 V3 SADCA Meeting/Workshop 
on Accreditation 25 Jan - 05 
Feb 99 - Registration Form

Flat Files

46 IND/E/50 V3 SADCA Meeting/Workshop 
on Accreditation

Flat Files 2010

47 IND/E/50 V3 Workshop by EU/SADC
SQAM consulting assistance 
in Quality Improvement in 
Laboratories

Flat Files 2010
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48 IND/E/50 V3 Seminar on Accreditation of 
Laboratories & Certification 
Bodies (Registration Forms)

Flat Files 1997

49 IND/E/50 V3 Half-Day Seminar on 
Accreditation Procedures 
and Laboratory Assessment 
(Registration Forms)

Flat Files 1998

REGISTRAR-GENERAL (LIST 1/2019)

Item Official Ref. No. Description Physical Form Period Covered
2. RGD/176 Store Form no.5

401-450
Book June 2001 - Dec 2010

Any person may submit to the Public Records Appraisal Committee, through the Acting Director of the 
National Archives Department, written objections to the destruction of the above-listed records, within a 
period of thirty days, of the date of publication of this Notice in the Government Gazette. A Government 
Officer who objects to their destruction should submit his/her objection through the Head of his/her 
Department of Ministry.

After the expiration of the period mentioned, no objections will be considered and the records will be 
destroyed.

03 May 2019

National Archives Department 
Ministry of Arts & Culture

General Notice No. 1017 of 2019

POLICE NOTICE

Traffic Scheme In Mahebourg 
And Beau Vallon Villages 

Re. ‘Vaigaasi Cavadee’

By virtue of authority conferred upon me by 
Section 25(3) of the Police Act and Section 181 
of the Road Traffic Act, traffic arrangements as 
hereunder will be made on Saturday 18 May, 2019 
as from 09.30 hrs to 13.00 hrs on the occasion of 
the above ceremony.

2. DIVERSION OF TRAFFIC

(i) Vehicles coming from the direction 
of Curepipe and proceeding towards 
Mahebourg will do so via King Savers 
Roundabout through Morcellement 
Lorette, London Way and Labourdonnais 
Street towards Mahebourg village

(ii) Vehicles coming from Old Grand Port and 
St Huber proceeding towards Mahebourg 
will do so via Arya Samaj Street towards 
bus terminal;

(iii) Vehicles leaving Mahebourg, except 
buses, proceeding towards Curepipe will 
do so through Sivananda Street, Abdool 
Rajack Osman Street and King Savers 
Roundabout; and

(iv) Buses leaving Mahebourg Bus Terminal 
and proceeding towards Plaine Magnien/ 
Flacq will do so through their normal 
route i.e. Suffren Street and main road, 
Mahebourg/Ville Noires.

3. JUDICIAL PROCEEDINGS

Non compliance with these traffic arrangements 
will entail judicial proceedings.

The cooperation and understanding of the 
public would be much appreciated.
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13.05.2019

K. M. Nobin, PMSM 
Commissioner of Police

Office of the Commissioner of Police
Police Headquarters
Line Barracks
Port Louis

General Notice No. 1018 of 2019
IN THE DISTRICT COURT OF 
GRAND PORT, MAHEBOURG

SALE BY AUTHORITY OF JUSTICE

In virtue of a written order signed by The Senior 
District Magistrate in charge of Grand Port District 
Court dated 29/03/19, authorizing one of the Court 
Ushers to proceed with the Sale of forfeited and 
unclaimed articles, I, the undersigned Senior 
Court Usher will on 31/05/2019 at 10.00 A.M. at 
the premises of Grand Port District Court, sell for 
cash by Public Auction to the highest bidder the 
following articles, namely: -

1 golden chain, 2 golden necklaces, 1 golden 
bracelet, one pair of earrings, seven cartridges of 
cigarettes make “Good-Look”, kitchen knives, 
sabres, pairs of Sandals, pairs of shoes & sandals, 
pairs of scissors, screw driver, 1 liquor measure, 
scourers, plastic bowls, brooms, kitchen towels, 
hammer, cutter.

Dated this 30/04/2019

At Grand Port District Court, 
Mahebourg.

Senior Court Usher 
Mr. S. Chekhooreah 
In charge of the Sale

General Notice No. 1019 of 2019

INDEPENDENT COMMISSION AGAINST
CORRUPTION (ICAC)

(established under s. 19(1) of Prevention of 
Corruption Act 2002 as subsequently 

amended PoCA 2002)

NOTICE PUBLISHED UNDER SECTION 
56(3)(a) OF (POCA 2002)

NOTICE is hereby given that, on an application 
made by the Independent Commission Against 

Corruption (ICAC), an Order has been made 
on 24th April 2019 by the Honourable Judge at 
Chambers, as follows:-

A. (a) attaching into the hands of
Mohamed Hossen Soobratty, NID
S2101700100851 10% of the shares in 
the ownership of two horses, namely
(i) In your Face (ii) Wow Holiday 
presently with the Merven Stable;

(b) attaching in the hands of Merven 
Stable and Mr Patrick Merven the 
two horses , namely, (i) In your Face
(ii) Wow Holiday presently in its/his 
custody and “garde” together with 
all stakes money payable to the said 
Mohamed Hossen Soobratty;

(c) attaching in the hands of the Mauritius 
Turf Club all stakes money payable to 
the said Mohamed Hossen Soobratty 
as co-owner of the two horses, namely, 
(i) In your Face (ii) Wow Holiday;

B. (a) requiring the said Mohamed Hossen
Soobratty, within 48 hours of service 
of the Order, to declare in writing to 
the Applicant the nature and source of 
purchase of the said horses so attached;

(b) requiring Merven Stable, Mr 
Patrick Merven and the Mauritius
Turf Club within 48 hours of service 
of the Order to declare in writing to the 
Applicant the amount of money paid to 
the said Mohamed Hossen Soobratty 
as stakes money and any other money 
paid or to be paid as stakes money;

C. (a) prohibiting the said Mohamed
Hossen Soobratty from transferring, 
pledging or otherwise disposing of 
the 10% shares in the ownership of 
the following horse, viz:- (i) In your 
Face, and (ii) Wow Holiday

(b) prohibiting Merven Stable and Mr 
Patrick Merven, as owner Merven 
Stable, from transferring, pledging 
or otherwise disposing of 10% of 
shares of the said Mohamed Hossen 
Soobratty in the ownership of the 
two abovementioned horses as well as 
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all stakes money or any other money 
payable to the said Mohamed Hossen 
Soobratty as co-owner of the two 
abovementioned horses; and

(c) prohibiting the Mauritius Turf 
Club from transferring, pledging 
or otherwise disposing of the 10% 
shares of the said Mohamed Hossen 
Soobratty in the ownership of the 
two abovenamed horses as well as 
all stakes money or any other money 
payable to the said Mohamed Hossen 
Soobratty in respet of the two horses.

THE said Order has been filed in the Registry 
of the Supreme Court of Mauritius.

THE attention of all banks, financial institutions, 
cash dealers and any other person who may hold 
or be vested with property belonging to or held on 
behalf of the abovenamed person, is hereby drawn 
to the above Order so that they may take note 
thereof and govern themselves accordingly.

Under all legal reservations.

Dated at Le Reduit, this 6th day of May, 2019.

Sultan SOHAWON 
of ICAC Headquarters, 
Reduit Triangle, Moka 

Applicant’s Attorney

General Notice No. 1020 of 2019

REGISTRATION OF A CHANGE OF NAME 
OF A TRADE UNION

Notice is hereby given under Section 12(7) of 
the Employment Relations Act that a change of 
name of the “Mauritius Broadcasting Service 
Staff Association” a trade union with registration 
number 77, into that of “Mauritius Broadcasting 
Corporation Staff Association” has been 
registered by me on 16 April 2019.

Any trade union aggrieved by my decision to 
register the change of name may, under Section 
12(8) of the said Act, within 21 days of the 
publication of this notice in the Gazette appeal 
against the decision to the Employment Relations 
Tribunal.

Dated 16 April 2019.

V. Sanasy 
Registrar of Associations

General Notice No. 1021 of 2019

REGISTRATION OF A TRADE UNION

Notice is hereby given under Section 5(5) of 
the Employment Relations Act that the “Bon-Air 
Cooperative Credit Society and Other Workers 
Union”, a trade union whose membership is open 
to “any person of either sex of 16 years old or over, 
who is employed whether full-time or part-time or 
under contract, at Bon-Air Cooperative Credit 
Society, or any other cooperative organisation, 
provided that he is not a member of another trade 
union in the enterprise where he is employed or his 
bargaining unit” has been registered by me with 
registration number TU 782 on 16 April 2019 and 
the address of its registered office is at Bon-Air 
Cooperative Credit Society and Other Workers 
Union c/o M.P Odit, SSR St. Morcellement 
St. Andre.

Any other registered union aggrieved by my 
decision to register the “Bon-Air Cooperative 
Credit Society and Other Workers Union” may, 
under section 5(8) of the said Act, within 21 days 
of the publication of this notice in the Gazette 
appeal against the decision to the Employment 
Relations Tribunal.

Dated 16 April 2019.
V. Sanasy 

Registrar of Associations

General Notice No. 1022 of 2019

CHANGE OF NAME

Notice is hereby given that the Honourable 
Attorney-General is pleased to authorise Bharotee 
SEENATH (born BHOLLAH) to change her 
name Bharotee into that of Beatrice so that in 
future she shall bear the name and surname of 
Beatrice SEENATH (bom BHOLLAH).

Date: 14th May 2019

K. Boodhun (Mr) 
State Counsel
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General Notice No. 1023 of 2019

CHANGE OF NAME

Notice is hereby given that the Honourable 
Attorney-General is pleased to authorise 
Lunadosha VALAYTEN to change his name 
Lunadosha into those of Logen so that in future 
he shall bear the names and surname of Logen 
VALAYTEN.

Date: 09th May 2019

A. Nuckchady (Ms) 
Temporary State Counsel

General Notice No. 1026 of 2019

CHANGE OF NAME

Notice is hereby given that the Honourable 
Attorney-General is pleased to authorise 
Kaminidevi AHGUN to change her name 
Kaminidevi into that of Simi so that in future she 
shall bear the name and surname of Simi AHGUN.

Date: 8th May 2019

S. Sohawon-Abdullatiff (Mrs) 
Senior State Counsel

General Notice No. 1024 of 2019

CHANGE OF NAME

Notice is hereby given that the Honourable 
Attorney-General is pleased to authorise Aboo 
Swadeck SANDAR to change his surname 
SAND AR into that of SANDER so that in future 
he shall bear the names and surname of Aboo 
Swadeck SANDER.

Date: 09th May 2019

K. Boodhun (Mr)
State Counsel

General Notice No. 1027 of 2019

CHANGE OF NAME

Notice is hereby given that the Honourable 
Attorney-General is pleased to authorise Yadav 
Shanou RAMLOUL to change his name Yadav 
Shanou into those of Adav Shan so that in future 
he shall bear the names and surname of Adav 
Shan RAMLOUL.

Date: 09th May 2019

A. Nuckchady (Ms) 
Temporary State Counsel

General Notice No. 1025 of 2019

CHANGE OF NAME

Notice is hereby given that the Honourable 
Attorney-General is pleased to authorise 
Somanund ITTOO to change his name 
Somanund into those of Hans so that in future 
he shall bear the names and surname of Hans 
ITTOO.

Date: 09th May 2019

A. Nuckchady (Ms) 
Temporary State Counsel

General Notice No. 1028 of 2019

CHANGE OF NAME

Notice is hereby given that the Honourable 
Attorney-General is pleased to authorise Mrs 
Rookshana Bibi Ahmed HASSAM to change 
her names Rookshana Bibi Ahmed into those of 
Rookshana Bibi Ahmad so that in future she shall 
bear the names and surname of Rookshana Bibi 
Ahmad HASSAM.

Date: 09th May 2019

P. D. Punchu (Ms) 
State Counsel
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General Notice No. 1029 of 2019

EMPLOYMENT RELATIONS TRIBUNAL

ERT/RN 42/2017

AWARD

Before: -

Shameer Janhangeer Vice-President

Raffick Hossenbaccus Member

Karen K. Veerapen (Mrs) Member

Yves Christian Fanchette Member

In the matter of: -

Mr Alain Gaetan Sylvio ARTHUR
Disputant 

and

RIGHTS MANAGEMENT SOCIETY
Respondent

In presence of: -
PAY RESEARCH BUREAU

Co-Respondent

The present matter has been referred to the Tribunal for arbitration by the Commission 
for Conciliation and Mediation ("CCM") pursuant to section 69 (7) of the Employment Relations 
Act. It should be noted that at the time of referral, the Respondent was known as the Rights 
Management Society. However, with the proclamation of the Copyright (Amendment) Act 2017 
(Act 13 of 2017), with effect from 14 December 2017, it is now known as the Mauritius Society 
of Authors ("MASA") same as it was previously known under the previous Copyright Act 1997. 
The Terms of Reference of the dispute read as follows:

1
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Whether the Board of the Rights Management Society could recommend the 
post of Senior Officer/Lead Licensing to the PRB.

Each party was assisted by Counsel. Mr J. Moirt appeared for the Disputant. Whereas, 
Mr R. Daureeawo, SC appeared for the Respondent. The Co-Respondent was assisted by Mrs C. 
Servansingh-Bhuruth, Senior State Counsel, instructed by Mrs R. Vydelingun, Principal State 
Attorney. Each party has submitted their respective Statement of Case in the present matter.

THE DISPUTANTS AMENDED STATEMENT OF CASE

The Disputant was appointed as Licensing Officer on 1 July 2003 and his employment 
contract was renewed on 1 July 2005 for a period of three consecutive years. On 7 August 2007, 
the Disputant was selected by the Respondent to lead the Licensing Department. The Pay 
Research Bureau ("PRB"), in its 2008 report, created a new grade of Senior Officer on the 
Respondent's establishment to perform polyvalent duties and be multifunctional. On 16 June 
2008, the Disputant was offered the post of Senior Officer/Lead Licensing Officer on a 
permanent and pensionable basis and was confirmed in a substantive capacity as same on 10 
October 2009 with effect from 01 July 2009. Between 23 August 2012 to 18 January 2013, the 
Disputant acted as Responsible Officer looking after the Respondent's day-to-day affairs. The 
Respondent, on 22 October 2012, confirmed that Disputant held the post of Senior Officer/Lead 
Licensing Officer on its establishment. On 25 April 2014, the Respondent confirmed that the 
Disputant's salary scale had been aligned to that of the grade of Senior Officer.

It has further been averred that the Disputant, by a letter dated 11 July 2014, 
complained that the failure of the Respondent to submit proposals to the PRB in relation to the 
post of Senior Officer/Lead Licensing Officer has caused and is continuing to cause him severe 
prejudice. The Respondent instead embarked upon an unlawful and unilateral modification of 
the terms and conditions of his employment contract - letter dated 1 September 2015 from the 
Respondent refers. Disputant, on 31 October 2015, had no other alternative than to report a 
labour dispute under section 68 (1) of the Act.

2
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In the circumstances and on the basis of his qualifications, experience, merit and 
seniority, the Disputant had the legitimate expectation that the post of Senior Officer/Lead 
Licensing Officer appears in the PRB Report 2016, which was not the case. He was instead 
transferred to the Distribution Section on 22 January 2016 and after appealing, the said transfer 
was cancelled. The Disputant considers that his long and unblemished career at the 
Respondent's service has been ignored altogether and the decision not to submit any proposals 
to the PRB in relation to the post of Senior Officer/Lead Licensing Officer was based on 
irrelevant considerations, which if maintained would indefinitely affect his seniority and 
subsequently his pension entitlement. The Disputant therefore prays that the Tribunal awards 
that the Respondent be ordered to submit relevant proposals to the PRB regarding the post of 
Senior Officer/Lead Licensing Officer.

THE RESPONDENT'S REPLY TO THE DISPUTANT'S AMENDED STATEMENT OF CASE

The Respondent has notably averred that its Board, on 14 June 2008, approved the 
appointment of Disputant as Lead Licensing Officer on a permanent and pensionable basis. 
There is no provision in the PRB Report 2008 for this grade. The PRB recommended that officers 
in the grade of Licensing Officer should integrate the grade of Officer - post restyled to 
Management Support Officer in the PRB Report 2013. The Disputant was appointed to the 
grade of Senior Officer instead of Officer. The Disputant was confirmed in his post by the Board 
on 2 October 2009, but it is not mentioned if he was confirmed as Senior Officer/Lead Licensing 
Officer. It is admitted that Disputant acted as Responsible Officer, he was allocated an 
allowance for same and the assignment was terminated by the Board on 18 January 2013. In 
relation to the letter dated 22 October 2012, it is admitted that the Disputant was designated 
as Senior Officer/Lead Licensing Officer to overlook the day to day running of the Licensing 
section and no further recommendations were submitted to the PRB on the overall structure of 
the former MASA.

The Respondent further avers that the Disputant was appointed as Lead Licensing 
Officer by a letter dated 16 June 2008 and in a second letter of the same date, he was 
appointed as Senior Officer/Lead Licensing Officer. Although no submissions were made for the 
PRB Report 2013, the PRB revised the terms and conditions of service and the basic salary scale. 
The Disputant, on 15 November 2011, opted for the PRB Report 2013. With the Errors, 

3
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Omissions and Classification Report 2013, the Disputant's salary scale was adjusted taking into 
consideration the revised salary scale of the grade of Senior Officer.

The Respondent further averred that the Disputant's complaint in writing dated 11 July 
2014 was submitted to the PRB on 14 July 2014 and also as a collective proposal for the PRB 
Report 2016 on behalf of the Respondent's employees. Respondent added the name of 
Disputant to allow him an opportunity to write his own job description and submit same to the 
PRB for consideration. It has also been averred that an internal report dated 6 August 2014 on 
the review of the Disputant's title was circulated to the Human Resource Committee. The 
Committee noted that there has been misinformation and confusion since the beginning in his 
appointment - he was appointed to the post of Senior Officer/Lead Licensing Officers which 
does not exist on the establishment and was also given the top salary scale of the post of Senior 
Officer. As the post did not exist, the Committee requested that he use the designation of 
Senior Officer.

In relation to the Disputant's report of the dispute, the stand of the Board as per its 
meeting held on 25 November 2016 is that the post of Senior Officer/Lead Licensing Officer is 
not under establishment and does not appear in the PRB Reports of 2008, 2013 and 2016. As 
the Respondent is reviewing its structure, it cannot say if the aforesaid post will appear in the 
PRB Report. The Respondent has also averred that there is no record of the Disputant's 
qualifications in relation to the post of Licensing Officer created in the PRB Report 2003. A 
document labelled 'Lead Licensing Officer (New Post)' was submitted on 29 January 2008 to the 
PRB for consideration, but was not taken into account by the latter in its report. No provision 
was made for the post of Senior Officer/Lead Licensing Officer in the PRB Report 2008. 
However, the PRB recommended that Licensing Officers should integrate the grade of Officer, 
which was restyled to Management Support Officer in the PRB Report 2013. The Disputant was 
appointed as Senior Officer instead of Officer on the establishment.

THE CO-RESPONDENT'S STATEMENT OF REPLY

The Co-Respondent has notably averred that the polyvalent grades of Officer and Senior 
Officer were created on the establishment of the Mauritius Society of Authors with the 
publication of the PRB Report in May 2008. The post of 'Senior Officer/Lead Licensing Officer1, 

4
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which the Disputant was offered on a permanent and pensionable basis, did not exist on the 
establishment of the Mauritius Society of Authors as per the PRB Reports of 2003 and 2008; it 
does not appear in subsequent PRB Reports. The Co-Respondent takes note that the Disputant 
was confirmed in a substantive capacity as 'Senior Officer/Lead Licensing Officer' and avers that 
the aforesaid post does not exist on the establishment of the Mauritius Society of Authors. The 
Co-Respondent shall otherwise abide by the decision of the Tribunal.

THE EVIDENCE OF WITNESSES

Mr Alain Gaetan Sylvio Arthur, Senior Officer at the Mauritius Society of Authors, was 
called to depose. He joined the MASA as a Licensing Officer on 1 July 2003. On 7 August 2007, 
he was designated by the Board to lead the Licensing Department. The posts of Officer and 
Senior Officer were created in the PRB Report 2008; the former is now called Management 
Support Officer. He produced a letter dated 16 June 2008 from the Respondent (Document A) 
whereby he was offered the post of Senior Officer/Lead Licensing Officer. Referring to 
paragraph 38.16 of the PRB Report 2008, he stated that he had more than four years in service 
and he was in 2007 asked to be the Lead Licensing in the establishment. His scheme of duties is 
annexed to the aforesaid letter (Annex A4 to his Statement of Case). On 10 October 2009, he 
was confirmed in the post of Senior Officer/Lead Licensing Officer (letter produced as 
Document B) with effect from 1 July 2009. From 23 August 2012 to 18 January 2013, he acted 
as Officer-in-Charge of the MASA having the responsibility of overseeing the affairs of the 
Society. He also stated that the MASA wrote a letter (dated 22 October 2012) on his behalf 
confirming that he holds the post of Senior Officer/Lead Licensing Officer.

Mr Arthur went on to state that with the implementation of the Errors, Omissions and 
Classifications Report 2013, his salary was adjusted in April 2014 with that of the post of Senior 
Officer as no recommendations were made for the post of Senior Officer/Lead Licensing Officer 
by the MASA. He accepted the salary of the post of Senior Officer despite assuming the post 
Senior Officer/Lead Licensing. If not, he would have been on the 2008 salary. He thereafter 
wrote, on 11 July 2014, to the then Officer-in-Charge saying that no recommendations have 
been made. He was deprived of a new salary scale in the PRB Report 2013. Despite his letter, 
nothing was done. He was instead told, by letter dated 1 September 2015 (produced as 
Document C), not to use the designation of 'Senior Officer/Lead Licensing' but to use the 

5
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designation of 'Senior Officer', but this was not a decision of the Board. He objected and 
reported a dispute at the Labour Office.

Mr Arthur also stated that he was not informed that the MASA had submitted his 
complaints in July 2014 to the PRB. He confirmed having written his own job description and 
remitted same to the Officer-in-Charge of the MASA to make recommendations to the PRB. He 
was not informed if same was forwarded to the PRB. The PRB Report 2016 did not have any 
recommendations for the post of Senior Officer/Lead Licensing Officer. Thereafter, he was 
transferred to the Distribution Department as from 2 February 2016, to which he objected. The 
transfer was then annulled with immediate effect. He is asking for the Board of the MASA to 
recommend the aforesaid post to the PRB as he is assuming its duties which is bears higher 
responsibility than that of Senior Officer. If no recommendations are made, there will be an 
impact on his salary, his future and his pension. He is at the MASA since July 2002 and expected 
that the necessary would be done but unfortunately this was not so and he is being deprived of 
a progress in his career. He has been deprived of a post conferred to him which has not been 
published in the PRB Report.

Mr Arthur was questioned by Counsel for the Respondent. He notably stated that in 
2007, he was asked to lead the Licensing Department. He agreed that no post was mentioned 
and received an allowance of Rs 2000 for this. He produced a letter dated 7 August 2007 
(Document D) asking him to lead the Licensing Department. He agreed that the post of Lead 
Licensing Officer did not exist. He agreed that to become Senior Officer as per the PRB Report, 
one has to be an Officer. He did not have the qualifications for the post of Officer as prescribed 
by the PRB but he did possess the experience. He did not have the qualifications for Senior 
Officer but had other qualifications which the Board accepted.

Mr Arthur also produced an organigram of the MASA (Document E). He agreed that 
same did not refer to Lead Licensing Officer but mentions Licensing Senior Officer. He produced 
a letter dated 21 January 2013 (Document F) whereby his assignment as Officer-in-Charge was 
terminated by the Board of the MASA. The post of Senior Officer/Lead Licensing Officer does 
not exist on the establishment of the MASA as per the PRB. The recommendation he is seeking 
will have a favourable impact on his salary and indirectly he is fighting for an improvement in 
his salary. He is not aware that pursuant to the 2017 amendment of the law, there will be a 
reorganisation of the MASA's organigram, but is aware that the Board will be newly 
recomposed.
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In re-examination by his Counsel, Mr Arthur notably clarified that as per the organigram 
produced, he reports to the Director-General as do all Heads of Department. Referring to 
Document C, it is stated that the post of Senior Officer/Lead Licensing does not exist at the 
Society as, according to him, no recommendations were made to the PRB in 2013.

Miss Kisbin Taucoory, Management Support Officer, was called to depose on behalf of 
the Respondent. She stated that she is familiar with the file of the Disputant. The Disputant was 
confirmed in a substantive capacity on 10 October 2009. The qualifications for the post of 
Officer are School Certificate with five credits and Higher School Certificate with two 'A'-Levels 
and IC3. The Disputant has four subjects at 'O'-Level and no Higher School Certificate according 
to records. In 2008, the Disputant did not have the qualifications to become a Licensing Officer. 
The Board of the Respondent appointed the Disputant as Senior Officer/Lead Licensing Officer 
on 16 June 2008 for which there was no vacancy advertised and no interview held. The PRB 
Report 2008 and 2013 does not make mention of the post of Senior Officer/Lead Licensing 
Officer. The Disputant made representations to the Respondent in a letter dated 11 July 2014 
and this was transmitted to the PRB by the representative of the union. Mr G. Louise, a Director 
of the Respondent who is under interdiction, had sent a list of duties to the PRB. However, the 
post of Lead Licensing Officer was not recommended in the PRB Report 2008.

Miss Taucoory was questioned by Counsel for the Disputant. She notably stated that she 
was assigned with the responsibilities and duties of human resource. Mr Arthur's four years of 
service since joining the Respondent in July 2003 was on a contractual basis. It is not 
recommended at paragraph 38.16 of the PRB Report 2008 that the four years of service in the 
post of Officer must be on a permanent and pensionable basis. The MASA also sent the letter 
dated 11 June 2014 from the Disputant to the PRB as a collective proposal for the PRB Report 
2016. Once the job description questionnaire is filled by the employee, it should be left with the 
Administration Section who will then send it to the PRB. The section to be completed by the 
Supervisor on Mr Arthur's job questionnaire form was incomplete as he did not submit the 
questionnaire to the Administration Section but sent it directly to the PRB. The post of Senior 
Officer/Lead Licensing Officer does not exist, but she accepted that Mr Arthur received a letter 
of appointment from the Board. She could not say if it is the duty of the MASA to make 
recommendations with regard to the post of the Disputant but stated that it is the Board which 
decides.
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Miss Taucoory was also questioned by State Counsel for the Co-Respondent. She agreed 
that the MASA could not have offered the post of Senior Officer/Lead Licensing Officer, which 
does not exist under the PRB Report 2008, on a permanent and pensionable basis. The PRB 
Report 2008 recommended that the grade of Licensing Officer be phased out and that 
incumbents integrate the grade of Officer. There is no scheme of service on record for the post 
of Senior Officer at the MASA. She agreed that there needs to be a scheme of service before an 
appointment is made to any post.

Mr Jean Yves Hansley Antoine, Senior Officer at the MASA, was also called to depose by 
Counsel for the Respondent. He referred to a letter dated 21 July 2014 signed by himself and 
one Mr Patrick Ballard entitled 'Proposals for the PRB Report 2016' addressed to the Director of 
the PRB (produced as Document G). He also produced a letter dated 16 January 2015 from the 
Respondent (Document H) addressed to the PRB submitting the job description questionnaire 
of employees. The Disputant's job description questionnaire was submitted directly to the PRB. 
The PRB had requested the Respondent by way of letter dated 9 September 2014 (produced as 
Document J) to make arrangements for the distribution of the job description questionnaire 
and guidelines to a list of ten officers. The name of the Disputant did not appear and it was Dr 
Boodhun, the then Officer-in-Charge, who requested him to add the name of Mr Arthur.

Mr Antoine was questioned by Counsel for the Respondent. Referring to the letter 
dated 16 January 2015, he confirmed that Mr Arthur had sent his job description questionnaire 
directly to the PRB. He therefore did not send any job description questionnaire for the 
Disputant to the PRB as it was not made available to the Administration Section for onward 
transmission to the PRB. The request of the PRB as per the letter dated 9 September 2014 was 
addressed to the Officer-in-Charge. The letter dated 21 July 2014 signed by himself and Mr 
Ballard are proposals sent on behalf of employees on their own initiative and he agreed that 
decisions rest with the Board.

Mrs Sanyukta Nobutsing-Shibloll, Job Analyst, was called to depose on behalf of the Co- 
Respondent. She stated that representations come from unions, management and individuals 
in preparing a PRB Report. From records, there were no representations received for the job of 
Lead Licensing Officer at the PRB. Recommendations made by the PRB are applicable for grades 
on the pensionable and permanent establishment and not for contract officers. Job description 
questionnaires are forms filled by officers sampled, is used for re-assessing jobs and does not
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amount to representations for the creation of a post. Representations are used to make 
recommendations in the report but the job description questionnaire is used more as a process 
in their work towards the publication of the report. They did receive the job description 
questionnaire of Mr Arthur and as it was not signed by the Supervisor, it was not valid for the 
PRB. As per records, no representations nor complaints were received from the Disputant by 
the PRB. A scheme of service is the legal document to be used for appointment of an officer.

Upon questions from Counsel for the Disputant, Mrs Nobutsing-Shibloll notably stated 
that between one report and the next, there could be changes made to the job description of a 
post and this is the purpose of the questionnaire. The job description questionnaire of Mr 
Arthur was not considered as the Supervisor's signature was missing. Their records were not 
updated for the post of the Disputant. Recommendations cannot be made to posts that do not 
exist. Referring to the letter dated 9 September 2016 (Document J) from the PRB to the Officer­
in-Charge of the MASA, it is the latter's responsibility to return the duly filled job description 
questionnaires to the Bureau.

In reply to questions from Counsel for the Respondent, Mrs Nobutsing-Shibloll notably 
stated that the PRB studies all representations and the final decision rests with the Director of 
the PRB. It is not necessary that all requests are acceded to. The option form does not concern 
the PRB, they just recommend and implementation is left to the Ministry of Civil Service. Under 
re-examination, Mrs Nobutsing-Shibloll notably stated that they analyse the job description 
questionnaire to see whether there has been an evolution in the job between two reports. It is 
used for job evaluation and as a technique for salary determination by the PRB.

THE SUBMISSIONS OF COUNSEL

Learned Counsel for the Disputant submitted that the Terms of Reference is asking 
whether the Board of the Respondent could recommend the post of Senior Officer/Lead 
Licensing Officer to the PRB. If not, there will be no recommendation from the PRB. It has not 
been disputed that the aforesaid post was offered to the Disputant and he was confirmed in 
same. The Board is the supreme authority at the Respondent. The Disputant is performing the 
job of Senior Officer/Lead Licensing Officer but is only paid as a Senior Officer. He has even 
acted as responsible officer of the Respondent organisation and has the qualities and 
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experience to act as such. Counsel concluded by stating that the Terms of Reference is within 
the jurisdiction of the Tribunal and that an award should be made for the Respondent to make 
the appropriate representations to the PRB.

Learned Senior Counsel for the Respondent submitted that it is admitted that the 
Disputant was offered the post of Senior Officer/Lead Licensing Officer in 2008 and was 
confirmed thereafter. Letters have been regrettably issued giving high hopes to a person who is 
not qualified to be. The Disputant is in a position to which he is ineligible. The Respondent 
cannot recommend somebody to hold the post of Senior Officer/Lead Licensing Officer, which 
does not exist, without having been legitimately an Officer. The Disputant does not hold the 
required qualifications and this is why the MASA is resisting the issue of recommending his post 
to the PRB. Senior Counsel submitted that this is not a fit and proper case to make the 
recommendation.

Learned Senior State Counsel for the Co-Respondent notably submitted that the PRB is 
abiding by the decision of the Tribunal. She stated that although the Board is supreme, the 
MASA has chosen to be governed by the PRB Report and must be in line with same. If 
representations are to be made, then the PRB will consider whether it is proper to create the 
post or not.

THE MERITS OF THE DISPUTE

The Terms of Reference of the present matter is asking the Tribunal to determine 
whether the Board of the Respondent could recommend the post of Senior Officer/Lead 
Licensing Officer to the PRB.

The Disputant Mr Arthur has been working at the Respondent since July 2003. Initially 
on contract as Licensing Officer, the Board of the Respondent designated him to lead the 
Licensing Department in August 2007. By way of letter dated 16 June 2008 from the MASA, Mr 
Arthur was offered the post of Senior Officer/Lead Licensing Officer. This offer can be 
sufficiently gleaned from the aforesaid letter as follows:
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Mr Alain Arthur

Dear Colleague

Following your contribution and personal effort and investment in terms of time in the 
success of the Society and upon my recommendation to the Committee, it is with 
pleasure that I am informing you that the Board has decided to offer you the post of 
Senior Officer / Lead Licensing Officer on a permanent and pensionable basis with a 
monthly salary of twenty three thousand and two hundred rupees Rs 23,200 plus 
travelling allowance.

Thereafter, the Disputant, in October 2009, was confirmed in the post of Senior 
Officer/Lead Licensing Officer with effect from 1 July 2009. This may be noted from a letter 
dated 10 October 2009 from the MASA under the hand of the Director General:

Dear Mr. Arthur

Re: Confirmation for the post of Senior Officer/Lead Licensing Officer

I am directed by the Board of Management of the Mauritius Society of Authors (MASA) 
to inform you that you have been confirmed on a substantive capacity for the post of 
Senior Officer/Lead Licensing Officer with effect as from 1st July 2009.

The Disputant has not denied that the post of Senior Officer/Lead Licensing Officer does 
not exist on the establishment of the Rights Management Society, now MASA, nor has it been 
mentioned in the various PRB Reports. In fact, on 1 September 2015, the Disputant was even 
informed, on behalf of the Director, not to use the designation of the aforesaid post but to use 
that of Senior Officer. However, he did not agree to same and reported a labour dispute 
thereon.

The PRB Report 2013 did not contain any recommendations in relation to the post of 
Senior Officer/Lead Licensing Officer and the Disputant wrote to the then Officer-in-Charge of 
the Respondent highlighting this issue. Furthermore, the Respondent's representative 
confirmed that a letter dated 11 June 2014 was sent to the PRB as a collective proposal for the 
upcoming PRB Report in 2016.
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Mr Hansley Antoine, a Senior Officer at the Respondent, also confirmed that the 
Disputant was given a job description questionnaire to fill, that same was forwarded directly to 
the PRB and was not made available to the Administration Section for onward transmission. It 
was not disputed that Mr Arthur's job description questionnaire was unsigned by his Supervisor 
as is required in the form.

Notwithstanding the endeavours of the Disputant, the post of Senior Officer/Lead 
Licensing Officer was not recommended in the PRB Report of 2016. The Disputant has therefore 
reported the present labour dispute asking that the aforesaid post be recommended to the PRB 
by the Respondent's Board. It should be noted that the Board is entrusted with the 
administration of the MASA under the Copyright Act 2014 (Act 2 of 2014).

Although the post of Senior Officer/Lead Licensing Officer does not exist on the 
Respondent's establishment nor was it ever recommended in the PRB Reports, it has not been 
in doubt that the Disputant was offered the aforesaid post on a permanent and pensionable 
basis and was even confirmed in same with effect from 1 July 2009 by the Board of the MASA.

Would it therefore have been in order for the Board of the MASA to have offered the 
post of Senior Officer/Lead Licensing Officer to Mr Arthur and have thereafter confirmed him in 
same when the post is non-existent on its own establishment? The powers of the Board in the 
appointment of its staff, as per section 44 of the Copyright Act 2014, notably provides as 
follows:

44. Appointment of staff

(1) The Board shall appoint on such terms and conditions as 
appropriate —

(b) such other staff as may be necessary for the proper 
discharge of the functions of the Society.

(2) The staff referred to in subsection (l)(b) shall be under the 
administrative control of the Director.
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It may be noted that this provision is not significantly different from section 33 of the 
previous Copyright Act 1997 (repealed by the Copyright Act 2014 on 31 July 2014) which dealt 
with appointment of staff by the Board. The powers of the Board enable it to appoint staff as 
may be necessary for the proper discharge of the functions of the MASA on terms and 
conditions as appropriate. Thus, if the Board has deemed it fit to appoint and confirm the 
Disputant to the post of Senior Officer/Lead Licensing Officer, it would be well within its 
powers.

The qualifications of the Disputant have also been made an issue in relation to this 
dispute by the Respondent. Although, the Disputant did not deny that he did not possess the 
qualifications for the post of Officer as recommended by the PRB Report or even for the post of 
Senior Officer, he has relied mainly on his experience acquired. The Disputant has also 
highlighted the fact that he was designated as Officer-in-Charge of the MASA from 23 August 
2012 to 18 January 2018.

Counsel for the Respondent has strongly contended that the post of Senior Officer/Lead 
Licensing Officer cannot be recommended by the Respondent's Board in as much as the 
Disputant is not even qualified to be an Officer, let alone a Senior Officer. Despite the stand of 
the Respondent, it cannot at this stage be said what the requisite qualifications for the post of 
Senior Officer/Lead Licensing Officer would be if ever the post were to be recommended by the 
PRB. This exercise would be for the PRB to undertake if ever it were to draw up 
recommendations for the aforesaid post.

The Tribunal, in relation to the issue of qualification, would also wish to point out that 
the dispute at hand is not asking it to assess the qualifications of the Disputant nor is it asking 
the Tribunal to determine whether the Disputant is qualified to be in his actual appointment at 
the MASA.

Indeed, the Tribunal must pay heed to what was stated in by the Supreme Court in the 
matter of Air Mauritius Ltd v Employment Relations Tribunal [2016 SCJ103]:

Under section 70 (1) the Tribunal is required to enquire into the substance of the dispute 
that is referred to it and to make an award thereon and it is not empowered to enquire 
into any new matter that is not within the terms of reference of the dispute.
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The facts in the present matter have also revealed that following a letter dated 9 
September 2014 from the PRB, the Disputant was given a job description questionnaire to fill. 
He did so and submitted same directly to the PRB instead of the Respondent's Administration 
Section without having had his Supervisor sign same. As per the evidence of the representative 
of the PRB, the aforesaid questionnaire was invalid for lack of the Supervisor's signature.

Despite the PRB not having considered the Disputant's job description questionnaire, 
the representative of the PRB has clearly explained that same is used for re-assessing jobs and 
does not amount to representations for the creation of a post. The questionnaire also helps in 
noticing changes in the job description of a particular post. It cannot therefore be said the post 
of Senior Officer/Lead Licensing Officer was not recommended in the PRB Report of 2016 due 
to the PRB deeming the Disputant's questionnaire to be invalid.

The Disputant, in the present matter, contends that the Board of the Respondent should 
recommend the post of Senior Officer/Lead Licensing Officer to the PRB as he is assuming 
duties which are higher to that of Senior Officer. He is being deprived of a post to which he was 
appointed and does not exist in the PRB Reports.

The Disputant has also stated that recommending the post will have an impact on his 
salary, his future and pension. However, the Tribunal notes that it would be speculative to state 
what the impact of the aforesaid post would be in being recommended. As per the Terms of 
Reference, the Tribunal is not being asked to determine whether the post of the Disputant 
should be recommended by the Board to the PRB, but to simply determine whether the Board 
could recommend the aforesaid post itself to the PRB. A distinction should be made between 
the Disputant and the post in lite. Moreover, this does not necessarily imply that it would be 
the Disputant who would be occupying the aforesaid post, depending on its conditions and 
requirements, if same is recommended by the PRB.

Regarding Learned Senior Counsel for the Respondent's contention that what the 
Disputant is asking for is in relation to his remuneration and salary, the Tribunal notes that the 
Disputant agreed that this would have an indirect impact on his salary and that Learned Senior 
Counsel has conceded that it is indirect. As previously noted, we are not in a position to say 
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what the recommendations, if any, in relation to the post would be. Moreover, the Tribunal has 
already ruled on a plea in limine litis raised by the Respondent on this very issue.

It has been seen that the Board of the Respondent, in their wisdom, did clearly offer the 
post of Senior Officer/Lead Licensing Officer to Mr Arthur on 16 June 2008 and subsequently 
confirmed him as same on 10 October 2009. If it were the stand of the Board that the Disputant 
is not qualified to hold the aforesaid post or even the post of Senior Officer, to which he is 
being paid, it would have been open for the Board to seek appropriate remedies to have Mr 
Arthur removed from the post he occupies. However, no such demarches have been borne out 
in the present matter.

The Tribunal cannot also see what prejudice will be caused to the Respondent if the post 
of Senior Officer/Lead Licensing Officer were to be recommended to the PRB nor has the 
Respondent adduced any evidence to this effect, save for the issue of the Disputant's 
qualifications. On the contrary, recommending the post would demonstrate its importance in 
the Respondent's organisation, if the Board does so consider.

In having offered and confirmed the post of Senior Officer/Lead Licensing Officer to the 
Disputant, the Board should abide to its responsibilities and make this post a reality on its 
establishment by, at the very least, recommending the post to the PRB. The Tribunal can only 
therefore find that the Board of the Rights Management Society, now MASA, can recommend 
the post of Senior Officer/Lead Licensing Officer to the PRB.

The Tribunal awards accordingly.
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SD Shameer Janhangeer 
(Vice-President)

SD Raffick Hossenbaccus 
(Member)

SD Karen K. Veerapen (Mrs) 
(Member)

SD Yves Christian Fanchette 
(Member)

Date: 14th May 2019
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General Notice No. 1030 of 2019

NATIONAL TRANSPORT AUTHORITY

Notice is hereby given that the following applications have been received by the Authority and the 

Authority will shortly hear the said applications.

APPLICATION FOR PUBLIC ‘A’ CARRIER’S LICENCE

S.N

309

310

311

312

313

314

315

316

317

318

Licence No Name of Applicant Weight of
Vehicle Base of Operation Description of 

goods

NTA/PUB/A/LC/19477 RAMBURN Tanuja (bom 
MONOHUR)

1727ZD90 
5285kg 

GV
Royal Road, Paillote General Goods

NTA/PUB/A/LC/19478 PEERBOCUS Mohammad
Wazeer Sulliman

NYP 
5000kg 

GV

La Rue La Paix, Port 
Louis General Goods

NTA/PUB/A/LC/19479 FURREEA Mohammad 
Abedin

NYP
6000kg

GV

Kashmir Road, Plaine 
Magnien General Goods

NTA/PUB/A/LC/19480 aroclim ltee
NYP

17000kg La Caveme No 1, 
Vacoas General Goods

GV

MARDAYMOOTOO 2391AP11 Rte Vaudagne, 
BambousNTA/PUB/A/LC/19481 Marie Danielle (bom 8000kg General Goods

Jauferally) GV

NTA/PUB/A/LC/19482 BHEEKHARRY Rajendra 
Kumar

EU16 
5600kg

GV

Rivalland Road, Creve 
Coeur General Goods

NTA/PUB/A/LC/19483 Business Line Co Ltd
3391MY14

23260kg 
GV

Railway Road, 
Goodlands General Goods

NTA/PUB/A/LC/19484 SEEBARUTH Roshan
NYP

5300kg Hollywood Nol 
Vacoas General Goods

GV

NTA/PUB/A/LC/19485 LUCKHUN Rajiv
NYP 

3500Kg 
GV

Cite L'Agrement Ave 
Lotus, St Pierre General Goods

NTA/PUB/A/LC/19486 RAMFUL Bhavick

958FB08
14300kg 

GV

More Raffray, La 
Colline Rd, Pointe- 

aux-Canonniers

Petroleum
Products (Diesel)
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NATIONAL TRANSPORT AUTHORITY — continued

S.N Licence No Name of Applicant Weight of 
Vehicle Base of Operation Description of 

goods

319 NTA/PUB/A/LC/19487 RAMJUG Kevin
2163MY05 

7000kg 
GV

Tagore Lane, Mare 
D'Albert

General Goods
+

Water tank

320 NTA/PUB/A/LC/19488 Hollywood Transport Co. 
Ltd

NYP 
3500Kg 

GV
Parboteeah Lane, 
Brisee-Verdiere General Goods

321 NTA/PUB/A/LC/19489 JHINGUT Doorvanand
NYP 

lOOOOKg
GV

Royal Road, Bois 
Pignolet, Terre Rouge

General Goods 
+Bowser/Tank 

+ Waste

322 NTA/PUB/A/LC/19490 J & A Truck Co Ltd
NYP 

32000Kg 
GV

Royal Road, Xavier
After Casela Bambous General Goods

APPLICATION FOR ADDITION AND VARIATION OF PUBLIC ‘A’ CARRIER’S LICENCE

S.N REF NO NAME OF 
APPLICANT

VEHICLE 
NUMBER & 
MAXIMUM 

GROSS 
WEIGHT

BASE OF 
OPERATION

GOODS 
TO BE CARRIED

323 NTA/PUB/A/LC/15563
Associated 
Container 

Services Limited

8954NV12
18390Kg 

GV

Freeport Zone 7, 
Mer Rouge, 
Port-Louis

From: General Goods

To: General Goods +
Horse Transportation (Horses)

324 NTA/PUB/A/LC/15564
Associated 
Container 

Services Limited

2072SP92
19760Kg 

GV

Freeport Zone 7, 
Mer Rouge, 
Port-Louis

From: General Goods

To: General Goods +
Horse Transportation (Horses)

325 NTA/PUB/A/LC/15566
Associated 
Container 

Services Limited

976MR95
17055Kg 

GV

Freeport Zone 7, 
Mer Rouge, 
Port-Louis

From: General Goods

To: General Goods +
Horse Transportation (Horses)

From: General Goods

326 NTA/A/LC/17524 Velogic Haulage
Services Ltd

A1489
20230Kg 

GV

Pailles Road, 
Les Pailles

327 NTA/A/LC/17470 Velogic Haulage 
Services Ltd

1523AG92
8150Kg 

GV

Freeport Zone 7, 
Mer Rouge, 
Port-Louis

To: General Goods +
Horse Transportation (Horses)

From: General Goods

To: General Goods +
Horse Transportation (Horses)
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NATIONAL TRANSPORT AUTHORITY — continued

APPLICATION FOR TRANSFER OF PUBLIC SERVICE VEHICLE (TAXI) LICENCE

S.N REF NO NAME OF APPLICANT VEHICLE 
NUMBER

BASE OF 
OPERATION

46 14619/C From: Heirs Soranah APPADU rep by WW Mitravinda Taxi Car
APPADU 6535AZ10

Cottage

To: Rohit SEEBRUN

APPLICATION FOR TRANSFER OF BASE OF OPERATION OF PUBLIC SERVICE VEHICLE 
(CONTRACT CAR) LICENCE

S.N REF NO NAME OF APPLICANT VEHICLE BASE OF OPERATION 
NUMBER

12 24278/D-2/D Star Holidays Co Ltd
3 cars

5819AG13

From: Julius Coop St, Bemardin de 
St Pierre St, Vallee des Pretes

13 25354/D-2/D Sunlight Car Rental Ltd

3103AP14
7561OC15 To: 6, Ramdonee Lane, Bois 

des Amourettes

3 cars
2201MR19
2202MR19
2222MR19

From: Pagoda Street, Camp Caval, 
Curepipe

To: Charlie Avenue, Palma

APPLICATION FOR TRANSFER OF PUBLIC SERVICE VEHICLE 
(CONTRACT BUS) LICENCE

VEHICLE
S.N REF NO NAME OF APPLICANT NUMBER BASE OF OPERATION

27 31449/E From: Kaviraj HEEROOA 1330MR11 From: Royal Road, Camp Thorel
15-Seater

To: Arvind HEEROOA
To: Royal Road, Camp Thorel

28 31406/E From: Veena VENKATASAMI 4049 From: Appanah Lane, Upper Dagotiere
28-Seater

To: KARISHMA DOBEE TRANSPORT 
CO & LTD

To: L’Escalier Branch Road, 
L’Esperance Quartier Militaire

Any person legally entitled to do so may set out his/her objection/s or other representation/s together with 
his/her name and address and must give the reasons thereof in writing so that these may reach the Secretary 
to the Board, National Transport Authority, MSI Building, Royal Road, Cassis, Port Louis not later than 
on the seventh day of publication of this notice, in the Government Gazette. Any objection, that reaches the 
Secretary to the Board after the prescribed time limit will not be entertained.

MSI Building
Les Cassis
Port Louis
14 May 2019
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General Notice No. 1031 of 2019

NATIONAL TRANSPORT AUTHORITY

Application for taxi licence

Notice is hereby given that the Authority proposes to grant taxi licences on transfer to operate taxis from
Cascavelle Shopping Mall.

2. Only applications from those who satisfy the following criteria will be considered: -

(i) They must be operating from the following bases of operation :

1. Cascavelle Village 10. Palma
2. Beau Songes 11. Fanta Shop (Palma)

3. Bambous 12. Kalimaye (Palma)

4. NHDC Bambous 13. La Forge Lane (Palma)
5. Flic en Flac 14. NHDC (Palma)

6. More. Safeland, Flic en Flac 15. Cite La Ferme, Bambous

7. More Bismic, Flic en Flac 16. Tamarin (Black River)

8. More. De Chazal, Flic en Flac 17 Tamarin Village

9 Le Tarnier, Flic en Flac 18 La Jetee Road (Tamarin)

(ii) They should have operated from their actual base of operation for the past three years;
(iii) They should have a clean criminal record for the last three years;

3. (i) Application forms may be collected at the Licensing Section of the National Transport 

Authority’s Office, MSI Building, Cassis between 09h00 and 15h00 on any working day as 
from 20 May 2019.

(ii) Application forms duly filled in, together with a fee of Rs. 300/- shall be deposited at the 
Licensing Section on 24 May 2019 by 15h00 at latest.

(iii) Applicants should produce the original and copy of their Public Service Vehicle (Taxi) 

Licences and a recent passport-sized photograph.

Note: Applications received after the closing date shall not be considered.

4. WARNING

Any applicant who knowingly makes a false statement in his application shall commit an 
offence under section 160 of the Road Traffic Act and shall, on conviction, be liable to a fine 
not exceeding 10,000 rupees and to imprisonment for a term not exceeding 12 months.

MSI Building
Les Cassis
Port Louis

15 May 2019
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General Notice No. 1032 of 2019

TRADEMARK NOTICES

Data Identification Codes

The data identification codes appearing in the tables below are WIPO standards and are known as 
Internationally recognised Numbers for the Identification of Data (INID) Codes.

NID Codes For Marks

Code Interpretation Code Interpretation Code Interpretation
(310) Application (151) Registration Date (Hl) Registration Number

Number
(511) Nice Classification (730) Applicant’s Name & Address

(320) Filing Date
(540) Description of the (740) Representative’s Name &

(330) Priority Data Mark Address

PATENTS, INDUSTRIAL DESIGNS & TRADEMARKS ACT 2002
(Regulation 38)

Notice is hereby given that the following marks have been accepted under Section 38 of the Patents, Industrial 
Design &Trademarks Act 2002:-

(310)
(730)
(730)

(740)

(511)
(540)

28095/2018 (320) 16/10/2018
Brand Temple Ltd
DBM Industrial Estate, Plaine Lauzun, 
Republic of Mauritius
Ganessen Mooneesawmy, Barrister at Law 
Suite 4B, 4th Floor, Hennessy Court, 
Pope Hennessy Street, Port Louis 
30 and 43
HolyFoods

(310) 27780/2018 (320) 23/08/2018
(730) Hangzhou EZVIZ Network CO., LTD.

No.555 Qianmo Road, Binjiang District, 
Hangzhou, China

(740) Kashish International Limited, IP Agent
16, Autruches Avenue, Quatre-Bomes

(511) (9, 35, 38, 42 and 45)
(540) fluorite logo
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(310) 27779/2018 (320) 23/08/2018
(730) Hangzhou EZVIZ Network CO., LTD.

No.555 Qianmo Road, Binjiang District, 
Hangzhou, China

(740) Kashish International Limited, IP Agent
16, Autruches Avenue, Quatre-Bomes 

(511) (9, 35, 38, 42 and 45)
(540) ezviz (Fig.)

ezviz

(310) 26682/2018 (320) 15/02/2018
(330) 2017-606 15/08/2017 LI
(730) APPLE INC

1 Infinite Loop, Cupertino, CA 95014, 
United States of America.

(740) Dave Boolauky, Attomey-at-Law 
Suite 620, 6th Floor, St James Court, 
St Denis Street, Port-Louis

(511) (9)

(40) FACE ID

(310) 27864/2018 (320) 11/09/2018
(730) KASTURI LTD

A5 Bambous Avenue, Residence St. Luc, 
Forest-Side, Republic of Mauritius 

(511) (30)

<540) THE GOLDEN
PAPRIKA
FACTORY

(310) 28059/2018 (320) 10/10/2018
(730) GODIVA BELGIUM B.V.B.A./S.P.R.L. 

Wapenstilstandstraat 5; 1081 Brussel, 
Belgium

(740) Kashish International Limited, IP Agent
16, Autruches Avenue, Quatre Bornes

(511) (35 and 43)

(40) GODIVA

(310) 28088/2018 (320) 15/10/2018
(730) METAROM GLOBAL S.A.S.

30 rue de la Varenne,
94 100 Saint-Maur des Fosses, France 

(740) Andre Robert, Senior Attorney
No. 8, Georges Guibert Street, Port-Louis 

(511) (30)
(540) METAROM GROUP (& DESIGN) 

^V\etar6m

(310) 28255/2018 (320) 08/11/2018
(730) ENGEN PETROLEUM LIMITED

8th Floor, Engen Court, Thibault Square, 
Cape Town, 8001, Western Cape, 
Republic of South Africa

(740) Dave Boolauky, Attorney at Law
Suite 620, 6th Floor, St James Court, St Denis 
Street, Port-Louis,

(511) (4, 21, 24, 29 and 32)

(540) QUICKSHOP&CO

(310) 28479/2018 (320) 17/12/2018
(730) EMCURE PHARMACEUTICALS LIMITED

Emcure House, T-184, M.I.D.C., Bhosari, 
Pune - 411 026, India

(740) Kashish International Limited
16, Autruches Avenue, Quatre Bornes

(511) (5)

(540) EMVITA

(310) 28427/2018 (320) 07/12/2018
(730) Petroliam Nasional Berhad (PETRONAS)

Tower 1, PETRONAS Twin Towers, Kuala 
Lumpur City Centre, 50088,
Kuala Lumpur, Malaysia

(740) Kashish International Limited (IP Agent) 
16, Autruches Avenue, Quatre-Bomes 

(511) (1,3 and 4)

(540) DURANCE
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(310) 28256/2018 (320) 08/11/2018
(730) ENGEN PETROLEUM LIMITED

8th Floor, Engen Court, Thibault Square, 
Cape Town, 8001, Western Cape, 
Republic of South Africa

(740) Dave Boolauky, Attorney at Law
Suite 620, 6th Floor, St James Court, St Denis 
Street, Port-Louis,

(511) (4, 21, 24, 29 and 32)
(540) QUICKSHOP&CO. (and logo)

(310) 28516/2018 (320) 21/12/2018
(730) Realme Chongqing Mobile

Telecommunications Corp., Ltd.
No.2 Building, No.24 Nichang Boulevard, 
Huixing Block, Yubei District, Chongqing, 
China

(740) Kashish International Limited (IP Agent)
16, Autruches Avenue, Quatre Bornes 

(511) (9, 18,25, 35 and 37)
(540) Realme (Stylized)

realme
(310)
(730)

(740)

(511)
(540)

28524/2018 (320) 24/12/2018
Kia Motors Corporation
12, Heolleung-ro, Seocho-gu, Seoul, 06797, 
Rep.of Korea
Kashish International Limited, IP Agent
16, Autruches Avenue, Quatre-Bomes 
(12)

K2700

(310) 28525/2018 (320) 24/12/2018
(730) KIA MOTORS CORPORATION

12, Heolleung- ro, Seocho-gu, Seoul 06797, 
Rep.of Korea

(740) Kashish International Limited (IP Agent)
16, Autruches Avenue, Quatre Bornes 

(511) (12)

,540> SORENTO

(310) 28526/2018 (320) 24/12/2018
(730) KIA MOTORS CORPORATION

12, Heolleung- ro, Seocho-gu, Seoul 06797, 
Rep.of Korea

(740) Kashish International Limited (IP Agent)
16, Autruches Avenue, Quatre Bornes 

(511) (12)

<540) RIO

(310) 28527/2018 (320) 24/12/2018
(730) KIA MOTORS CORPORATION

12, Heolleung- ro, Seocho-gu, Seoul 06797, 
Rep.of Korea

(740) Kashish International Limited (IP Agent)
16, Autruches Avenue, Quatre Bornes 

(511) (12)

<540) PICANTO
(310)
(730)

(740)

(511)
(540)

28557/2019
Mr. Cedric Holtzer

(320) 08/01/2019

16 rue Boulbonne, 31000 Toulouse, France 
Kashish International Limited (IP Agent)
16, Autruches Avenue, Quatre Bornes 
(9, 35 and 42)
C4U (Stylized)

(310) 28580/2019 (320) 11/01/2019
(730) Okaya Power Pvt. Ltd.

D-7, Udyog Nagar, Rohtak Road, New Delhi - 
110041, India

(740) Kashish International Limited (IP Agent)
16, Autruches Avenue, Quatre-Bomes

(511) (11)

<540) NASAKA
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(310) 28581/2019 (320) 11/01/2019
(730) ALPRO

Vlamingstraat 28, 8560 WEVELGEM, 
Belgium

(740) Kashish International Limited (IP Agent) 
16, Autruches Avenue, Quatre-Bomes

(511) (29, 30 and 32)

5 0 ALPRO

(310) 28663/2019 (320) 23/01/2019
(730) LATHAM & WATKINS LLP

355 South Grand Avenue, Los Angeles,
CA 9007, United States of America 

(740) Kashish International Limited (IP Agent)
16, Autruches Avenue, Quatre Bornes 

(511) (9,41 and 45)

(540) LATHAM & WATKINS

(310) 28730/2019 (320) 04/02/2019
(730) Soulimov Georgiy Yuryevich

Moscow city, Korolenko Street,
7, building 2, apartment 16,
Russian Federation

(740) Kashish International Limited (IP Agent)
16, Autruches Avenue, Quatre Bornes

(511) (5)

(540) PRODETOXON

(310) 28955/2019 (320) 15/03/2019
(730) Alere Toxicology PLC

21 Blacklands Way, Abingdon, Oxfordshire
OX14 1DY, United Kingdom

(740) Andre Robert, Senior Attorney
8 Georges Guibert Street, Port-Louis

(511) (1,5, 9, 10, 42 and 44)

<540) SOTOXA

(310) 28926/2019 (320) 11/03/2019
(730) Aspen Pharmacare Holdings Limited

Building 8, Healthcare Park, Woodlands Drive,
Woodmead, Sandton, Gauteng, South Africa 

(740) Andre Robert, Senior Attorney
No 8, Georges Guibert Street, Port-Louis

(511) (5)

(540) ETHICARE

(310) 28929/2019 (320) 11/03/2019
(730) ONE HEALTH HOLDINGS LTD

Bon Air, Moka 80805, Republic of Mauritius
(511) (5, 10 and 44)
(540) ONE HEALTH LOGO

WQie healt h

(310) 28945/2019 (320) 14/03/2019
(730) ALMUQARRAM AUTO SPARE PARTS 

TRADING LLC
P.O. Box: 77563, Dubai,
United Arab Emirates

(740) Kashish International Limited (IP Agent) 
Kashish International Limited ,16,Autruches 
Avenue, Quatre Bornes, Mauritius

(511) (9 and 12)
(540) asimco logo 

ajnmcc?|
'W1 Jr

(310) 28900/2019 (320) 05/03/2019
(730) SHANGHAI YUNDA EXPRESS CO., LTD

NO.3728, JIASONG MIDDLE ROAD, 
HUAXIN TOWN, QINGPU DISTRICT, 
SHANGHAI, PEOPLE'S REPUBLIC OF 
CHINA,

(740) Pravin Barthia, Trademark Agent
of ENSafrica (Mauritius)
19 Church Street, Port-Louis

(511) (39)
(540) UDA EXPRESS 

udcr.*;
EXPRESS
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(310) 29132/2019 (320) 10/04/2019
(730) Adcock Ingram Intellectual Property

(Proprietary) Limited
1 New Road, Comer of New Road &
7th Street, Midrand, Gauteng, South Africa 

(740) Andre Robert, Senior Attorney
8 Georges Guibert Street, Port Louis 

(511) (5)

<540> ALLERGEX

(310) 28984/2019 (320) 21/03/2019
(730) BIOFARMA

50, me Carnot, 92284 Suresnes Cedex, France 
(740) Me Vashish Bhugoo, Attomey-at-Law

8th Floor, Astor Court, Block B,
Georges Guibert Street, Port-Louis

(511) (5)

<540> ATORPERAX
(310)
(730)

(740)

(511)
(540)

29096/2019 (320) 08/04/2019
Franke Technology and Trademark Ltd 
Sonnenbergstrasse 9, 6052 Hergiswil, 
Switzerland
Andre Robert, Senior Attorney
No. 8, Georges Guibert Street, Port-Louis
(6, 11, 20 s
FRANKE

ind 21)
Logo

(310) 28964/2019 (320) 18/03/2019
(730) GIP Development

2-4, me du Chateau d’Eau,
L-3364 Leudelange, Luxembourg

(740) Pravin Barthia, Trademark Agent
of ENSafrica (Mauritius)
19 Church Street, Port-Louis

(511) (7, 8, 9, 11 and 12)
(540) BLAUPUNKT (device & color)

* BLAUPUNKT
(310) 29133/2019 (320) 10/04/2019
(730) Adcock Ingram Intellectual Property

(Proprietary) Limited
1 New Road, Comer of New Road &
7th Street, Midrand, Gauteng, South Africa 

(740) Andre Robert, Senior Attorney
8 Georges Guibert Street, Port Louis 

(511) (5)

*5401 CITRO SODA
(310) 29158/2019 (320) 16/04/2019
(730) NOVARTIS AG

4002 Basel, Switzerland
(740) Dave Boolauky, Attomey-at-Law

Suite 620, 6th Floor, St. James Court,
St. Denis Street, Port-Louis

(511) (5)

<540> MAYZENT

(310) 29143/2019 (320) 11/04/2019
(730) AMAZON TECHNOLOGIES, INC.

410 Terry Ave. N., Seattle Washington 98109, 
U.S.A.

(740) Mr Pravin BARTHIA, Trademark Agent 
ENSafrica (Mauritius), 19 Church Street, 
Port-Louis

(511) (9, 38 and 41)

<540) AMAZON STUDIOS
(310) 29160/2019 (320) 16/04/2019
(730) PHARMACIE NOUVELLE LIMITED 

Michael Leal Avenue, Les Pailles, 
Republic of Mauritius

(740) Zohra Yusuf NAZROO, Attorney at Law 
No. 12, Frere Felix De Valois Street, 
Port-Louis

(511) (5, 25, 35, 39, 41 and 44)
(540) LEF (Special form)

UBESTt-teAUtt-hHlHITi
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(310) 29184/2019 (320) 22/04/2019
(730) Daniel Steve Nenene

J 65 Rue Yeye, More. Hois, Baie du Tombeau, 
Republic of Mauritius

(511) (35 and 41)

(540) ARTTRAKK.COM

(310) 29185/2019 (320) 22/04/2019
(730) Mediatiz Ltd

Royal Road, Fond du Sac,
Republic of Mauritius 

(511) (35 and 36)
(540) lexpressproperty TRENDS (and logo)

lexpressproperty! TRENDS

(310) 29186/2019 (320) 22/04/2019
(730) Mr Denis Ithier and Mr Loic Forget

Rue des Oursins, 21731, Baie du Tombeau, 
Republic of Mauritius

(511) (42)
(540) Lardwaz (and logo)

(310)
(730)

(511)
(540)

29187/2019 (320) 22/04/2019
Mr Denis Ithier and Mr Loic Forget
Rue des Oursins, 21731, Baie du Tombeau,
Republic of Mauritius 21731, 
(35,41 and 42)
LSL Digital (and logo)

Lardwaz

(310) 29188/2019 (320) 22/04/2019
(730) Media Temple Ltd

404, Sterling Tower, Rue Poudriere, 
Port-Louis, Republic of Mauritius 

(511) (35 and 41)
(540) MAZAVAROO

(310) 29193/2019 (320) 23/04/2019
(730) Linda MAMET

Impasse Bateau Ivre, Pte aux Canonniers, 
Republic of Mauritius

(511) (25)

40) Call Me Cozy

(310) 29192/2019 (320) 23/04/2019
(730) MAURITIUS OIL REFINERIES LIMITED

Quay Road, Port Louis, 11615, 
Republic of Mauritius

(511) (29 and 30)
(540) VALENTINA and Device

(310) 29190/2019 (320) 23/04/2019
(730) Quadis Ltd

Apt. 5, 157A, Mgr Leen Avenue, Port Louis, 
Republic of Mauritius

(511) (29 and 31)
(540) Naughty Jam (and logo)

NAUGHTY JAM

ARTTRAKK.COM
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(310) 29194/2019 (320) 23/04/2019
(730) Prithiviraj BEEDASSY

Dairy Lane, Floreal, Republic of Mauritius
(511) (2 and 20)
(540) LOVISTA (and logo)

(310) 29195/2019 (320) 24/04/2019
(730) WOZEER Muhammad Arshad

Owadally Lane, Off Road. No.l, Highlands, 
Phoenix, Republic of Mauritius

(511) (39 and 42)
(540) Rockdale Services and Logo

(310) 29202/2019 (320) 24/04/2019
(730) Motor Racing Club Association

28, Vlas Lane, J.F Trotter Street, Beau Bassin, 
Republic of Mauritius

(511) (25 and 41)
(540) MRC- MOTOR RACING CLUB

(310) 29205/2019 (320) 25/04/2019
(730) Mr Kaushik Badry

Calodyne, Grand Gaube, 
Republic of Mauritius 

(511) (35 and 43)
(540) KB - Food-Licious (and logo)

Fwd-Licious

(310) 29210/2019 (320) 26/04/2019
(730) KATAPULT ENGINEERING LTD

Turbine, Vivea Business Park, Moka, 
Republic of Mauritius 

(511) (28,35,41 and 42)
(540) KATAPULT - PLAY. INNOVATE. CREATE

(WORD & LOGO)

KATkPULT
PLAY . INNOVATE. CREATE

(310)
(730)

(511)
(540)

(310)
(730)

(511)
(540)

(310)
(730)

(740)

(511)
(540)

29204/2019 (320) 25/04/2019
Mr Kaushik Badry
Calodyne, Grand Gaube,
Republic of Mauritius
(35 and 43)
Oberge - Inn (and logo)

29206/2019 (320) 25/04/2019
Chue Kee Cheung Miow Hin
24, Allee Pere Laval, Ste. Croix,
Republic of Mauritius
(29 and 30)

29211/2019
TUI AG

(320) 26/04/2019

Karl-Wiechert-Allee 4, 30625 Hannover,
Germany
R.C. Payen, Trademark Agent
IBL LTD, 10 Dr Ferriere Street, Port-Louis
(39,41 and 43)
Logo + destination services

destination
services
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(310) 29212/2019 (320) 26/04/2019
(730) TUI AG

Karl-Wiechert-Allee 4, 30625 Hannover, 
Germany

(740) R.C. Payen, Trademark Agent
IBL LTD, 10 Dr Ferriere Street, Port-Louis

(511) (39,41 and 43)
(540) Logo (DESTINATION SERVICES)

(310)
(730)

(511)
(540)

29213/2019 (320) 26/04/2019
Mohammad Nadiim Khan TAHER
152 Ratsitatane, Camp Levieux, Rose Hill, 
Republic of Mauritius
(29 and 31)
Hilal and logo

JD
Hilal

(310) 29214/2019 (320) 26/04/2019
(730) FMBcapital Holdings Pic

C/o JTC Fiduciary Services (Mauritius) 
Limited, Suite 2004, Level 2, Alexander 
House, 35 Cybercity, Ebene,
Republic of Mauritius

(511) (36) 
(540) First Capital and logo

(310) 29215/2019 (320) 26/04/2019
(730) FMBcapital Holdings Pic

C/o JTC Fiduciary Services (Mauritius) 
Limited, Suite 2004, Level 2, Alexander 
House, 35 Cybercity, Ebene, 
Republic of Mauritius

(511) (36)
(540) First Capital and logo

i-J First Capital

(310) 29216/2019 (320) 26/04/2019
(730) FMBcapital Holdings Pic

C/o JTC Fiduciary Services (Mauritius) 
Limited, Suite 2004, Level 2, Alexander 
House, 35 Cybercity, Ebene,
Republic of Mauritius

(511) (36)
(540) First Capital and logo

(310) 29217/2019 (320) 26/04/2019
(730) FMBcapital Holdings Pic

C/o JTC Fiduciary Services (Mauritius) 
Limited, Suite 2004, Level 2, Alexander 
House, 35 Cybercity, Ebene, 
Republic of Mauritius

(511) (36)
(540) First Capital and logo

O First Capital
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(310) 29231/2019 (320) 29/04/2019
(730) EMMANUEL FERNANDEZ

51 rue de Monceau, 75008 Paris, France
(740) Pravin Barthia, Trademark Agent, 

ENSafrica (Mauritius)
19, Church Street, Port Louis

(511) (43)
(540) L'ARTISAN DU BURGER Logo

(310) 29233/2019 (320) 30/04/2019
(730) The Old Factory Limited

ENL House, Vivea Business Park, Moka, 
Republic of Mauritius

(740) Kaleyevanee Nursiniloo, Barrister-at-Law 
ENL House, Vivea Business Park, Moka 

(511) (35 and 36)
(540) The Roots

(310) 29238/2019 (320) 30/04/2019
(730) GOLDOX CONSTRUCTION MATERIALS 

LTD
Shanghai Street, Jin Fei, Riche Terre, 
Republic of Mauritius

(511) (6)
(540) Goldox Group

Goldox Group

(310) 29239/2019 (320) 30/04/2019
(730) FinChoice Africa Limited

c/o Sanlam trustees International Limited, 
Labourdonnais Village, Mapou, 
Republic of Mauritius

(740) Pravin Barthia, Trademark Agent
of ENSafrica (Mauritius)
19 Church Street, Port-Louis

(511) (36 and 38)
(540) FINCHOICE & ARROW DEVICE

J»finchoice
(310) 29240/2019 (320) 30/04/2019
(730) FinChoice Africa Limited

c/o Sanlam trustees International Limited, 
Labourdonnais Village, Mapou, 
Republic of Mauritius

(740) Pravin Barthia, Trademark Agent
of ENSafrica (Mauritius)
19 Church Street, Port-Louis

(511) (36 and 38)

<540> FOR WHEN
YOU NEED IT

(310) 29241/2019 (320) 30/04/2019
(730) FinChoice Africa Limited

c/o Sanlam trustees International Limited, 
Labourdonnais Village, Mapou, 
Republic of Mauritius

(740) Pravin Barthia, Trademark Agent of ENSafrica 
(Mauritius)
19 Church Street, Port-Louis

(511) (36 and 38)
(540) FC & ARROW DEVICE
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(310)
(730)

(740)

(511)
(540)

29242/2019 (320) 30/04/2019
FinChoice Africa Limited
c/o Sanlam trustees International Limited, 
Labourdonnais Village, Mapou,
Republic of Mauritius
Pravin Barthia, Trademark Agent 
of ENSafrica (Mauritius) 
19 Church Street, Port-Louis
(36 and 38)
ARROW DEVICE

(310) 29246/2019 (320) 02/05/2019
(730) Mrs VIAN Martine

Old Mill Road, Pereybere,
Republic of Mauritius 

(511) (18 and 25)
(540) SLOANE (and logo)

(310) 29247/2019 (320) 02/05/2019
(730) ACADIA BOUTIQUE LTD

5, Morcellement Orchidees, Rose-Belle, 
Republic of Mauritius

(511) (18 and 25)
(540) ACADIA

(310) 29248/2019 (320) 02/05/2019
(730) ACADIA BOUTIQUE LTD

5, Morcellement Orchidees, Rose-Belle, 
Republic of Mauritius

(511) (25 and 35)
(540) ACADIA BOUTIQUE (Stylised)

ACAOM

(310) 29249/2019 (320) 02/05/2019
(730) ACADIA BOUTIQUE LTD

5, Morcellement Orchidees, Rose-Belle, 
Republic of Mauritius

(511) (18 and 25)
(540) D'ORS LOGO

(310) 29250/2019 (320) 02/05/2019
(730) ACADIA BOUTIQUE LTD

5, Morcellement Orchidees, Rose-Belle, 
Republic of Mauritius

(511) (14 and 25)
(540) JUANITA (Stylised)
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Opposition, if any, to be lodged with the Controller, The Industrial Property Office, Ministry of Foreign Affairs, 
Regional Integration and International Trade (International Trade Division), 11th Floor, Sterling House, Lislet 
Geoffroy Street, Port-Louis, Republic of Mauritius by way of notice and within the delay prescribed by law (2 
months) in accordance with the Patents, Industrial Designs and Trademarks Act 2002.

(310) 29251/2019 (320) 02/05/2019
(730) ACADIA BOUTIQUE LTD

5, Morcellement Orchidees, Rose-Belle, 
Republic of Mauritius

(511) (14 and 25)
(540) TESSA (Stylised)

(310) 29253/2019 (320) 02/05/2019
(730) MWA LIMITED

Lot 44, Domaine de Mont Calme, Rue de la 
Caravelle, Tamarin, Republic of Mauritius 

(511) (36)
(540) DIANE WATKINS Property Consult

DIANE WATKINS

(310) 29254/2019 (320) 03/05/2019
(730) Ashraf Callechan

48 Madras Street, Port-Louis,
Republic of Mauritius

(511) (9 and 25)
(540) Delrigo

(310) 29255/2019 (320) 03/05/2019
(730) Loterie Vert Ltd

18, Cybercity, HSBC Centre, Ebene, 
Republic of Mauritius 

(511) (35, 38 and 41)
(540) Biye Ver

(310) 29256/2019 (320) 03/05/2019
(730) W.C.M LIMITED

28 Velore Street, Port Louis,
Republic of Mauritius

(511) (32)
(540) Floridina - Florida Orange

omi a • * *Flondina
sf > < - fife.* s -s

(310) 29258/2019 (320) 03/05/2019
(730) Corcoran Group LLC

888 Seventh Avenue, New York, 
New York 10106, U.S.A.

(740) Mr Pazany Thandarayan, Attorney-at-Law 
C/o Pravir Palayathan, Royal Road, Gentilly, 
Moka

(511) (36) 
(540) CORCORAN (colour bar) 

corcoran_

Ag. Controller 
Industrial Property Office

Date: 16 May, 2019
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Notice is hereby given that the following marks have been registered under Section 38 of the Patents, Industrial 
Design &Trademarks Act 2002:-

(111) 25879/2019 (151) 10/05/2019
(730) British American Tobacco (Brands) Limited
(730) Globe House, 4 Temple Place, London, WC2R 

2PG, United Kingdom
(740) R.C Payen, Trademark Agent

IBL Ltd, 10, Dr. Ferriere Street, Port Louis
(510) Int Class 34
(540) EPOK STYLISED & DEVICE

m \

/

(111) 25880/2019 (151) 10/05/2019
(730) THE MILKMAN & CO LTD
(730) 59, Le Conte de Lisle Avenue, Quatre Bornes, 

Republic of Mauritius
(510) Int Class 29 and 30

5401 ROYAL DAIRY

(111) 25881/2019 (151) 10/05/2019
(730) Multi Dimension Fashion Ltd
(730) 4C More. Rousset, Royal Road, Grand Baie, 

Republic of Mauritius
(510) Int Class 25 and 35
(540) M CLOTHING (and logo)ID

L O T H i N G

(111) 25882/2019 (151) 10/05/2019
(730) Caprock Capital Private Trust Company Limited
(730) Citadelle Mall, Mezzanine Floor, Office No. 7, 

Sir Virgil Naz Street, Port Louis,
Republic of Mauritius

(510) Int Class 36

(54°) AB Levanf Tax Advisors

(111) 25883/2019 (151) 10/05/2019
(730) New Mauritius Hotels Limited
(730) Beachcomber House, Botanical Garden Street,

Curepipe, Republic of Mauritius
(740) Josephine Robert, Attorney-at-Law

Etude Guy Rivalland, Attorneys-at-Law, 7th 
Floor, Chancery House, Lislet Geoffroy Street, 
Port-Louis

(510) Int Class 35, 39, 41 and 43

(540> LES SALINES BEACHCOMBER

(111) 25884/2019 (151) 10/05/2019
(730) NEDBANK LIMITED
(730) 135 Rivonia Road, Sandton, Gauteng,

South Africa
(740) Dave Boolauky, Attorney-at-Law

Suite 620, 6th Floor, St James Court, St Denis 
Street, Port-Louis

(510) Int Class 36

(54°) NEDBANK BUSINESS PORTAL
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(111) 25885/2019 (151) 10/05/2019
(730) SAPPI LIMITED
(730) 108 Oxford Road, Houghton Estate, 

Johannesburg, 2196, South Africa
(740) Pravin Barthia, Trademark Agent 

ENSafrica (Mauritius), 19 Church Street,
Port-Louis

(510)
(540)

Int Class 1 and 16

SAPPI

(111) 25886/2019 (151) 10/05/2019
(730) CONFORAMA HOLDING
(730) 80 Boulevard du Mandinet, Lognes,

77432 Marne la Vallee Cedex 2
France

(740) Mr.Pravin Barthia, Trademark Agent 
ENSafrica (Mauritius), 19 Church Street, 
Port-Louis

(510) Int Class 20 and 24
(540) NIGHTITUDE (device)

NIGHTITUDE

(111) 25888/2019 (151) 10/05/2019
(730) HELL ENERGY MAGYARORSZAG KFT.
(730) Karoly krt. 1, 1075 Budapest, Hungary
(740)

(510)
(540)

Mary Anne Philips, Attorney at Law 
Etude Philips International Ltd, Room 310, 
St James Court, St Denis Street, Port Louis 
Int Class 30 and 32

XIXO
(111) 25889/2019 (151) 10/05/2019
(730) Ferring B.V.
(730) Polarisavenue 144, NL-2132 JX Hoofddorp, 

Netherlands
(740) Me Vashish BHUGOO, Attorney-at-Law 

8th Floor, Astor Court, Block B, 
Georges Guibert Street, Port Louis

(510) Int Class 5 and 10
(540) MENOPUR

MENOPUR

(111) 25890/2019 (151) 10/05/2019
(730) HYUNDAI MOTOR COMPANY
(730) 12, Heolleung-ro, Seocho-gu, Seoul, Republic 

of Korea
(740) Kashish International Limited, IP Agent

16, Autruches Avenue, Quatre Bornes
(510) Int Class 12

(540) VENUE

(111) 25887/2019 (151) 10/05/2019
(730) GAMING LABORATORIES INTERNATIONAL, LLC.
(730) 600 Airport Road, Lakewood, New Jersey

08701, U.S.A.
(740) Dave Boolauky, Attorney-at-Law

Suite 620, 6th Floor, St. James Court,
St. Denis Street, Port-Louis

(510) Int Class 9, 35, 41, 42 and 45
(540) GAMING LABORATORIES INTERNATIONAL
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(111) 25891/2019 (151) 10/05/2019
(730) RED BULL GMBH
(730) Am Brunnen 1, A-5330 Fuschl Am See, Austria 
(740) Pravin Barthia

ENSafrica (Mauritius), 19, Church Street, 
Port Louis

(510) Int Class 32

,M0) GIVES YOU WIIINGS

(111) 25892/2019 (151) 10/05/2019
(730) RED BULL GMBH
(730) Am Brunnen 1, A-5330 Fuschl Am See, Austria 
(740) Pravin Barthia

ENSafrica (Mauritius), 19, Church Street, Port 
Louis

(510) Int Class 25, 28, 30, 32, 33, 34, 41 and 43
(540) RED BULL (stylized)

Red Bull
(111) 25893/2019 (151) 10/05/2019
(730) JIANGSU LONGRICH BIOSCIENCE CO., LTD.
(730) Longliqi Biological Industry Zone, Changshu 

City, Jiangsu Province, 
People's Republic of China

(740) Pravin Barthia, Trademark Agent 
ENSafrica (Mauritius), 19 Church Street, 
Port-Louis

(510) Int Class 16 
(540) LONGRICH Logo

LONGUICH

(111) 25894/2019 (151) 10/05/2019
(730) PROCHEM LTD
(730) 260, Royal Road, Coromandel, Beau-Bassin, 

Republic of Mauritius
(510) Int Class 3 and 35
(540) PROCHEM(andlogo)___________________

PR^CHEM
Trust Commitment Reliability Innovation Service

(111) 25895/2019 (151) 10/05/2019
(730) Rebecca Melany LIM HON
(730) 7, Best Properties Building, Quatre Bornes, 

Republic of Mauritius
(510) Int Class 30 and 43
(540) Les Delices De Becca and logo

[ SS / i

V/’ej Defies De Decca1

(111) 25896/2019 (151) 10/05/2019
(730) LIRI JEWELLERY LTD
(730) 175, Ruisseau Palmyre, Flic en Flac, 

Republic of Mauritius
(510) Int Class 14 and 35
(540) Liri Logo
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(111)
(730)
(730)

(740)

(510)
(540)

25897/2019 (151) 10/05/2019
Vindemia Distribution SA
5 Impasse du Grand Prado ZAE La Mare, 97438 
SAINTE MARIE, ILE DE LA REUNION
Pravin Barthia, Trademark Agent
ENSafrica (Mauritius), 19 Church Street,
Port Louis
Int Class 29, 30, 32 and 35
my jumbo LE CLUB Logo

(111)
(730)
(730)

(740)

(510)
(540)

25898/2019 (151) 10/05/2019
Vindemia Distribution SA
5 Impasse du Grand Prado ZAE La Mare, 97438 
SAINTE MARIE, ILE DE LA REUNION
Pravin Barthia, Trademark Agent
ENSafrica (Mauritius), 19 Church Street, 
Port Louis
Int Class 29, 30, 32 and 35
jumbo express Logo

(111) 25899/2019 (151) 10/05/2019
(730) ARSERO LTD
(730) Allee Des Roses, Beau Vallon,

Republic of Mauritius
(510) Int Class 35 and 42
(540) ARSERO (and logo)

(111)
(730)
(730)

(510)
(540)

25900/2019 (151) 10/05/2019
First Solo Foods Ltd
36, Route Desbouchers, Roche Bois, 
Republic of Mauritius
Int Class 29 and 43
King's Boulette (and logo)

(111) 25901/2019 (151) 10/05/2019
(730) THE WINE SORCERER LTD
(730) De Burgh Sir Edwards Street, Allee Des Cypres, 

Floreal 74106
Republic of Mauritius

(740) R.C Payen, Trademark Agent
IBL Ltd, 10, Dr. Ferriere Street, Port Louis

(510) Int Class 33, 35 and 39
(540) The Wine Sorcerer logo

(111) 25902/2019 (151) 10/05/2019
(730) FSS DISTRIBUTORS LTD
(730)

(510)
(540)

Hawaldar Road, Camp Diable, 
Republic of Mauritius
Int Class 3

STASOFT
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PATENTS, INDUSTRIAL DESIGNS & TRADEMARKS ACT 2QQ2 — continued

(111) 25903/2019 (151) 10/05/2019
(730) Knight Trading Agency Co. Ltd
(730) Avenue St. Vincent de Paul, Les Pailles 11221, 

Republic of Mauritius
(510) Int Class 18 and 25
(540) GB & Logo

i.B

(111) 25904/2019 (151) 10/05/2019
(730) ELITE OPTICS LTD
(730) 81, SSR Street, Port Louis, 112-07,

Republic of Mauritius
(740) Zohra Yusuf NAZROO, Attorney-at-Law

No. 12, Frere Felix De Valois Street, Port-Louis
(510) Int Class 3 and 35
(540) Maison Suhotoo (special form)

a non

(111) 25905/2019 (151) 10/05/2019
(730) ABSA BANK LIMITED
(730) 7th Floor, Barclays Towers West, 15 Troye

Street,Johannesburg, Gauteng, South Africa 
(740) Dave Boolauky, Attorney-at-Law

Suite 620, 6th Floor, St James Court, St Denis 
Street, Port-Louis

(510) Int Class 36

(54°’ BRING YOUR

POSSIBILITY TO
LIFE

(111)
(730)
(730)

(740)

(510)
(540)

25906/2019 (151) 10/05/2019
Monster Energy Company
1 Monster Way, Corona, California 92879, 
U.S.A.
Dave Boolauky, Attorney-at-Law
Suite 620, 6th Floor, St. James Court,
St. Denis Street, Port-Louis
Int Class 32
Predator Tiger Design

(111) 25907/2019 (151) 10/05/2019
(730) KANSAI PAINT CO., LTD.
(730) 33-1, Kanzaki-cho, Amagasaki-shi, Hyogo, 

Japan
(740) Dave Boolauky, Attorney-at-Law

Suite 620, 6th Floor, St. James Court,
St. Denis Street, Port-Louis

(510) Int Class 2 and 3
(540) KANSAI PAINT logo (colour)

(111) 25908/2019 (151) 10/05/2019
(730) GCIH Trademarks Limited
(730) 25/F., OTB Building, 160 Gloucester Road, 

Wanchai, Hong-Kong
(740) Pravin Barthia, Trademark Agent 

ENSafrica (Mauritius), 19 Church Street, 
Port-Louis, Port Louis

(510) Int Class 30
(540) CRISPY and Dinosaur Device

KANSAI
PAINT

Ag Controller
Industrial Property OfficeDate: 16 May, 2019
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General Notice No. 1034 of 2019

The Patents, Industrial Designs and Trademarks Act 2002 and Regulations 2004

(Section 41, Regulation 54)

Notice is hereby given that the registration of the under-mentioned trademarks has expired 
on the date indicated therein. These marks may be renewed within a period of 3 months 
from the date of expiry, subject to the payment of a surcharge fee of Rs. 1050, failing 
which the marks will be removed from the Register.

TRADEMARK REGISTERED OWNER FILING
DATE

REG. 
NO.

DATE OF 
EXPIRY

AMSTEL AMSTEL BROUWERIJ B.V. [NL] 25/04/1960 2805 25/04/2019

PRINCESS WSM OPERATIONS HOLDINGS 
COMPANY LIMITED [ZA] 03/04/1974 5787 03/04/2019

ELNAPRESS ELNA INTERNATIONAL CORP. 
SA [CH] 09/04/1974 5789 09/04/2019

STATE EXPRESS 555 
INTERNATIONAL 
WITH ROUNDEL & 
RIBBED DESIGN 
(1974)

CTBAT INTERNATIONAL CO. 
LIMITED [HK] 23/04/1974 5806 23/04/2019

RHODINE RHODIA CHIMIE, SOCIETE PAR 
ACTIONS SIMPLIFIES [FR] 24/04/1974 5809 24/04/2019

ENCADE BRISTOL-MYERS SQUIBB
COMPANY [US] 06/04/1988 9597 06/04/2019

FANTA THE COCA-COLA COMPANY 
[US] 20/04/1988 9602 20/04/2019

ULRIC DE VARENS ULRIC DE VARENS SA [FR] 29/04/1988 9607 29/04/2019

CLUB SOCIAL INTERCONTINENTAL GREAT 
BRANDS LLC [US] 01/04/2002 17457 01/04/2019

ROOIBERG
KWV INTELLECTUAL 
PROPERTIES (PTY) LIMITED 
[ZA]

05/04/2002 17462 05/04/2019

MYPROCEL AVENTIS PHARMA S.A. [FR] 09/04/2002 17467 09/04/2019
JOB L'ARTISAN BERNARD CHASTEAU DE 

BALYON [MU] 11/04/2002 17472 11/04/2019
TEVA OUI GARMENTS LTD [MU] 12/04/2002 17477 12/04/2019
REICHLOX SMITHKLINE BEECHAM 

LIMITED [UK] 16/04/2002 17483 16/04/2019
ANTS ANTS TRADING CO. LTD [MU] 19/04/2002 17487 19/04/2019
AMLOR PFIZER PRODUCTS INC. [US] 19/04/2002 17488 19/04/2019
RITZ THE RITZ HOTEL, LIMITED 

[UK] 24/04/2002 17493 24/04/2019

BEAUTIMAT1C BEAUTIMATIC INTERNATION 
LTD [UK] 29/04/2002 17502 29/04/2019

DRINKEATALY AGG PROMOTIONS LTD [MU] 01/04/2009 8000 01/04/2019
18CRR81 CERRUTI CERRUTI 1881 [FR] 01/04/2009 7834 01/04/2019
OGEA DECATHLON [FR] 01/04/2009 7950 01/04/2019

FIXIT AKZO NOBEL COATINGS
INTERNATIONAL B.V. [NL] 01/04/2009 7911 01/04/2019
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2 TICKS AKZO NOBEL COATINGS
INTERNATIONAL B.V. [NL] 01/04/2009 7830 01/04/2019

FUSIONS RESORT 
&SPA

A.M. JOHRI ASSOCIATES LTD 
[MU] 01/04/2009 7951 01/04/2019

SBGA THE STANDARD BANK OF 
SOUTH AFRICA LIMITED [ZA] 01/04/2009 7997 01/04/2019

SBGA ASSETS THE STANDARD BANK OF 
SOUTH AFRICA LIMITED [ZA] 01/04/2009 7998 01/04/2019

SBGA BANK THE STANDARD BANK OF 
SOUTH AFRICA LIMITED [ZA] 01/04/2009 8011 01/04/2019

SBGA GROUP THE STANDARD BANK OF 
SOUTH AFRICA LIMITED [ZA] 01/04/2009 8012 01/04/2019

SBGA WEALTH THE STANDARD BANK OF 
SOUTH AFRICA LIMITED [ZA] 01/04/2009 8013 01/04/2019

AQUALINE MRS JULIANE RENATE 
GASTEIGER [MU] 02/04/2009 7952 02/04/2019

WOK DELIGHTS CUCINA FOODS LTD [MU] 02/04/2009 9341 02/04/2019
LE SOLITAIRE BEER UNION BEVERAGES LTD [MU] 02/04/2009 7953 02/04/2019

COGNADEV COGNADEV ADMINISTRATION 
SERVICES LTD [MU] 03/04/2009 7875 03/04/2019

MAURIZ VITA RICA LIMITED [MU] 03/04/2009 7876 03/04/2019
BODY COLLECTION DAIEM SWALAY [MU] 03/04/2009 7854 03/04/2019
WOOL WORLD BHEEKHARRY SATIADEV [MU] 03/04/2009 8798 03/04/2019

GOLD COIN RAVI BALI DISTRIBUTIONS 
LTD [MU] 03/04/2009 8837 03/04/2019

HEERO RAVI BALI DISTRIBUTIONS 
LTD [MU] 03/04/2009 8836 03/04/2019

GREEN PIECE RHUMERIE DES 
MASCAREIGNES LTEE [MU] 06/04/2009 7954 06/04/2019

RUMOURS IN THE 
DARK

RHUMERIE DES 
MASCAREIGNES LTEE [MU] 06/04/2009 7955 06/04/2019

TEA FOR TWO RHUMERIES DES 
MASCAREIGNES LTEE [MU] 06/04/2009 7877 06/04/2019

CAPRIOSCA RHUMERIES DES 
MASCAREIGNES LTEE [MU] 06/04/2009 7878 06/04/2019

KAMALUFA MRS MARIE JUDEX VALERIE 
[MU] 06/04/2009 7879 06/04/2019

COVERNOX DEPUY SYNTHES, INC. [US] 06/04/2009 7956 06/04/2019

INDIAN STAR BUSH FOODS OVERSEAS 
PRIVATE LIMITED [IN] 06/04/2009 7901 06/04/2019

MAURITIUS 
BUSINESS LAW
REVIEW

LEX COMMUNICATIONS LTD 
[MU] 07/04/2009 8143 07/04/2019

D & S DESIGN 
CASUAL WEAR 
SERIES

SOCIETE BEEKHY [MU] 07/04/2009 7881 07/04/2019

JACKS YK CLOTHING CO. LTD [MU] 07/04/2009 7828 07/04/2019
S D I SERVICE DE 
DEMENAGEMENT 
INTERNATIONAL

SERVICE DE DEMENAGEMENT 
INTERNATIONAL LTEE [MU] 08/04/2009 7855 08/04/2019
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SOLNITCHNI
VOYAGE

MR RAVINDUTH SUNJHOREEA 
[MU] 08/04/2009 7904 08/04/2019

DELICES DES 
OCEANS MAURIDISTRIDOM LTD [MU] 08/04/2009 7957 08/04/2019

RESEARCH 
SOLUTIONS

RESSOL INTERNATIONAL 
LIMITED [MU] 08/04/2009 7931 08/04/2019

EGO MAURITIUS TELECOM LTD 
[MU] 09/04/2009 7958 09/04/2019

STYLIZED A ATC IP LLC [US] 10/04/2009 8891 10/04/2019
POLYN NATEC MEDICAL LTD [MU] 10/04/2009 7882 10/04/2019
POLYN + NATEC MEDICAL LTD [MU] 10/04/2009 7883 10/04/2019
DORITOS PEPSI CO INC. [US] 10/04/2009 7897 10/04/2019

SKIN JURY PIERRE FABRE MEDICAMENT 
[FR] 10/04/2009 8001 10/04/2019

VIMAL 
DISTINCTLY 
DIFFERENT

AMBIKA FOOD STUFF LTD 
[MU] 10/04/2009 7960 10/04/2019

SURAJ'S AMBICA FOOD STUFF LTD 
[MU] 10/04/2009 7885 10/04/2019

AMBICA TEST THE 
BEST

AMBICA FOOD STUFF LTD 
[MU] 10/04/2009 7886 10/04/2019

SHULOGY AUXENTEZ LIMITED [MU] 10/04/2009 7821 10/04/2019
L'aventure Du Sucre 
L'ile Au Sucre He 
Maurice / Mauritius

SUGARWORLD LTD [MU] 10/04/2009 7822 10/04/2019

L'aventure Du Sucre 
Sucre De Canne He 
Maurice / Mauritius

SUGARWORLD LTD [MU] 10/04/2009 7823 10/04/2019

L'aventure Du Sucre 
Histoire De Canne He 
Maurice/Mauritius

SUGARWORLD LTD [MU] 10/04/2009 7824 10/04/2019

CYPRINA VK & K'S TRADING LIMITED 
[MU] 13/04/2009 7961 13/04/2019

TRIMURTHI VK & K'S TRADING LTD [MU] 13/04/2009 7924 13/04/2019
PORTER 39 BGI TRADE MARK [FR] 13/04/2009 7925 13/04/2019

TRADEX OI
SERVICE PRODUCTION
MAINTENANCE INDUSTRIELLE
LTD [MU]

14/04/2009 7888 14/04/2019

SECRET GRAND- 
MERE ANOORADAH POORAN [MU] 14/04/2009 7983 14/04/2019

CHRONO CH INTERNATIONAL LTD [MU] 15/04/2009 7926 15/04/2019

MAUBOUSSOL MR JEAN MICHEL JEROME 
DESIRE [MU] 16/04/2009 7962 16/04/2019

TI BOUSSOL MR JEAN MICHEL JEROME 
DESIRE [MU] 16/04/2009 7963 16/04/2019

FRCIISYS SHAPING 
IT ENVIRONMENTS

FORMATION RECRUTEMENT 
ET CONSEIL INFORMATIQUE 
LIMITEE [MU]

16/04/2009 7889 16/04/2019

ADRENALINE CIRCUS ADVERTISING CO. LTD 
[MU] 16/04/2009 7964 16/04/2019
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JAVE COTTON STICH LTD [MU] 16/04/2009 7891 16/04/2019

PEARL OF INDIA COMPTOIR DES EPICES LTEE 
[MU] 16/04/2009 7927 16/04/2019

TRUMATCH DEPUY SYNTHES, INC. [US] 16/04/2009 7843 16/04/2019
SIBON (special form) AGILISS LTD [MU] 16/04/2009 7860 16/04/2019
VICTORIA & LOGO AGILISS LTD [MU] 16/04/2009 7966 16/04/2019
KBC CARAVAN & 
RESTAURANT

KBC'S RESTAURANT & 
CARAVAN CO. LTD [MU] 17/04/2009 7861 17/04/2019

IREO
IREO MANAGEMENT I, LTD 
[MU]

20/04/2009 7920 20/04/2019

SYSTEME MASTER ANGELINI LTD [MU] 20/04/2009 7917 20/04/2019
MASTER
DEVELOPPEMENT ANGELINI LTD [MU] 20/04/2009 7918 20/04/2019

MASTERING ANGELINI LTD [MU] 20/04/2009 7919 20/04/2019
KINGS CHOICE QUATRO TRADING LTD [MU] 20/04/2009 7928 20/04/2019
CUTE CURTAINS YEN GINA LEE [MU] 21/04/2009 7862 21/04/2019

PAWS PROTECTION OF ANIMALS 
WELFARE SOCIETY (PAWS) [MU] 22/04/2009 7863 22/04/2019

APHRODITE MISS BELINDA MARIE 
STEPHANIE PYNDIAH [MU] 22/04/2009 7967 22/04/2019

ARIANESPACE 
SERVICE & 
SOLUTIONS

ARIANESPACE [FR] 24/04/2009 7968 24/04/2019

CELESTIN PASTRY 
& COOKERY 
TRAINING CENTER

MR CLAUDE CELESTIN [MU] 23/04/2009 7864 23/04/2019

OMNICANE BBHM HOLDINGS LIMITED 
[MU]

23/04/2009 7865 23/04/2019

OMNICANE BBHM HOLDINGS LIMITED 
[MU]

23/04/2009 7866 23/04/2019

INTEGRATING
ENERGIES

BBHM HOLDINGS LIMITED 
[MU]

23/04/2009 7867 23/04/2019

Lexpressproperty.com
Le 1 er Portail 
Immobilier De
L'ile Maurice The 1 st 
Real Estate Portal of 
Mauritius

MEDIATIZ LTD [MU] 24/04/2009 7929 24/04/2019

G2D - THE IT 
DIFFERENCE

G2D DEVELOPMENT SERVICES 
CO. LTD [MU] 24/04/2009 7895 24/04/2019

PERMOFIX SOFAP LTD [MU] 24/04/2009 7916 24/04/2019

ZAF MR. BYE MAMOOD 
OOZEERALLY [MU] 24/04/2009 7892 24/04/2019

ALN ALN TRUST [MU] 24/04/2009 7902 24/04/2019
AL-QAMAR HAN-SHA TRADING LTD [MU] 27/04/2009 7913 27/04/2019
MEHAR HAN-SHA TRADING LTD [MU] 27/04/2009 7914 27/04/2019
KALITE LA TROBE CO. LTD [MU] 27/04/2009 8118 27/04/2019
NAIADE NAIADE RESORTS LTD [MU] 27/04/2009 8089 27/04/2019
NAIADE RESORTS NAIADE RESORTS LTD [MU] 27/04/2009 8090 27/04/2019
NAIADE LUXURY
RESORTS

NAIADE RESORTS LTD [MU] 27/04/2009 8091 27/04/2019

Lexpressproperty.com
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Please disregard this notice ifpayment for the renewal of the registration of the mark has been 
effected prior to this publication.

NAIADE 
HOLIDAYS NAIADE RESORTS LTD [MU] 27/04/2009 8092 27/04/2019

ALTISOURCE OCWEN LUXEMBOURG S.A.R.L 
[LU] 27/04/2009 8195 27/04/2019

ALTISOURCE
PORTFOLIO
SOLUTIONS

OCWEN LUXEMBOURG S.A.R.L 
[LU] 27/04/2009 8196 27/04/2019

PATRICK MAVROS STAMATI LTD [MU] 28/04/2009 7915 28/04/2019
SAMANAH GROUPE ALAIN CRENN [FR] 28/04/2009 8799 28/04/2019
GURTLEY GURTLEY LTD [MU] 29/04/2009 7930 29/04/2019
FARM KING DELICIA FOODS LTD [MU] 29/04/2009 7971 29/04/2019

ULTIMATE SOURS CASBAR INTERNATIONAL LTD 
[MU] 30/04/2009 8263 30/04/2019

International Society 
For Krishna
Consciousness 
(ISKCON)
Founder: Acarya: His 
Divine Grace A.C. 
Bhaktivedanta, Swami 
Prabhupada

INTERNATIONAL SOCIETY FOR 
KRISHNA CONSCIOUSNESS 
(ISKCON) [MU]

30/04/2009 8093 30/04/2019

ISKCON
INTERNATIONAL SOCIETY FOR 
KRISHNA CONSCIOUSNESS 
(ISKCON) [MU]

30/04/2009 8094 30/04/2019

INTERNATIONAL 
SOCIETY FOR COW 
PROTECTION 
(ISCOWP)

INTERNATIONAL SOCIETY FOR
COW PROTECTION [US] 30/04/2009 8096 30/04/2019

GOVINDA'S
INTERNATIONAL SOCIETY FOR 
KRISHNA CONSCIOUSNESS 
(ISKCON) [MU]

30/04/2009 8097 30/04/2019

FOOD FOR LIFE 
GLOBAL - UNITING 
THE WORLD 
THROUGH PURE 
FOOD

INTERNATIONAL SOCIETY FOR 
KRISHNA CONSCIOUSNESS 
(ISKCON) [MU]

30/04/2009 8098 30/04/2019

Date: 13 May, 2019 Ag. Controller
Industrial Property Office
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General Notice No. 1035 of 2019

THE PATENTS, INDUSTRIAL DESIGN & TRADEMARKS ACT 2002
(Regulation 40)

Notice is hereby given that the following industrial design has been registered 
under Section 31 of the Patents, Industrial Designs & Trademarks Act 2002:

Description of Design: SHAPE, BODY AND MODEL OF THE MOKE VEHICLE 
Number & Date of Registration: 000206/2019 of 02 May, 2018
Name & Address of the registered owner: MOKE INTERNATIONAL LTD of Unit 3, 
Wingrave Road, Aston Abbotts, Aylesbury, Buckinghamshire, HP22 4LU, UNITED 
KINGDOM
Name & Address of Creator: MING INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED of RM 1203 
12/F Wing on CTR 111 Connaught Road Central, HONG KONG
Filing Date: 02 May, 2018
Products: Vehicles, apparatus for locomotion by land, air or water.
Class: 12
Name & Address of the approved Agent: Mrs Yasmanee Devi Juddoo-Proag, CITILAW 
Chambers, THE FABRIQUE, Sir Virgil Naz Street, Port Louis, REPUBLIC OF 
MAURITIUS
Representation of Design:

MOKE MODEL- FRONT VIEW MOKE MODEL- REAR VIEW

MOKE MODEL- SIDE VIEW

The Controller 
Industrial Property OfficeDate: 14 May, 2019
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Legal Notices and Advertisements
Third & Last Publication

CHANGE OF NAME

Notice is hereby given that Mr and Mrs 
Navin NANDU of Block D 03, Police Quarters, 
Monreal 1, Coromandel have applied to the 
Honourable Attorney-General for leave to change 
the name of their minor son Garv Hansraaj into 
that of Devansh so that in the future he shall bear 
the name and surname of Devansh NANDU.

Objections, if any, should be filed in the Registry 
of the office of the Attorney-General within 
28 days as from the date of the last publication of 
this notice.

Date: 23 April 2019.

Mr and Mrs Navin NANDU
Applicant 

(Rec. No. 17/406293)

Third & Last Publication

CHANGE OF NAME

Notice is hereby given that Ms Vandana 
TELUCHINA-APPADU of 14, Telfair Avenue, 
Quatre Bornes has applied to the Honourable 
Attorney-General for leave to change her name 
Vandana into those of Bibi Fatimah so that in 
the future she shall bear the names and surname of 
Bibi Fatimah TELUCHINA-APPADU.

Objections, if any, should be filed in the Registry 
of the office of the Attorney-General within 
28 days as from the date of the last publication of 
this notice.

Date: 11 May 2019.

Ms Vandana TELUCHINA-APPADU
Applicant 

(Rec. No. 17/406307)

Third & Last Publication

CHANGE OF NAME

Notice is hereby given that Mr Mohammad 
Yasir RACKLOO of Block G3, La Tour Koenig, 
Hortensia Street, Pointe aux Sables has applied 
to the Honourable Attorney-General for leave 

to change his surname RACKLOO into that 
of BEEGUN so that in the future he shall bear 
the names and surname of Mohammad Yasir 
BEEGUN.

Objections, if any, should be filed in the Registry 
of the office of the Attorney-General within 
28 days as from the date of the last publication of 
this notice.

Date: 29 August 2017.

Mr Mohammad Yasir RACKLOO 
Applicant

(Rec. No. 17/406320)

Third & Last Publication

CHANGE OF NAME

Notice is hereby given that Mr Nishal 
RAMCHURN of 13, D’Aruty De Grand Pre, 
Curepipe has applied to the Honourable Attorney- 
General for leave to change his name Nishal into 
that of Vivek so that in the future he shall bear the 
name and surname of Vivek RAMCHURN.

Objections, if any, should be filed in the Registry 
of the office of the Attorney-General within 
28 days as from the date of the last publication of 
this notice.

Date: 4 January 2018.

Mr Nishal RAMCHURN
Applicant

(Rec. No. 17/406342)

Third & Last Publication

CHANGE OF NAME

Notice is hereby given that Mr Shetty 
CUNDASAMY of 62 16 Giraco Gassen, Cite La 
Ferme, Bambous has applied to the Honourable 
Attorney-General for leave to change his name 
Shetty into that of Naytan so that in the future 
he shall bear the name and surname of Naytan 
CUNDASAMY.

Objections, if any, should be filed in the Registry 
of the office of the Attorney-General within 
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28 days as from the date of the last publication of 
this notice.

Date: 26 April 2019.

Mr Shetty CUNDASAMY 
Applicant

(Rec. No. 17/406340)

Second Publication

CHANGE OF NAME

Notice is hereby given that Mr Haiyen LAM 
CHAM KEE of 18, Dr Sun Yat Sen Street, 
Port Louis, has applied to the Honourable Attorney 
General for leave to change his name Haiyen into 
those of Haiyen Jean Paul so that in the future he 
shall bear the names and surname of Haiyen Jean 
Paul LAM CHAM KEE.

Objections, if any, should be filed in the 
registry of the office of the Attorney General, 
within a period of 28 days as from the last date of 
publication of the said notice in the papers.

Date: 6th May 2019

Mr Haiyen LAM CHAM KEE
Applicant

(Rec. No. 17/406358)

Second Publication

CHANGE OF NAME

Notice is hereby given that Mrs Treelochnee 
SOYFOO (bom GOBIN) of N22, Napoleon 
Bonaparte Street, Vallee Pitot, Port Louis has 
applied to the Honourable Attorney General for 
leave to change her name Treelochnee into those 
of Twahira Nashreen so that in the future she 
shall bear the names and surname of Twahira 
Nashreen GOBIN.

Objections, if any, should be filed in the 
Registry of the office of the Attorney-General, 
within a period of 28 days as from the last date of 
publication of this notice.

Date: 16th November 2017

Mrs Treelochnee SOYFOO
Applicant

(Rec. No. 17/406365)

Second Publication

CHANGE OF NAME

Notice is hereby given that Ms Ayesha Disha 
OOGORAH of Carreau Lalliane, Vacoas has 
applied to the Honourable Attorney General for 
leave to change her names Ayesha Disha into that 
of Alisha so that in the future she shall bear the 
name and surname of Alisha OOGORAH.

Objections, if any, should be filed in the 
Registry of the office of the Attorney-General, 
within a period of 28 days as from the last date of 
publication of this notice.

Date: 7th December 2015

Ms Ayesha Disha OOGORAH
Applicant 

(Rec. No. 17/406371)

Second Publication

CHANGE OF NAME

Notice is hereby given that Mrs Marry Anne 
Sheirlay DEFOIX (bom VICTOR) of 44 Rose 
Street, Cite Richelieu, Petite Riviere has applied 
to the Honourable Attorney General for leave to 
change her names Marry Anne Sheirlay into 
those of Marry Anne Sheirley so that in the future 
she shall bear the names and surname of Marry 
Anne Sheirley VICTOR.

Objections, if any, should be filed in the 
Registry of the office of the Attorney-General, 
within a period of 28 days as from the last date of 
publication of this notice.

Date: 11th October 2017

Mrs Marry Anne Sheirlay DEFOIX 
Applicant 

(Rec. No. 17/406381)

Second Publication

CHANGE OF NAME

Notice is hereby given that Ms. Trisha Luxmi 
GUKHOOL of 25, La Place Street, Rose Hill 
has applied to the Honourable Attorney General 
for leave to change her names Trisha Luxmi 
into those of Trisha Alegra so that in the future 
she shall bear the names and surname of Trisha 
Alegra GUKHOOL.
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Objections, if any, should be filed in the 
Registry of the office of the Attorney-General, 
within a period of 28 days as from the last date of 
publication of this notice.

Date: 14th February 2018

Ms. Trisha Luxmi GUKHOOL
Applicant

(Rec. No. 17/406387)

Second Publication

CHANGE OF NAME

Notice is hereby given that Mr Dev Anand 
HAMUN of Villeneuve Street, Mahebourg has 
applied to the Honourable Attorney General for 
leave to change his surname HAMUN into that 
of HAMAN so that in the future he shall bear the 
names and surname of Dev Anand HAMAN.

Objections, if any, should be filed in the registry 
of the office of the Attorney General within a period 
of 28 days as from the last date of publication of 
the said notice in the papers.

Date: 19.04.2019

Mr Dev Anand HAMUN
Applicant

(Rec. No. 17/406393)

Second Publication

CHANGE OF NAME

Notice is hereby given that Ms Marie-Josee 
TOI of B-10 Cite Malherbes, Curepipe has applied 
to the Honourable Attorney General for leave to 
change her names and surname Marie-Josee TOI 
into those of Marie-Jo POULE so that in the 
future she shall bear the names and surname of 
Marie-Jo POULE.

Objections, if any, should be filed in the registry 
of the office of the Attorney General within a period 
of 28 days as from the last date of publication of 
the said notice in the papers.

Date: 08.05.2019

Ms Marie-Josee TOI 
Applicant 

(Rec. No. 17/406394)

Second Publication

CHANGE OF NAME

Notice is hereby given that Mr and Mrs 
Jean Clarel BLOQUET of 103, Poule Street, 
Tranquebar, Port Louis has applied to the 
Honourable Attorney General for leave to change 
the surname of their minor son BLOQUET into 
that of ZAIRE so that in the future he shall bear 
the names and surname of Aaron Vince ZAIRE.

Objections, if any, should be filed in the registry 
of the office of the Attorney General within a period 
of 28 days as from the last date of publication of 
the said notice in the papers.

Date: 08.05.2019

Mr Jean Clarel BLOQUET
Applicant 

(Rec. No. 17/406401)

Second Publication

CHANGE OF NAME

Notice is hereby given that Mr and Mrs 
Navindeo SEEGOLAM of Allee Jacques, 
Nouvelle France, has applied to the Honourable 
Attorney General for leave to change the name of 
their minor son Pethivee into that of Jevin so that 
in the future he shall bear the name and surname of 
Jevin SEEGOLAM.

Objections, if any, should be filed in the 
registry of the Office of the Attorney General, 
within a period of 28 days as from the last date of 
publication of the said notice in the Gazette.

Date: 10 May 2019

Mr and Mrs Navindeo SEEGOLAM
Applicants 

(Rec. No. 17/406448)s

Second Publication

CHANGE OF NAME

Notice is hereby given that Mr Sydnay 
NARAYNA of 35, Avenue Hennessy, Quatre 
Bornes, has applied to the Honourable Attorney 
General for leave to change his name Sydnay into 
that of Sydney so that in the future he shall bear 
the name and surname of Sydney NARAYNA.
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Objections, if any, should be filed in the 
Registry of the Office of the Attorney General 
within a period of 28 days as from the last date of 
publication of the said notice in the papers.

Date: 09.05.2019

Sydnay Narayna 
Applicant 

(Rec. No. 17/406402)

Second Publication

CHANGE OF NAME

Notice is hereby given that Mr Stephen Dany 
Young Ken That YOUNG CHAUNG SIVE of 
7, Rene Goblet Street, Roches Brunes, has applied 
to the Honourable Attorney-General for leave to 
change his names Stephen Dany Young Ken That 
into that of Stephen so that in the future he shall 
bear the name and surname of Stephen YOUNG 
CHAUNG SIVE.

Objections, if any, should be filed in the 
Registry of the Office of the Attorney-General 
within a period of 28 days as from the last date of 
publication of the said notice in the papers.

Date: 19 June 2018

Mr Stephen Dany Young Ken That 
YOUNG CHAUNG SIVE

Applicant 
(Rec. No. 17/406410)

Second Publication

CHANGE OF NAME

Notice is hereby given that Mr & Mrs Guy 
Fook Sang YOUNG CHAUNG SIVE of 7, Rene 
Goblet Street, Roches Brunes, has applied to the 
Honourable Attorney-General for leave to change 
the names of their minor son Ryan Young Ken 
Kwong into that of Ryan so that in the future he 
shall bear the name and surname of Ryan YOUNG 
CHAUNG SIVE.

Objections, if any, should be filed in the 
Registry of the Office of the Attorney-General 
within a period of 28 days as from the last date of 
publication of the said notice in the papers.

Date: 2 July 2018

Mr & Mrs Guy Fook Sang 
YOUNG CHAUNG SIVE

Applicants 
(Rec. No. 17/406411)

Second Publication

CHANGE OF NAME

Notice is hereby given that Mr Veeren 
PANDAMIKUM & Mrs Joevana 
PANDAMIKUM of Ligne - Bertaud, Vacoas, 
has applied to the Honourable Attorney-General 
for leave to change the name of their minor son 
Servasen into that of Sirvessen so that in the future 
he shall bear the name and surname of Sirvessen 
PANDAMIKUM.

Objections, if any, should be filed in the 
Registry of the Office of the Attorney-General 
within a period of 28 days as from the last date of 
publication of the said notice in the papers.

Date: 4 April 2019

Mr Veeren PANDAMIKUM 
& Mrs Joevana PANDAMIKUM 

Applicants 
(Rec. No. 17/406421)

Second Publication

CHANGE OF NAME

Notice is hereby given that Mr Mohamed Ziad 
MUNGROO of Royal Road, Brisee Verdiere, has 
applied to the Honourable Attorney-General for 
leave to change his surname MUNGROO into 
that of JOOMUN so that in the future he shall 
bear the names and surname of Mohamed Ziad 
JOOMUN.

Objections, if any, should be filed in the 
Registry of the Office of the Attorney-General 
within a period of 28 days as from the last date of 
publication of the said notice in the papers.

Date: 09.05.2019

(Rec. No. 17/406413)

Mr Mohamed Ziad MUNGROO
Applicant

Second Publication

CHANGE OF NAME

Notice is hereby given that Mrs Bibi Husna 
Banu KHOODABUX, hereacting as mother 
& legal administratrix of her minor son Ayman 
MUHAMMAD of Toorabally Rd, Goodlands, 
have applied to the Honourable Attorney General 
for leave to change the name and surname of her 
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minor son Ayman MUHAMMAD into those of 
Muhammad Ayman KHOODABUX, so that 
in the future, he may officially be known under 
the names and surname of Muhammad Ayman 
KHOODABUX.

Objections, if any, should be filed in the 
Registry of the office of the Attorney General 
within a period of 28 days as from the last date of 
publication of the said notice in the papers.

Under all legal reservations.

Dated at Port Louis, this 30th day of April 2019.

Said BAICHOO 
of Bahemia Building, No. 56, 

Sir William Newton St, 
Port-Louis.

Attorney for the Petitioner.
(Rec. No. 17/406434)

Second Publication

CHANGE OF NAME

Notice is hereby given that Varadarajen 
VUDDAMALAY, have applied to the Honourable 
Attorney General for leave to change his name 
Varadarajen into those of Larsen Varadarajen, 
so that in the future, he may officially be 
known under the names and surname of Larsen 
Varadarajen VUDDAMALAY.

Objections, if any, should be filed in the 
Registry of the office of the Attorney General 
within a period of 28 days as from the last date of 
publication of the said notice in the papers.

Under all legal reservations.

Dated at Port Louis, this 30th day of April 2019.

Said BAICHOO 
of Bahemia Building, No. 56, 

Sir William Newton St, 
Port-Louis.

Attorney for the Petitioner.
(Rec. No. 17/406434)

First Publication

CHANGE OF NAME

Notice is hereby given that Mr Devalingum 
POONMANY of 5/A Robert Stein, Camp 

Chapelon, Pailles, has applied to the Honourable 
Attorney-General for leave to change his name 
Devalingum into those of Mohammed-Abdullah- 
Zuberr so that in the future he shall bear the names 
and surname of Mohammed-Abdullah-Zuberr 
POONMANY.

Objections, if any, should be filed in the Registry 
of the office of the Attorney-General within 
28 days as from the date of the last publication of 
this notice.

Date: 11 February 2019

Mr Devalingum POONMANY 
Applicant

(Rec. No. 17/406458)

First Publication

CHANGE OF NAME

Notice is hereby given that Mr Sivalingum 
PANDAMANUKUM of Pandamanikum 
Lane, Vacoas has applied to the Honourable 
Attorney-General for leave to change his 
surname PANDAMANUKUM into that of 
PANDAMANIKUM so that in the future he 
shall bear the name and surname of Sivalingum 
PANDAMANIKUM.

Objections, if any, should be filed in the Registry 
of the office of the Attorney-General within 
28 days as from the date of the last publication of 
this notice.

Date: 22 February 2019.

Mr Sivalingum PANDAMANUKUM
Applicant

(Rec. No. 17/406510)

SALE BY LEVY

Notice is hereby given that on Thursday the 
18th of July, 2019 at 1.30 p.m. shall take place 
before the Master’s Bar situated at the Supreme 
Court Building, Jules Koenig Street, Port Louis, 
the Sale by Levy of: Une portion de terrain de 
la contenance de deux cent onze decimal vingt et 
un metres carres (211.21m2) etant le Lot No. 11 
du partage, situee au quartier de Flacq, lieu dit 
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Medine, et bornee aux termes du titre de propriete 
d’apres un rapport d’arpentage avecplanfiguratif 
y joint dressepar Monsieur M. Rafick DOOBORY, 
arpenteur jure, le 08/06/2011, enregistre au Reg:
L.S  74/286, comme suit:- Du premier cote, par 
le lot No. 10, sur vingt deux metres et quatre 
centimetres (22.04m). Du deuxieme cote, par un 
chemin commun de trois metres et soixante six 
centimetres (3.66m) de large une reserve d’un 
metre et cinquante centimetres (1,50m) de large 
entre, sur neuf et cinquante huit centimetres 
(9.58m). Du troisieme cote, par les lots Nos. 12 
et 13, sur vingt deux metres et quatre centimetres 
(22.04m) Et du quatrieme et dernier cote, par 
divers proprietaires, sur neuf metres et cinquante 
huit centimetres (9.58m).

Together with all that may depend or form 
part thereof without exception or reservation, the 
whole morefully described in Vol:- 8837/23- PIN 
No. 1412060222 and in the Cahier des Charges 
filed in the matter.

The said sale is prosecuted at the request 
of Mohamed Oomar Quyam BUKHORY 
against Mr Mamode Saleem BOOLAKY and 
Mrs Zahidah BOOLAKY bom MOORTEE.

All parties claiming a right to take inscription of 
legal mortgage upon the said property are warned 
that they must do so before the transcription of the 
judgment of adjudication, failing which they shall 
forfeit such right.

Under all legal reservations.

Dated at Port Louis, this 15 May 2019.

C. Mallam-Hassam 
of Office 512, Sterling House 

Lislet Geoffiroy Street 
Port Louis 

Attorney in Charge of the sale.
(Rec. No. 17/406501)

SALE BY LEVY

Notice is hereby given that on Thursday the 
20th day of June, 2019 at 1.30 p.m. shall take 
place before the Master’s Court, Supreme Court 
situate at Jules Koenig Street, Port Louis, the 
Sale by Levy of: 1) “Une portion de terrain de 
la contenance de vingt perches et demie (20V2 P) 

(etant le Lot No. 2) situee au quartier des Plaines 
Wilhems, lieu dit Phoenix qui a ete rearpentee 
une premiere fois par Monsieur S. Jeanne, ancien 
arpenteur jure et suivant son proces verbal 
d’arpentage en date du 10/07/1962, enregistre 
au Registre A 384 Numero 8360 et a ete trouvee 
etre de la contenance de quatorze perches et 
demie (14V2 P) est compris dans les abornements 
suivants:- i. by a tramway line belonging to the 
said company on 77 feet. ii. By the land sold to 
the said company and by Y. H. Dowlut upon a line 
broken into parts measuring 18 feet and 10 feet, 
iii. by the sinuosities of the axis of a canal starting 
from the rivulet Mesnil upon a develop length of 
238 feet And iv. Partly by the river Mesnil on 9 feet 
and partly again by the sinuosities of river Mesnil 
on a length of 227 feet, the exit of this balisage 
of the first side of the land. Le dit terrain a ete 
rearpente une deuxieme fois par Monsieur Kadafi 
Koheratee, arpenteur jure et suivant son rapport 
avec plan figuratif y joint en date du 22/12/2009, 
enregistre au Registre LS 68 Numero 2657 et a 
ete trouve etre de la contenance reelle de quatre 
cent quatre vingt trois metres carres (483m2) et 
est compris dans les abornements suivants:- PIN 
No. 1734510129. Du premier cote, par Futloo 
Lane (quatre metres soixante dix centimetres 
(4.70m) de large) sur vingt et un metres (21m). Du 
deuxieme cote, par la sinuosite d’un canal d’un 
metre cinquante centimetres (1.50m) de large, sur 
une ligne brisee en deux parties la premiere, sur 
une longueur developpee mesurant quatre metres 
trente centimetres (4.30m) et la seconde, sur une 
longueur developpee quarante six metres quatre 
vingt dix centimetres (46.90m). Du troisieme 
cote, par Koontee Sewraj sur six metres (6m). Et 
du quatrieme et dernier cote, par Marie Jeanne 
Celastine Calou et Jonathan Yannick Clency Calou 
sur une ligne brisee en deux parties mesurant 
vingt metres cinquante deux centimetres (20.52m) 
et vingt deux metres cinquante six centimetres 
(22.56m) respectivement. Au susdit rapport, il a 
ete fait observer:- i. Qu ’il existant auparavant un 
canal mentionne dans le titre de propriete transcrit 
au Volume 1249 Numero 29 le long de la Limite 
longeant le terrain de Marie Celastine Calou et 
autres et que le dit canal a ete totalement rempli 
et comble. ii. Que la sortie se faisant autrefois 
au moyen d’un chemin de fer appartenant a la 
compagnie Highlands Estate et que dorenavant 
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ledit chemin de fer a ete asphalte et connu 
aujourd’hui comme Futloo Lane. Ensemble un 
batiment a etage en blocs de ciment sous dalles 
de cinq mille pieds carres environ y existant ainsi 
que les installations faites pour la conduite d’eau, 
la lumiere electrique et le drainage y attachees 
et generalement tout ce qui peut en dependre ou 
en faire partie sans aucune exception ni reserve 
et sans une plus ample designation.” Le tout plus 
amplement decrit au titre en date du 29/01/2010 
et transcrit au Volume 7625/42. The above 
described portion of land comprises a 3-level 
mixed commercial/residential building made up 
of reinforced concrete frame structures, concrete 
block walls, partly rendered and painted, under 
reinforced concrete slab roof. External walls 
are cladded with ceramic tiles. Upper floors are 
accessible via an internal concrete staircase. The 
building is fitted with aluminium glazed external 
openings + automated UP VC roller shutters. 
Floors have partly ceramic tiles finishes. The 
building is in generally good condition. Owner 
occupied. Estimated total G.C.A = 650.0m2. 2) 
Une portion de terrain situee au quartier des 
Plaines Wilhems lieudit Tamarind Falls de la 
contenance de six mille deux cent quarante deux 
metres carres et vingt quatre centiemes de metre 
carre (6,242.24m2), suivant un proces verbal 
de rapport par Monsieur Ng Tong Ng Wah, 
arpenteur jure, en date du 04/08/2004, enregistre 
au Reg. LS 53 No. 3243 et aborne d’apres le 
rapport comme suit:- Du premier cote, par I’axe 
d’un chemin de balisage de Concession, sur trois 
metres et soixante six centimetres (3.66m)

Du deuxieme cote par le terrain de Monsieur 
Regis Closel sur quatre vingt onze metres et 
quarante quatre centimetres (91.44m). Du 
troisieme cote par le terrain de Madame M. A. 
Veronique Closel sur cent cinquante et un metre et 
trente cinq centimetres (51.35m). Et du quatrieme 
et dernier cote, partie par I’axe des sinuosites 
du Ruisseau Legoff et partie par le terrain de 
Madame R. M. Elaine Piat sur une ligne brisee en 
deux parties mesurant respectivement, cent treize 
metres et cinquante centimetres (113.50m) et 
quarante quatre metres et vingt quatre centimetres 
(44.24m). Ensemble les maison(s), batiment(s) et 
construction(s) de toute nature se trouvant sur la 
dite portion de terrain et generalement tout ce qui 

peut en dependre ou en faire partie sans aucune 
exception ni reserve.” La dite portion de terrain 
de la contenance de six mille deux cent quarante 
deux metres carres et vingt quatre centiemes de 
metre carre (6,242.24m2), environ d’apres le titre 
de propriete, a ete trouvee apres mesurage de la 
contenance reelle de trois mille huit cent cinquante 
trois decimal soixante dix sept metres carres 
(3,853.77m2), portant le «Parcel Identification 
Number (PIN) 1703180930, ainsi que I’atteste un 
certificat emis par le Ministere du Logement et des 
Terres en date du 12/06/2017portant la reference 
PCR 9498/2017. Le tout plus amplement decrit au 
titre en date du 11/08/2011 et transcrit au Volume 
TV8187/5. The second above described portion of 
land comprises:- a. 4 identical lodges constructed 
round a kiosk. There are 2 level lodges made of 
reinforced concrete frame structures, concrete 
block walls externally cladded with a special stone, 
under pitched slab roof with external profilage 
sheet roof finishes. The lodges are fitted with 
external aluminium and timber glazed openings 
+ B/P. Floors have mixed laminated timber teak 
and ceramic tiles finishes. Accomodations at the 
ground floor comprise a combined living/dining 
rooms with stone chimneys, modem ancillary 
kitchen, common washrooms, ensuites, T.V. room. 
F/F is accessible via an internal staircase. G.C.A 
of each lodge approximately 115.0m2. The four 
lodges are around a steel tube kiosk with profilage 
sheet roof. b. a wedding hall with large covered 
porch. The hall is made of reinforced concrete 
frame structures, concrete block walls, rendered 
and painted, under reinforced concrete slab roof. 
External openings are aluminium glazed. Floors 
have stone tiles finishes. The ancillary structures 
to the wedding hall are a kitchen and a covered 
porch and a swimming pool with tile decking. 
The porch are of treated timber structures under 
profilage sheet roof. Total G.C.A approximately 
345.0m2. c. a 2 level cottage. There are 2 level 
residential dwelling made of reinforced concrete 
frame structures, concrete block walls, rendered 
and painted, under reinforced concrete slab roof. 
The cottage has recently been refurbished to a 
good standard. External and internal walls are 
partly cladded with basalt stone. It is fitted with 
mixed timber and aluminium and timber glazed 
openings + B/P. Floors have mixed laminated 
timber teak and ceramic tiles finishes. Upper floor 
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is accessible via an internal concrete staircase. 
Accommodations comprise of living/dining room, 
a modem kitchen, common washrooms, a store, 
a porch, bedrooms and ensuites. Total G.C.A 
approximately 290.0m2. d. Outbuilding. This 
comprises a store.

The whole morefully described in the 
Memorandum of Charges filed in the above matter.

The sale is prosecuted at the request of SWAN 
LIFE LTD formerly known as THE ANGLO 
MAURITIUS ASSURANCE SOCIETY LTD v/s 
Mr. Jean-Marie Thierry MAUREL, and 
his lawful wife, Mrs. Janefer MAUREL (bom 
MOONSAMY).

All parties claiming a right to take inscription of 
legal mortgage upon the said property are warned 
that they must do so before the transcription of the 
judgment of adjudication failing which they shall 
forfeit such rights.

Under all legal reservations.

Dated at Port Louis, this 13th day of May, 2019.

Thierry Koenig SA 
ENSafrica (Mauritius) 

of 19, Church Street, 
Port Louis.

Attorney in charge of the sale.
(Rec. No. 17/406511)

SALE BY LEVY

Notice is hereby given that on Thursday the 
11th day of July 2019 at 13.30 hrs, shall take 
place before the Master’s Bar, situate at Supreme 
Court Building, Jules Koenig St, Port Louis, the 
Sale by Levy, of a portion of land of the extent 
of 28 4/7 Perches or 1126.45m2 being Lot 
No. 5, situate in the District of Moka place 
called L’Agrement - PIN Nos. 1814480094 and 
18144480095 and morefully described as per 
deed transcribed in Volume 8722/22 and bounded 
as follows:- On the 1st side by a Common Road 
on 18.59 metres; On the second side by Baldeo 
Ghummoreea on 60.45 metres; On the 3rd side 
by Mr Hurrychun Bhurtha or assigns on 18.59 
metres and on the 4th and last side by Mr Kuldeo 
Ghummoreea on 60.76 metres. Together with 
all the plantation and/or sugar cane plantation, 
existing on the said portion of land and all that may 

depend or form part thereof generally whatsoever 
without any exception or reservations and the 
whole morefully described in the Memorandum 
of Charges filed in the above matter. The said sale 
is prosecuted at the request of Mrs Tomawantee 
Devi RADHAY against Sendeepsing Rai 
BUNGSRAZ. All parties claiming a right to 
take inscription of legal mortgage upon the said 
immovable property are warned that they must 
do so before the transcription of the judgment of 
adjudication, failing which they shall debarred 
from such right.

Under all legal reservations.

Dated at Port-Louis, this 10th day of May 2019.

C. SEEBALUCK C.S.K
Senior Attorney 

of Cathedral Square 
Lislet Geoffroy Street 

Port Louis.
Attorney in charge of the sale 

(Rec. No. 17/406503)

IN THE INTERMEDIATE COURT OF MAURITIUS

SALE BY LEVY

On Friday the 31st day of May 2019 at 10.30 
of the clock in the forenoon, in the vicinity of 
Vacoas Post Office near Vacoas Market Place, 
I, the undersigned Court Usher, will sell by Public 
Auction to the highest bidder and for cash the 
following movable effects namely:

One set sofa (cloth) one large and 2 small 
One table (glass) and 6 chairs (Maroquin) 
One Flat Screen TV 43 ’ Make Hair 
One Refrigerator make Samsung
One Oven make Michachi
One Washing Machine Beko
One Microwave Kelvinator
One Wardrobe 2 flaps

Seized upon Mr Jooganaden Goinden and 
Aukhajan-Goinden Nitisha of 250 Avenue John 
Kennedy, Vacoas at the request of J. Kalachand 
& Co. Ltd electing its legal domicile in the office 
of Attomey-at-Law Mr A. Agowan of Port Louis 
in virtue and execution of a Warrant to Levy 
issued out of the Intermediate Court, pursuant to 
a judgement of the said Court dated 21st March 
2018, bearing Cause Number 551/17. The above 
movable effects can be seen prior to the sale.



2430 The Mauritius Government Gazette

Dated this 15th day of April, 2019.

Sada Seeven Chellapen 
Court Usher 

in and for the Intermediate Court 
and in Charge of the Sale.

(Rec. No. 17/406468)

SALE BY LEVY

Notice is hereby given that on Thursday the 
18th day of July 2019 at 1.30 p.m., shall take 
place before the Master’s Court, Supreme Court 
Building, Jules Koenig Street, Port Louis, the Sale 
by Levy of the following immovable property, 
viz:- une portion de terrain de la contenance de 
401m2 - PIN 1712060090, situee au quartier des 
Plaines Wilhems, lieudit Rose Hill (Rue Victor 
Singery) et bornee comme suit: Du premier cote, 
par la Rue Victor Singery, une reserve d’un metre 
vingt deux centimetres (1.02m) de large entre, 
se trouvant entierement sur la presente portion 
de terrain, sur quatorze metres trois centimetres 
(14.03m); Du deuxieme cote, par le surplus du 
terrain de la venderesse, sur trente metres quarante 
huit centimetres (30.48m); Du troisieme cote, par
M. Guy Michel Elysee, sur onze metres quatre 
vingt neuf centimetres (11.99m) et du quatrieme 
et dernier cote, par M. Jean Bosquet, sur trente 
metres trente trois centimetres (30.33m). The said 
sale is prosecuted at the request of MauBank 
Ltd formerly known as Mauritius Post and 
Cooperative Bank Ltd against Mr. Soondaragen 
ARNACHELLUM of Victory Street, Rose Hill.

All parties claiming a right to take inscription of 
legal mortgage upon the said property are warned 
that they must do so before the transcription of the 
judgment of adjudication, failing which they shall 
forfeit such right.

Dated at Port Louis, this 13th day of May 2019.

N. Rama 
of Suite 701, 

6th Floor, Chancery House, 
Lislet Geoflfroy Street, 

Port Louis.
Attorney in Charge of the sale.

(Rec. No. 17/406503)

SALE BY LEVY

Notice is hereby given that on Thursday the 
30th day of May, 2019 at 1.30 p.m. shall take place 
before the Master’s Court, Supreme Court situate 
at Jules Koenig Street, Port Louis, the Sale by 
Levy of: “Les biens et droits immobiliers ci-apres 
designes dependant d’un ensemble immobilier 
en etat futur d’achevement, connu sous le nom 
de “Azuri (IRS) Resor”, et a etre construit sur 
une portion de terrain de la contenance de dix 
hectares mille cent soixante douze metres carres 
(lOha 1,172m2), situee au quartier de la Riviere du 
Rempart, au lieudit Haute Rive, plus amplement 
decrit et abornee au reglement de copropriete 
ci-apres relate:- (PIN Number 1312100243). 
Ledit ensemble immobilier soumis au regime de la 
copropriete et ay ant fait I’objet d’un reglement de 
copropriete - etat descriptif de division suivant acte 
requ par Me. Edouard Gregory Hart de Keating 
notaire, le 22/10/2012, enregistre et transcrit au 
TV 8714/15. Le Lot No. 66 (Opaline 23) Etant 
une unite residentielle de type appartement trois 
chambres a coucher, d’une superficie interieure de 
cent trente trois metres carres (133m2) environ, et 
composee comme suit:- LOCATION Un veranda:- 
vingt et un metres carres (21m2) Une living and 
dining:-trente metres carres (30m2) Un kitchen: 
quinze metres carres (15m2) Un veranda:- douze 
metres carres (12m2) Un master bedroom:- seize 
metres carres (16m2) Un wardrobe:- sept metres 
carres (7m2) Un bathroom:- neuf metres carres 
(9m2) Un bedroom 2:- quinze metres carres (15m2) 
Un bedroom:- six metres carres (6m2) Un bedroom 
3:- quatorze metres carres (14m2) Un w.c:- deux 
metres carres (2m2) Internal Area:- cent trente 
trois metres carres (133m2) Total Gross External 
Area:- cent quatre vingt quinze metres carres 
(195m2) Avec la jouissance exclusive d’un espace 
parking y attachee. Avec y attache une quote­
part de quatre cent soixante seize/cent milliemes 
(476/100,00Oemes) des parties communes et la 
propriete du sol. Le tout pour les besoins des 
presentes ci-apres designe sous le vocable «le 
bien». Ensemble tout ce qui peut en dependre 
ou faire partie sans aucune exception ni reserve, 
le tout plus amplement decrit au titre en date du 
23/12/2013 et transcrit au Volume TV 9125/36. 
L’emprunteur est proprietaire du bien faisant 
I’objet de la presente siirete fixe, mais considere 
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dans son etat futur d’achievement, au moyen de 
I’acquisition qu’il en a faite de la compagnie 
“Haute Rive IRS Company Ltd», suivant contrat 
dresse par Me. Edouard Gregory Hart de Keating, 
notaire, le 23/12/2013 et transcrit au Volume 
TV9125/36. ”. The subject property Lot 66, Opaline 
23 is an apartment of a gross area of 195m2. The 
apartment forms part of the haute Rive IRS project. 
The unit has the following:- Veranda, Living 
and Dining, Kitchen, a second Veranda, Master 
Bedroom, Wardrobe, Bathroom, Bedroom 2, 
Bathroom, Bedroom 3, WC. The finishes are as 
follows:- Flooring: ceramic tiles, Internal Doors: 
Solid Flush Doors, Openings: Aluminium, 
Building Painted internally and externally with 
emulsion paint, Tempered Glass on stairs, terraces 
and balcony, Kitchen: covered with Granite and 
fitted with wooden cabinets. Note:- The unit has 
access to the facilities of the complex. Site:- The 
site where the block of apartments has been built 
is rather flat and trapezoidal in shape. The property 
is situated in Haute Rive. The building is in good 
conditions with no visible structural defects. 
Access to the property is done through a common 
tarred vehicular road of 6 metres along Riviere 
du Rempart - Roches Noire Road first and then 
internally through a Tarred Vehicular Road. Site 
lies within an IRS and tourist area where electricity 
and water services are connected.

The whole morefully described in the 
Memorandum of Charges filed in the above matter.

The sale is prosecuted at the request of 
AFRASIA BANK LIMITED against Murray 
Edward ADAIR.

All parties claiming a right to take inscription of 
legal mortgage upon the said property are warned 
that they must do so before the transcription of the 
judgment of adjudication failing which they shall 
forfeit such rights.

Under all legal reservations.

Dated at Port Louis, this 14th day of May, 2019.

Thierry Koenig SA 
ENSafrica (Mauritius) 

of 19 Church Street, 
Port Louis.

Attorney in charge of the sale.
(Rec. No. 17/406511)

SALE BY LICITATION

Take notice that on the 13 th day of May 2019 has 
been filed in the Master’s Office of the Supreme 
Court of Mauritius, Jules Koenig St., Port Louis, 
the Memorandum of Charges, conditions, Clauses, 
pursuant and according to which shall take place 
before the Master’s Bar, the Sale by Licitation 
of the hereunder described immoveable property 
viz:- A portion of land of the extent of 1055.2m2 
or 25 perches situate in the District of Riviere 
du Rempart place called Amaury, the whole 
morefully described in title deed transcribed in 
Volume 602 No. 45 and bounded as follows:- 
On one side, by a common road, on twenty-five 
feet; On the second side, by Seeteeal Jundhoo, on 
four hundred feet; On the third side, by Nabeejan 
Dahoo, on twenty-five feet; On the fourth side, 
by Babooram Gokhool, on four hundred feet and 
all that depends or forms part thereof without any 
exceptions or reservations whatsoever, the whole 
morefully described in the said Memorandum of 
Charges. The said Sale is prosecuted at the request 
of Vidwantee PADARUTH (bom KOONJUL), 
Rekha Padaruth, Ramaotee Padaruth and 
Neeta Padaruth against Sandy a Boodram (bom 
Padaruth).

All parties claiming a right to take inscription of 
legal mortgage upon the said property are warned 
that they must do so before the transcription of the 
judgment of adjudication, failing which they shall 
be debarred from such rights.

Under all legal reservations.

Dated at Port Louis, this 14th day of May 2019.

Pazany THANDARAYAN 
of 2nd Floor,

Chancery House, 
Lislet Geoffroy Street, 

Port Louis.
Attorney in charge of the sale. 

(Rec. No. 17/406503)

NOTICE UNDER SECTIONS 117 AND 157 
OF THE INSOLVENCY ACT 2009

TIMU ENERGY HOLDINGS

(In Liquidation)

Notice is hereby given that I, A. Sattar Hajee 
Abdoula, FCA, C/o 9th Floor, Ebene Tower, 
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52 Cybercity, Ebene 72201, have been appointed to 
act as Liquidator of TIMU ENERGY HOLDINGS 
(In Liquidation) - (the “Company”), by way 
of a Written Shareholder’s Resolutions dated 
25th February 2019 at 14:00 p.m.

Notice is also given to any person, who reckons 
that the Company holds property belonging to 
him or property in which he has rights, should 
submit his claim in writing to the Liquidator 
with all supporting documents in respect of such 
ownership or right.

All persons holding any property, documents, 
books and records of the above Company 
are requested to deliver them forthwith to the 
Liquidator.

Further notice is given that all sums due to the 
Company should be payable to the Liquidator and 
receipts for such payments shall only be valid if 
they bear the signature of the Liquidator or his 
duly appointed representative/s.

All correspondences should be addressed to:
A. Sattar Hajee Abdoula, FCA
Liquidator
TIMU ENERGY HOLDINGS
(In Liquidation)
C/o 9th Floor, Ebene Tower
52 Cybercity, Ebene 72201
Tel: (230) 467 3001
Fax: (230) 454 7311
Email: recovery@intnet.mu

(Rec. No. 17/406459)

IN THE SUPREME COURT OF MAURITIUS

(BANKRUPTCY DIVISION)

The Insolvency Act

In the matter of-

Ramloll Booshan Renovation & Building Ltd, 
now RBRB Construction Ltd

Petitioner
Versus

Societe Immobiliere Oosman

Respondent

Notice is hereby given that a petition for the 
Compulsory Winding-Up of the abovenamed 
Company by the above Court was lodged on the 

3 0th April 2019, to the said Court by the undersigned 
Attomey-at-Law, on behalf of the abovenamed 
Petitioner, by electronic filing under the Court 
(Electronic filing of Documents) Rules 2012. And 
that the said petition is registered as Cause Number 
SC/COM/PET/00310/2019, was made returnable 
on Wednesday the 15th May 2019 and has now 
been extended by virtue of an Order, issued by the 
Honourable Judge, and the returnable date is now 
scheduled to Friday the 31st day of May 2019 and 
any creditor or contributory of the said Company, 
desirous to support or oppose the making of an 
order of the petition, by making the necessary 
appearance through Electronic Filing System either 
through a Solicitor or by a representative of the 
Company at the Public Service Bureau located at 
the Commercial Division of the Supreme Court of 
Mauritius, Jules Koenig Street, Port Louis, a copy 
of the petition will be furnished to any creditor 
or contributory of the said Company requiring 
the same by the undersigned, on payment of the 
regulated charge of the same or may be obtained 
on the electronic filing system.

Under all Legal reservations.

Dated at Port Louis, this 13th day of May 2019.

Navin RAMA 
of Suite 701, 

6th Floor, Chancery House, 
Lislet Geoffroy St, 

Port Louis.
Attorney for the Petitioner 

(Rec. No. 17/406503)

IN THE SUPREME COURT OF MAURITIUS

(Commercial Division)

In the matter of:

THE INSOLVENCY ACT 2009

And

In the matter of:

PALLUBOIS LTD

And

THE MAURITIUS COMMERCIAL BANK LTD 
electing its legal domicile in the office of 

Mr. Udhisteer K Ragobur, Attorney at Law, 
of 19th Church Street, Port Louis 

(hereinafter referred to as “the Petitioner")

mailto:recovery@intnet.mu
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Notice is hereby given that a Petition for the 
Compulsory Winding Up (hereinafter referred to 
as ‘7/ze Petition"} of the abovenamed Company 
was, on Wednesday the 8th May 2019 lodged by 
The Mauritius Commercial Bank Limited, by 
electronic filing under the Court (Electronic Filing 
of Documents) Rules 2012.

The said Petition is registered as Cause Number 
SC/COM/PET/00332/2019 and the returnable 
date is the 23rd day of May 2019. Any creditor 
or contributory of the said Company desirous 
to support or oppose the making of an Order on 
the Petition may do so by making the necessary 
appearance by electronic filing either through a 
legal adviser or in person at the Public Service 
Bureau located at the Commercial Division of the 
Supreme Court, Jules Koenig Street, Port Louis. 
A copy of the Petition will be furnished to any 
creditor or contributory of the said Company 
requiring the same by the undersigned, on payment 
of the regulated charge for the same, or may be 
obtained on the electronic filing system.

Dated at Port Louis, this 9th day of May, 2019.

Udhisteer K Ragobur 
ENSafrica (Mauritius) 

of 19th Church Street, Port Louis.
Attorney for

The Mauritius Commercial
Bank Limited

(Rec. No. 17/406511)

NOTICE TO ATTEND SURVEY UNDER 
THE CADASTRAL SURVEY ACT 2011

Notice is hereby given that I, Mark Doger 
de Speville, Land Surveyor, at the request of 
Mrs. Preety Devi Chuckowree, will survey 
two portions of land of the extent of 1A 04P & 
0A 99P respectively, belonging to Mrs Preety Devi 
Chuckowree by virtue of a title deed transcribed in 
Vol. 5177/15, situate at Bassin, now in the district 
of Plaines Wilhems.

The said survey will start on, Monday, the 
10th June 2019, as from thirty past nine in the 
morning (9.30 am) and will continue on the 
following days if need be.

The owners of the adjoining properties are 
requested to be present at the said survey on the 

aforesaid day and hour and to bring along with 
them all title deeds, plans and whatever-like 
documents concerning their properties so as 
to enable me to establish correctly the limits 
separating the aforesaid portion of land from the 
adjoining properties.

Under all legal reservations.

Dated at Port Louis, the 7th May, 2019.

Mark Doger de Speville 
Sworn Land Surveyor 

1, Park Hotel Lane 
Rue Saint Clement

Curepipe 
Tel: 674 3494

Email: mdespeville. cdds@intnet. mu

(Rec. No. 17/406469)

NOTICE TO ATTEND SURVEY UNDER 
THE CADASTRAL SURVEY ACT 2011

Notice is hereby given that I, Mark Doger 
de Speville, Land Surveyor, at the request of 
Mrs. Poornima Caumul, will survey a portion 
of land of the extent of 3294 m2, belonging to 
Mrs. Poornima Caumul, Mrs. Kumari Poonit, 
Mrs. Chandanee Jugoo, Miss Medharshi Parmanum 
and Mr. Bakhta Sharma Parmanum by virtue of 
a title deed transcribed in Vol. 201505/001857, 
situate at Henrietta, now in the district of Plaines 
Wilhems.

The said survey will start on, Tuesday, the 
11th June 2019, as from thirty past ten in the 
morning (10.30 am) and will continue on the 
following days if need be.

The owners of the adjoining properties are 
requested to be present at the said survey on the 
aforesaid day and hour and to bring along with 
them all title deeds, plans and whatever-like 
documents concerning their properties so as 
to enable me to establish correctly the limits 
separating the aforesaid portion of land from the 
adjoining properties.

Under all legal reservations.

Dated at Port Louis, the 7th May, 2019.

Mark Doger de Speville 
Sworn Land Surveyor
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1, Park Hotel Lane 
Rue Saint Clement 

Curepipe 
Tel: 674 3494 

Email: mdespeville.cdds@intnet.mu
(Rec. No. 17/406469)

NOTICE TO ATTEND SURVEY UNDER 
THE CADASTRAL SURVEY ACT 2011

Notice is hereby given that I, RASHID 
AHMED JEEWA, Land Surveyor, at the request of 
Mr. Marie Roger Lucien Bax de Keating, will 
survey a portion of land, being all that remains after 
excision of 1 ha 2663m2 sold as per T.V 8750/59, 
from an original portion of land of the extent 
of 19A47'/4P, situate at Montebello, Pailles, in 
the district of Port Louis belonging to ‘Societe 
MONTPARNASSE’ as per deed transcribed 
in T.V. 2977/36, with a view of identifying, 
measuring/proposing a common and direct access.

The said survey will start on, Thursday, the 
30th May 2019, at about nine O’clock in the 
morning (9.00 a.m.) and will continue on the 
following days if need be.

The owners of the adjoining properties are 
requested to be present at the said survey on 
the aforesaid day and hour and to bring along 
with them all title deeds, plans and whatever- 
relevant documents concerning their properties 
so as to enable me to establish correctly the limits 
separating the aforesaid portion of land from the 
adjoining properties.

Under all legal reservations.

Dated at Port Louis, the 08th May, 2019.

RASHID AHMED JEEWA
Land Surveyor

207, Chancery House, Port Louis 
Tel: 208 1560,212 6117,212 6876

Fax: 2123979
Email: rjeewa@intnet.mu

(Rec. No. 17/406488)

NOTICE UNDER THE CADASTRAL 
SURVEY ACT 2011

[Section 9(2a) & 9(3)]

Notice is hereby given that, I, Mr. GIRISH 
BEECHOO, Land Surveyor, shall at the request 

of Mr. SURESS GUNPUTH, proceed with the 
survey and fixing of boundary stones of a portion 
of land situated in the district of Port Louis, place 
called Riviere des Lataniers, Sainte Croix, Rue 
Dr. Ramgoolam, and belonging to Mr. SURESS 
GUNPUTH, as evidenced by title deed transcribed 
in TV 201703/001367.

The said survey will start on Saturday 
22nd of June 2019 at nine thirty (9.30) o’clock in 
the morning and will continue on the following 
days if need be.

The owners of the adjoining properties of the 
portion of the land above referred to, are called 
upon to attend the survey on the aforesaid date and 
time and to produce to me or to any other Land 
Surveyor deputed by me in case of impediment, 
their relevant title deeds or any other document 
which will allow me to establish and fix the 
boundaries of the above-mentioned property.

Under all legal reservations.

Dated at Suite 203, Sterling Tower, Poudriere 
Street, Port Louis, this 15th May 2019.

Girish BEECHOO
Land Surveyor 

(Rec. No. 17/406484)

CORPORATE AND BUSINESS REGISTRATION 
DEPARTMENT

Insolvency Service
OFFICIAL RECEIVER’S OFFICE

One Cathedral Square, Jules Koenig Street, Port Louis 
Tel. No.: 202 0600

My Ref:- SC/COM/PET/01016/2018

Prest Plastics Limited

Petitioner 
v/s

Magic Distributors Ltd

Respondent

Notice is hereby given that the Bankruptcy 
Division of the Supreme Court of Mauritius has 
on 29th day of March, 2019 at 10.40 hours, ordered 
that the above-mentioned Company be wound 
up under the provisions of the Insolvency Act 
2009 and that Official Receiver, be appointed 
Provisional Liquidator of the Company.

mailto:mdespeville.cdds@intnet.mu
mailto:rjeewa@intnet.mu
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Notice is also given that the Meeting of 
Contributories will be held at the Corporate and 
Business Registration Department, 11th Floor, One 
Cathedral Square, Jules Koenig Street, Port Louis, 
on 23rd day of May, 2019 at 10.45 hrs and that the 
Meeting of Creditors will be held at the same place 
and on the same day at 11.00 hrs.

Notice is also given that in case creditors having 
any claim whatsoever against the said company 
and for that claim to be considered, a proof of 
debt verified by an affidavit in accordance with the 
Insolvency Act 2009 must be lodged with me not 
later than 10.45 hrs on the 23rd day of May, 2019.

Persons having in their possession any goods, 
chattels and other property whatsoever belonging 
to Magic Distributors Ltd are warned that they 
must deliver over same to me.

Dated: 29th April, 2019

V. Virasami 
Official Receiver & 

Provisional Liquidator 
(Rec. No. 17/406498)

COURIER WAREHOUSE

Notice is hereby given that the under mentioned 
courier warehouse has been approved by the 
Director General, MRA under Section 67 of the 
Customs Act.

(Rec. No. 17/406513)

NAME ADDRESS GOODS TO BE
WAREHOUSED DATE

RENNEL 
LIMITED

ANSE 
COURTOIS, 
PAILLES

COURIER BAGS, 
PARCELS, 
PACKETS

08/05/2019

to Section 84 of the Insurance Act 2005, without 
further formality forthwith transfer the amount to 
the Curator of Vacant Estates.

Date: 18th May 2019

NATIONAL INSURANCE COMPANY
(Rec. No. 17/406497)

NOTICE UNDER SECTION 36(2) OF 
THE COMPANIES ACT 2001

Notice is hereby given that “DALTECH 
COMPANY LIMITED” has by special resolution 
passed on 6th March 2019, changed its name to 
“Comforth MP Ltd” as evidenced by a certificate 
issued by the Registrar of Companies on 2nd May 
2019.

Dated this 8th May 2019.

Kenny Wong 
Director

(Rec. No. 17/406443)

NOTICE UNDER SECTION 36(2) OF 
THE COMPANIES ACT 2001

Notice is hereby given that ‘North Island View 
Ltd’, a domestic company having its Registered 
Office at c/o ECS Global Ltd, 3rd Floor Labama 
House, Sir William Newton Street, Port Louis, 
Mauritius, has by way of a Special Resolution 
passed on 16th April 2019 changed its name to 
‘North Islands View Ltd’ as evidenced by a 
Certificate issued by the Registrar of Companies 
on 8th of May 2019.

Date: 13 May 2019

NOTICE UNDER SECTION 84 
INSURANCE ACT 2005

NATIONAL INSURANCE CO. LTD

Notice is hereby given that:

There is an amount due to Mr. Badroonneessah 
Dookhy under Policy No. 89081605. The amount 
has been left untouched for more than 10 years.

Should Mr. Badroonneessah Dookhy not claim 
the amount due within 30 days of the date of this 
Notice, National Insurance Co. Ltd shall, pursuant

ECS Global Ltd
Company Secretary

(Rec. No. 17/406512)

NOTICE UNDER SECTION 36(2)(c) OF 
THE COMPANIES ACT 2001

Notice is hereby given that “QUARTERMAIN 
LIMITED” has, by special resolution passed on 
22 March 2019, changed its name to “Nomad 
Conservation Group” as evidenced by a 
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certificate issued by the Registrar of Companies 
on 17 April 2019.

Dated this 23 April 2019

BTG Management Services 
(Mauritius) Limited 

Registered Agent
(Rec. No. 17/406446)

NOTICE UNDER SECTION 36(2)(c) OF 
THE COMPANIES ACT 2001

Notice is hereby given that emexGO Mauritius 
Limited, a Global Business Corporation, having 
its registered address at Premier Business Centre, 
10th Floor, Sterling Tower, 14 Poudriere Street, 
Port Louis, Mauritius, has by a Special Resolution 
passed on 10 April 2019 changed its name to 
Oyster Payment Solutions Limited as evidenced 
by a Certificate of Incorporation on Change of 
Name issued by the Registrar of Companies on 
08 May 2019.

Premier Financial Services Limited
Secretary 

(Rec. No. 17/406460)

NOTICE UNDER SECTION 36(2)(c) OF 
THE COMPANIES ACT 2001

(DLKN TRADING LTD)

Notice is hereby given that the above 
Company has changed its name to “UNIFOODS 
EQUIPMENT LTD” as evidenced by a Certificate 
of Incorporation on Change of Name issued by the 
Registrar of Companies on the 30 April 2019.

Dated this 14th of May 2019.

Darcet LIM KHOON NAM
Director 

(Rec. No. 17/406481)

NOTICE UNDER SECTION 36(2)(C) OF 
THE COMPANIES ACT

Notice is hereby given that BUBBLE GLACE 
LTEE has changed its name as per a shareholder’s 
resolution to BUBBLE FOOD LTD with effect 
from 8th April 2019.

Date: 16th May 2019
(Rec. No. 17/406489)

NOTICE UNDER SECTION 36(2)(C) OF 
THE COMPANIES ACT 2001

Notice is hereby given that the private company 
“RBPH PLANT HIRE LTD” has by a special 
resolution passed on 3rd March 2019 changed 
its name to “SMART RENOVATION AND 
CONSTRUCTION BUILDERS LTD” as evidenced 
by the certificated dated 1st March 2016 under the 
seal of the Registrar of Companies.

RAMLOLL BHOOSHAN
Director

(Rec. No. 17/406508)

NOTICE UNDER SECTION 36(2)(c) OF 
THE COMPANIES ACT, 2001

In the matter of:
Simply Holdings Ltd

Notice is hereby given:

That Simply Holdings Ltd, a Global Business 
Category 1 Company, with registration number 
138827 Cl/GBL, has by way of special resolution 
passed on 04 April 2019 changed its name to 
Cloudsure Limited as evidenced by a Certificate 
given under the hand and seal of Registrar of 
Companies on 21 July 2016.

Dated this 10th day of May 2019.

Sanlam Trustees International Limited
Company Secretary 

(Rec. No. 17/406479)

NOTICE UNDER SECTION 304(a) OF 
THE COMPANIES ACT 2001

Notice is hereby given that Salisbury Global 
Partners Limited, holding a Category 1 Global 
Business Licence (the “Company”) and having its 
registered office at c/o Schindlers Trust Mauritius 
Limited, 2nd Floor, Block B, Medine Mews, 
Chaussee Street, Port Louis, Mauritius intends 
to apply under the provisions of Section 302 of 
the Companies Act 2001 for the Company to be 
removed from the register for the purposes of 
becoming incorporated under the law in force in 
the Republic of Seychelles.

Any objection to the transfer of the Company 
under Section 304 of the Companies Act 2001 is to 
be made in writing to the Registrar of Companies 
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not later than 28 days from the date of publication 
of this notice.

Dated this 8th day of May 2019.

Schindlers Trust Mauritius Limited
Company Secretary

(Rec. No. 17/406442)

NOTICE UNDER SECTION 309 OF 
THE COMPANIES ACT 2001

Notice is hereby given that “NEXTHOPE 
CONSULTING (Mauritius) Ltd ”, a company 
incorporated in Mauritius, having its registered 
office at 5th Floor, Atchia Building, Cnr Suffren 
& Eugene Laurent St, Port-Louis, Mauritius is 
applying to the Registrar of Companies for its 
removal from the Register of Companies under 
section 309(1 )(d) of the Companies Act 2001 on 
the grounds that the Company has ceased to carry 
on business, has discharged in full its liabilities 
to all its known creditors and has distributed its 
surplus assets in accordance with the Companies 
Act 2001.

Any objection under Section 312 of the 
Companies Act 2001 shall be delivered to the 
Registrar of Companies less than 28 days of the 
date of this notice.

Dated this 9th day of May 2019.

FinAegis Ltd 
Registered Agent 

(Rec. No. 17/406506)

NOTICE UNDER SECTION 309(l)(d) OF 
THE COMPANIES ACT 2001

Notice is hereby given that Albizzia Properties 
Ltd, a domestic company having its registered 
office at Nalletamby Lane, Phoenix is hereby 
applying to the Registrar of Companies for its 
removal from the Registrar of Companies under 
Section 309(l)(d) of the Companies Act 2001.

Notice is hereby given that the company has 
ceased to carry out business, has discharged its 
liabilities to all known creditors and has distributed 
its surplus assets in accordance with its constitution 
and the Companies Act 2001.

That pursuant to Section 309(1 )(d) of the 
Companies Act 2001, any objection to the removal 
of the company shall be delivered to the Registrar 
of Companies not later than 28 days from the date 
of this publication.

Dated this 13th May 2019.

M. Fuzel Jeeroburkhan
Director 

(Rec. No. 17/406456)

NOTICE IN ACCORDANCE WITH 
SECTION 311 OF THE COMPANIES ACT 2001

Notice is hereby given that the Company 
Somit Ltd having its registered office at 
c/o Navitas Management Services Ltd, Navitas 
House, Robinson Road, Floreal, shall apply to 
the Registrar of Companies for the removal of the 
Company from the Register of Companies under 
Section 309(1 )(d) of the Companies Act 2001 on 
the following ground:

“The Company has ceased to carry on business, 
has discharged in full its liabilities to all known 
creditors and has distributed its surplus assets in 
accordance with the Companies Act 2001.”

Objections to the removal, if any, should be 
delivered to the Registrar of Companies not less 
than 28 days after the date of this notice, at latest 
by the 8th June 2019.

Dated this 11th May 2019.

Navitas Management Services Ltd 
Secretary

(Rec. No. 17/406444)

NOTICE UNDER SECTION 311 OF 
THE COMPANIES ACT 2001

Notice is hereby given that Ivory Tusk Ltd, 
a Domestic Company having its registered office 
at 4 Bengalis Street, Tombeau Bay, Mauritius 
(the “Company”), is applying to the Registrar 
of Companies to be removed from the register 
of companies under Section 309(1 )(d) of the 
Companies Act 2001.

Notice is hereby also given that the Company 
has ceased to carry on business, has discharged 
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in full its liabilities to all known creditors and has 
distributed its surplus assets in accordance with 
the Companies Act 2001.

Any objection to the removal of the Company 
under Section 313 of the Companies Act 2001 
shall be made to the Registrar of Companies not 
later than 28 days from the date of this notice.

Dated this 10th May 2019.

Director
(Rec. No. 17/406487)

NOTICE UNDER SECTION 311 OF 
THE COMPANIES ACT 2001

1. Notice is hereby given that the Company 
“STG Mauritius, Inc.” having its registered 
office at IFS Court, Bank Street, TwentyEight, 
Cybercity, Ebene 72201, Mauritius, is applying 
to the Registrar of Companies for its removal 
from the Register under Section 309(1 )(d) of 
the Companies Act 2001.

2. Notice is hereby also given that the Company 
has ceased to carry on business, has discharged 
in full its liabilities to all its known creditors, and 
has distributed its surplus assets in accordance 
with its Constitution and the Companies Act 
2001.

3. Any objection to the removal of the Company 
under Section 313 of the Companies Act 
2001 should be delivered to the Registrar of 
Companies not later than 12 June 2019.

Dated this 15th April 2019.

Secretary
(Rec. No. 17/406499)

NOTICE OF REMOVAL OF THE 
COMPANY UNDER SECTION 311 OF 

THE COMPANIES ACT 2001

Notice is hereby given that the Company 
“KayTwo Capital International Ltd”, a Global 
Business Category Two company having its 
registered office at c/o MATCO LIMITED, 
11th Floor, NeXTeracom Building, Tower 1, Ebene 
Cybercity, Mauritius, is applying to the Registrar 
of Companies for its removal from the Register 

under Section 309(1 )(d) of the Companies Act 
2001.

Notice is hereby also given that the Company 
has ceased to carry on business, has discharged in 
full its liabilities to all its known creditors and has 
distributed its surplus assets in accordance with its 
constitution and the Companies Act 2001.

Any objection to the removal of the Company 
under Section 313 of the Companies Act 2001 
should be delivered to the Registrar of Companies 
not later than 28 days of the date of this notice.

Dated this: 15th May 2019

Registered Agent 
(Rec. No. 17/406495)

NOTICE UNDER SECTION 311 OF 
THE COMPANIES ACT 2001

Notice is hereby given that AZHAGU LTD, a 
Domestic Company and having its registered office 
at Joomun Lane Grand-Bay is on this 14th day of 
May 2019 applying to the Registrar of Companies 
to be removed from the Register of Companies 
under Section 309(1 )(d) of the Companies Act 
2001.

Notice is hereby also given that the company 
has ceased to carry business, has discharged in 
full its liabilities to all known creditors, and has 
distributed its surplus assets in accordance with 
the Companies Act 2001.

Any objection to the removal of the Company 
under section 312 of the Companies Act 2001 is to 
be made in writing to the Registrar of Companies 
by not later than 28 days from the date of the notice.

14th May 2019

Director 
(Rec. No. 17/406493)

NOTICE UNDER SECTION 311 OF 
THE COMPANIES ACT 2001

Notice is hereby given that Kayotic 
Technology a Domestic Company and having its 
registered office at Robinson Road Curepipe, is 
on this 16th May 2019 applying to the Registrar 
of Companies to be removed from the Register 
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of Companies under Section 309(l)(d) of the 
Companies Act 2001.

Notice is hereby also given that the company 
has ceased to carry business, has discharged in 
full its liabilities to all known creditors and has 
distributed its surplus assets in accordance with 
the Companies Act 2001.

Any objection to the removal of the company 
under section 312 of the Companies Act 2001 is to 
be made in writing to the Registrar of Companies 
by not later than 28 days from the date of the notice.

16th May 2019
Director

(Rec. No. 17/406490)

NOTICE UNDER SECTION 311 OF 
THE COMPANIES ACT 2001

Notice is hereby given that “MADDISON BLUE 
LTD” (File No. C139313) a Domestic Company 
and having its registered office at 2nd Floor, C&R 
Court, 49 Labourdonnais Street, Port-Louis is on 
this 8th day of May 2019 applying to the Registrar 
of Companies to be removed from the Register of 
Companies under Section 311 of the Companies 
Act 2001.

Notice is hereby also given that the 
Company has never operated, has discharged in 
full its liabilities to all its known creditors, and has 
distributed its surplus assets in accordance with its 
constitution and the Companies Act 2001.

Any objection to the removal of the Company 
under Section 312 of the Companies Act 2001 is to 
be made in writing to the Registrar of Companies 
by latest on the 8th June 2019.

Date: 8 May 2019

St Lawrence Management Limited
Secretary 

(Rec. No. 17/406447)

NOTICE UNDER SECTION 311 OF 
THE COMPANIES ACT 2001

Notice is hereby given that “COLLIGNON 
BUSINESS AFRICA LTD” (Company No. 109345 

C2/GBL) a Category 2 Global Business Company 
(GBC2) and having its registered office at 2nd Floor, 
C&R Court, 49 Labourdonnais Street, Port Louis 
is on this 8th day of May 2019 applying to the 
Registrar of Companies to be removed from the 
Register of Companies under Section 309(1 )(d) of 
the Companies Act 2001.

Notice is hereby also given that the Company 
has discharged in full its liabilities to all its known 
creditors, and has distributed its surplus assets in 
accordance with its constitution and the Companies 
Act 2001.

Any objection to the removal of the Company 
under Section 312 of the Companies Act 2001 is to 
be made in writing to the Registrar of Companies 
by latest on the 8th day of June 2019.

Date: 8 May 2019

St Lawrence Management Limited
Secretary 

(Rec. No. 17/406447)

NOTICE UNDER SECTION 311 OF 
THE COMPANIES ACT 2001

Notice is hereby given that Moris Translation 
Agency Limited, a Global Business Licence 
Category 1 and having its registered office 
at Suite 109, 1st Floor The Catalyst, Silicon 
Avenue, Cybercity, Ebene, 72201, Mauritius is 
on this 9th May 2019 applying to the Registrar 
of Companies under Section 309(1 )(d) of the 
Companies Act 2001.

Notice is hereby given that the Company has 
ceased to carry on business, has discharged in full 
its liabilities to all its known creditors, and has 
distributed its surplus assets in accordance the 
Companies Act 2001.

Any objection to the removal of the Company 
under Section 312 of the Companies Act 2001 is to 
be made in writing to the Registrar of Companies 
not later than 28 days from the date of the notice.

Dated this: 9th day of May 2019

Titan Corporate Services Limited 
Company Secretary

(Rec. No. 17/406485)
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NOTICE UNDER SECTION 311(2) OF 
THE COMPANIES ACT 2001

Notice is hereby given that “E-LEGEND 
HOLDING LTD” previously a Category 1 
Global Business Licence company, of Level 3, 
GFin Tower, 42 Hotel Street, Cybercity, Ebene 
72201, Mauritius, is applying to the Registrar 
of Companies for its removal from the register 
of companies under section 309(1 )(d) of the 
Companies Act 2001 on the grounds that:

“The company has ceased to carry on business, 
has discharged in full its liabilities to all its 
known creditors, and has distributed its surplus 
assets in accordance with its Constitution and the 
Companies Act 2001

Objection or claims, if any, should be lodged 
with the Registrar of Companies not less than 
28 days after date of this notice, at latest by 
10 June 2019.

Dated this 10th day of May 2019.
Associated Consultants Ltd

Secretary 
(Rec. No. 17/406508)

NOTICE UNDER SECTION 311(2) OF 
THE COMPANIES ACT 2001

Notice is hereby given that Handle Limited 
holding a Category 1 Global Business Licence 
and having its Registered Office at 4th Floor, 
Ebene Skies, Rue de LTnstitut, Ebene, Mauritius, 
is applying to the Registrar of Companies to be 
removed from the Register of Companies under 
Section 309( 1 )(d) of the Companies Act 2001.

Notice is hereby also given that the Company 
has ceased to carry on business, has discharged in 
full its liabilities to all its known creditors, and has 
distributed its surplus assets in accordance with its 
constitution and the Companies Act 2001.

Any objection to the removal of the Company 
under Section 313 of the Companies Act 2001 is to 
be made in writing to the Registrar of Companies 
by latest on the 09 June 2019.

Date: 09 May 2019
MAURITIUS INTERNATIONAL TRUST

(Rec. No. 17/406505)

COMPANY LIMITED
Company Secretary

NOTICE UNDER SECTION 311(2) OF 
THE COMPANIES ACT 2001

Notice is hereby given - That ETNA 
CORPORATION LTD, a Category 2 Global 
Business Licence Company, having its registered 
office at 8th Floor, Ebene Tower, 52 Cybercity, 
Ebene, Mauritius is to be removed from the 
register of companies under Section 309(l)(d) of 
the Companies Act 2001.

That the company has no surplus assets after 
paying its debts in full or in part, and no creditor 
has applied to the Court under Section 216 of 
the Companies Act 1984 for an order putting the 
company into liquidation.

That any objection to the removal under Section 
313 of the Companies Act 2001 shall be delivered 
to the Registrar of Companies at latest 28 days 
after the date of publication of dissolution.

Dated 13 May 2019.

Anex Management Services Limited 
Registered Agent 

(Rec. No. 17/406500)

NOTICE OF REMOVAL OF THE
COMPANY UNDER SECTION 311(2) OF 

THE COMPANIES ACT 2001

Notice is hereby given that Proconsult 
Services Ltd (the “Company”), a GBL 2 company 
having its registered office at c/o Mauri Experta 
Ltd, 12th Floor, Tower 1, Nexteracom Towers, 
Cybercity, Ebene, Mauritius, is applying to the 
Registrar of Companies for its removal from the 
Register under Section 309(1 )(d) of the Companies 
Act 2001.

Notice is hereby also given that the Company 
has ceased to carry on business, has discharged in 
full its liabilities to all its known creditors and has 
distributed its surplus assets in accordance with its 
constitution and the Companies Act 2001.

Any objection to the removal of the Company 
under Section 312 of the Companies Act 2001 
shall be made to the Registrar of Companies not 
less than 28 days from the date of this notice.

Dated this 16th of May 2019
Mauri Experta Ltd 

(Rec. No. 17/406507) Registered Agent
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NOTICE UNDER SECTION 311(2) OF 
THE COMPANIES ACT 2001

Notice is hereby given that:

ASRIM INVESTMENT LTD, a domestic company, 
having its registered office at 49 Avenue Victoria, 
Quatre Bornes, Mauritius is to be removed from the 
Register of Companies under Section 309(1 )(d) of 
the Companies Act 2001.

The Company has ceased to carry on business, 
has discharged in full its liabilities to all its known 
creditors and has distributed its surplus assets in 
accordance with its constitution and the Companies 
Act 2001.

Any objection to the removal under Section 312 
of the Companies Act 2001 shall be made to the 
Registrar of Companies not later than 28 days 
from the date of this notice.

Dated this 14th day of May 2019.

Saroof MOSAFEER
Director 

(Rec. No. 17/406481)

NOTICE UNDER SECTION 311(2) OF 
THE COMPANIES ACT 2001

Notice is hereby given that:

SUNFISH BUILDING CONSTRUCTION CO LTD, 
a domestic company, having its registered office 
at Royal Road, Nenuphar Complex, Flic en Flac, 
Mauritius is to be removed from the Register 
of Companies under Section 309(1 )(d) of the 
Companies Act 2001.

The Company has ceased to carry on business, 
has discharged in full its liabilities to all its known 
creditors and has distributed its surplus assets in 
accordance with its constitution and the Companies 
Act 2001.

Any objection to the removal under Section 312 
of the Companies Act 2001 shall be made to the 
Registrar of Companies not later than 28 days 
from the date of this notice.

Dated this 14th day of May 2019.

Kewal Kumar GOBURDHUN
Director 

(Rec. No. 17/406481)

NOTICE UNDER SECTION 311(2) OF 
THE COMPANIES ACT 2001

Notice is hereby given that RED PALMYRE 
LTD a domestic company, having its registered 
office at Lot 100 Plantation Marguery, Riviere 
Noire is to be removed from the Register of 
Companies under Section 309(1 )(d) of the 
Companies Act 2001.

That the Company has ceased to carry on 
business, has discharged in full its liabilities to all 
known creditors, and has distributed its surplus 
assets in accordance with the Companies Act 2001.

That pursuant to Section 312 of the Companies 
Act 2001, any objection to the removal of the 
company shall be delivered to the Registrar of 
Companies not later than 28 days from the date of 
this notice.

Date this 14 May 2019.
(Rec. No. 17/406486)

NOTICE UNDER SECTION 311(2) OF 
THE COMPANIES ACT 2001

Notice is hereby given that RED STREAM 
VILLAS CO LTD a domestic company, having its 
registered office at Lot 100 Plantation Marguery, 
Riviere Noire is to be removed from the Register 
of Companies under Section 309(1 )(d) of the 
Companies Act 2001.

That the Company has ceased to carry on 
business, has discharged in full its liabilities to all 
known creditors, and has distributed its surplus 
assets in accordance with the Companies Act 2001.

That pursuant to Section 312 of the Companies 
Act 2001, any objection to the removal of the 
company shall be delivered to the Registrar of 
Companies not later than 28 days from the date of 
this notice.

Date this 14 May 2019.

Director
(Rec. No. 17/406486)

NOTICE UNDER SECTION 311(2) OF 
THE COMPANIES ACT 2001

Notice is hereby given that AKSIYON LTD, 
a domestic company having its registered office 
at Remy Ollier Street Richard House, 3rd Floor, 
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Room 302 Port Louis, Mauritius, is to be removed 
from the Registrar of Companies under Section 
309(1 )(d)(i) of the Companies Act 2001.

The Company has ceased to carry on business, 
has discharged in full its liabilities to all its known 
creditors and has distributed its surplus assets in 
accordance with the Companies Act 2001.

Any objection to removal under Section 312 
of the Companies Act 2001 shall be delivered to 
the Registrar of Companies before not less than 
28 days after date of notice.

Date: 13.05.2019

Aksiyon Ltd 
Director 

(Rec. No. 17/406461)

NOTICE UNDER SECTION 311(2) 
COMPANIES ACT 2001

Notice is hereby given that the company 
“E & R SHOES LTD” having its registered office 
at 83, A Pope Hennessy Street, Beau Bassin is to 
be removed from the register of companies under 
section 309(1 )(d) of the Companies Act 2001, on 
the following ground.

The company has ceased to carry on business, 
and has discharged in full its liabilities to all its 
known creditors, and has distributed its surplus 
assets in accordance with its constitution and the 
Companies Act 2001.

Any objection to the removal, under section 312 
of the Companies Act 2001 shall be delivered to 
the Registrar of Companies within 28 days.

Dated this 02 day of May 2019.

Mr How Sok Hing How Show Pin
Director 

(Rec. No. 17/406462)

NOTICE UNDER SECTION 311(2) OF 
THE COMPANIES ACT 2001

Notice is hereby given that HARGILL 
LIMITED, a Category 2 Global Business Licence 
Company, having its registered office at Corporate 
& Chancery Chambers, 7th FloorNew Caudan, Dias 
Pier, Le Caudan Waterfront, Port Louis, Mauritius 
is to be removed from the Register of Companies 

under Section 309(1 )(d) of the Companies Act 
2001.

That the Company has ceased to carry on 
business has discharged all its debts and liabilities 
in full and has distributed its surplus assets 
in accordance with its Constitution and the 
Companies Act 2001.

That any objection to the removal under Section 
313 of the Companies Act 2001 shall be made to 
the Registrar of Companies not later than 28 days 
from the date of this Notice.

Dated this 3rd day of May 2019.

Corporate & Chancery Group Limited 
Registered Agent 

(Rec. No. 17/406452)

NOTICE UNDER SECTION 311(2) OF 
THE COMPANIES ACT 2001

Notice is hereby given that TTG MAURITIUS 
LIMITED, a Category 2 Global Business Licence 
Company, having its registered office at Corporate 
& Chancery Chambers, 7th Floor New Caudan, 
Dias Pier, Le Caudan Waterfront, Port Louis, 
Mauritius is to be removed from the Register 
of Companies under Section 309(l)(d) of the 
Companies Act 2001.

That the Company has ceased to carry on 
business has discharged all its debts and liabilities 
in full and has distributed its surplus assets 
in accordance with its Constitution and the 
Companies Act 2001.

That any objection to the removal under Section 
313 of the Companies Act 2001 shall be made to 
the Registrar of Companies not later than 28 days 
from the date of this Notice.

Dated this 3rd day of May 2019.

Corporate & Chancery Group Limited 
Registered Agent 

(Rec. No. 17/406452)

NOTICE UNDER SECTION 311(2) OF 
THE COMPANIES ACT 2001

Notice is hereby given that Spirit Financial 
Assets Limited, holding a Category 2 Global 
Business Licence - (the “Company”), and having 
its registered office at C/o Dale International Trust 
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Company Limited, 3rd Floor, Tower A, 1 Cybercity, 
Ebene 72201, Mauritius is applying to the 
Registrar of Companies to be removed from the 
Register of Companies, under Section 309(1 )(d) of 
the Companies Act 2001.

Notice is hereby also given that the Company 
has ceased to carry on business, has discharged in 
full its liabilities to all its known creditors, and has 
distributed its surplus assets in accordance with its 
Constitution and the Companies Act 2001.

Any objection to the removal of the Company 
under Section 312 of the Companies Act 2001 is to 
be made in writing to the Registrar of Companies 
not later than 28 days from the date of publication 
of this notice.

Dated this 25th April 2019.

Dale International Trust Company Limited
Registered Agent

(Rec. No. 17/406193)

NOTICE UNDER SECTION 311(2) OF 
THE COMPANIES ACT 2001

Notice is hereby given that Spirit Capital 
Assets Limited, holding a Category 2 Global 
Business Licence - (the “Company”), and having 
its registered office at C/o Dale International 
Trust Company Limited, 3rd Floor, Tower A, 1 
Cybercity, Ebene 72201, Mauritius is applying to 
the Registrar of Companies to be removed from the 
Register of Companies, under Section 309( 1 )(d) of 
the Companies Act 2001.

Notice is hereby also given that the Company 
has ceased to carry on business, has discharged in 
full its liabilities to all its known creditors, and has 
distributed its surplus assets in accordance with its 
Constitution and the Companies Act 2001.

Any objection to the removal of the Company 
under Section 312 of the Companies Act 2001 is to 
be made in writing to the Registrar of Companies 
not later than 28 days from the date of publication 
of this notice.

Dated this 24th April 2019.

Dale International Trust Company Limited
Registered Agent 

(Rec. No. 17/406193)

NOTICE UNDER SECTION 311(2) OF 
THE COMPANIES ACT, 2001

In the matter of:
Imara Africa Asset Management Limited

Notice is hereby given:

That Imara Africa Asset Management Limited, 
a Global Business Company Category 1, having 
its Registered Office at c/o Sanlam Trustees 
International Limited, Labourdonnais Village, 
Mapou, Mauritius is to be removed from the 
Register of Companies under Section 309(1 )(d) of 
the Companies Act 2001.

That the Company has ceased to carry on 
business and is no longer required.

That any objection to the removal under 
Section 313 of the Companies Act 2001 shall be 
delivered to the Registrar of Companies within 
28 days from the date of this notice.

Date: 10 May 2019

Sanlam Trustees International Limited
Company Secretary 

(Rec. No. 17/406479)

APPLICATION FOR THE ISSUE OF A LICENCE 
UNDER PART III OF THE EXCISE ACT

I, Mrs Sarika Sungkur of T.B.S Lane 8®me 
Miles, Triolet have applied to the Director General 
of the Mauritius Revenue Authority for the issue 
of a new licence of retailer of liquor and alcoholic 
products - off in respect of premises situated at 
T.B.S Lane 8ime Miles, Triolet.

Any objection to the issue of the above licence, 
should be made to the Director General, Mauritius 
Revenue Authority, Ehram Court, C/r Monseigneur 
Gonin & Sir Vigil Naz Streets, Port Louis within 
21 days as from date published in the Gazette.

Mrs Sarika Sungkur 
Applicant

(Rec. No. 17/406491)

APPLICATION FOR THE ISSUE OF A LICENCE 
UNDER PART III OF THE EXCISE ACT

I, Vinod Dilburna of Avenue Kooseeal, Palma, 
Quatre Bornes have applied to the Director General 
of the Mauritius Revenue Authority for the issue of 
a new licence of Retailer of Liquor and Alcoholic 
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Products - off in respect of premises situated at 
Kooseeal Avenue, Palma, Quatre Bornes.

Any objection to the issue of the above licence 
should be made to the Director General, Mauritius 
Revenue Authority, Ehram Court, C/r Monseigneur 
Gonin & Sir Vigil Naz Streets, Port Louis within 
21 days as from date published in the Gazette.

Vinod Dilbuma 
(Rec. No. 17/406441) Applicant

APPLICATION FOR THE ISSUE OF A LICENCE 
UNDER PART III OF THE EXCISE ACT

I, Mrs Padmini Soopamah Kistnen 
representing succession of Anjelay May Marie

Therese Narayanen of Clairfonds No. 3, 
Phoenix have applied to the Director General of 
the Mauritius Revenue Authority for the transfer 
of a licence of Retailer of Liquor and Alcoholic 
Products - on & off in respect of premises 
situated at Clairfonds No. 3, Phoenix to Padmini 
Soopamah Kistnen.

Any objection to the issue of the above licence 
should be made to the Director General, Mauritius 
Revenue Authority, Ehram Court, C/r Monseigneur 
Gonin & Sir Vigil Naz Streets, Port Louis within 
21 days as from date published in the Gazette.

Mrs Padmini Soopamah Kistnen
Applicant

(Rec. No. 17/406449)

PROJECTED CESSATION OF BUSINESS

Nature of Licence Number Situation Name of 
Licencee Receipt No. Date of Cessation 

of Business
Retailer in Liquor and Alcoholic 

products - off
4401002004 Bagatelle

Shopping Mall,
Bagatelle

Eastern Trading 
(L’Esprit du Vin 
Ltee et Vincoeur

Limitee)

17/406483 31.12.2019
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NATIONAL AUDIT OFFICE

Report of the Director of Audit

To the Council of

The District Council of Flacq

Report on the Financial Statements

I have audited the accompanying financial statements of the District Council of Flacq which 
comprise the balance sheet as of 31 December 2013, the income and expenditure account and the 
cash flow statement for the year then ended and a summary of significant accounting policies 
and other explanatory notes.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements 
in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in Mauritius and the Local 
Government Act, and for such internal control as management determines is necessary to enable 
the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to 
fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

My responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on my audit. 1 
conducted my audit in accordance with International Standards of Supreme Audit Institutions. 
Those Standards require that I comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit 
to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material 
misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and 
disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s 
judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial 
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers 
internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the financial 
statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not 
for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An 
audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of the accounting policies used and the 
reasonableness of accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall 
presentation of the financial statements.

14th Floor. Air Mauritius Centre. John Kennedy Street, Port Louis - Mauritius
IV. I ■ in 1ACK. r—. ■■■■>—
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I believe that the audit evidence I have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis 
for my audit opinion.

Opinion

In my opinion, the financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial 
position of the District Council of Flacq as of 31 December 2013, and of its financial 
performance and its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles 
generally accepted in Mauritius.

Emphasis of Matter

I draw attention to Note 1 to Accounts wherein it is reported that the provisions of Section 166 
(3) of the Local Government Act 2011 have been complied w ith, except for the pension fund. 
The pension fund of the ex-Moka Flacq District Council that has been transferred to SICOM has 
not yet been split to determine the pension contributions for the staff posted at the District 
Council of Flacq and for those at the District Council of Moka. As per Note 13. the pension fund 
of the ex- Moka Flacq District Council was Rs 70,819,946 as at 31 December 2012.

My opinion is not qualified in respect of this matter.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

Management’s Responsibility

In addition to the responsibility for the preparation and presentation of the financial statements 
described above, management is also responsible for ensuring that the activities, financial 
transactions and information reflected in the financial statements are in compliance with the laws 
and authorities which govern them.

Auditor’s Responsibility

In addition to the responsibility to express an opinion on the financial statements described 
above, my responsibility includes expressing an opinion on whether the activities, financial 
transactions and information reflected in the financial statements are. in all material respects, in 
compliance with the laws and authorities which govern them. This responsibility includes 
performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about whether the agency's expenditure and 
income have been applied to the purposes intended by the legislature. Such procedures include 
the assessment of the risks of material non-compliance.

1 believe that the audit evidence I have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis 
for my opinion.



18 May 2019 2447

Opinion on Compliance

Local Government Act

The financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2013 were received at my Office on 30 
April 2014. Following examination of the financial statements, a few amendments had to be 
made. The amended financial statements were submitted on 9 April 2019.

In my opinion, in all material respects, the activities, financial transactions and information 
reflected in the financial statements are in compliance with the Local Government Act.

Public Procurement Act

The District Council of Flacq is responsible for the planning and conduct of its procurement. It is 
also responsible for defining and choosing the appropriate method of procurement and contract 
type in accordance with the provisions of the Act and relevant Regulations. My responsibility is 
to report on whether the provisions of Part V of the Act regarding the Bidding Process have been 
complied with.

In my opinion, the provisions of Part V of the Act have been complied with as far as it appears 
from my examination of the relevant records.

K. C. Tse Yuet Cheong (Mrs)
Director of Audit

J

National Audit Office
Level 14, Air Mauritius Centre
Port Louis

29 April 2019
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THE DISTRICT COUNCIL OF FLACQ
BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31.12.2013 {Amended April 2019)

Notes Rs Rs
ASSETS
NON CURRENT ASSETS
Capital Outlay 3 197,564,426
Other Long term Capital 4 159,019,768
NDU Finance Project 5 63,078,798 419,662,992

J CURRENT ASSETS
Stock 361,716
Debtors 6 100,639,879

•* Cash and Bank 7 14,457,353
115,458,948

* LESS CURRENT LIABILITIES
Creditors and Provisions 8 15,852,742
Deposits 9 8,538,500

24,391,242

j NET CURRENT ASSETS 91,067,706
1 510,730,697
i

FINANCED BY
I General Fund 10 501,886,199

Non- Current Liabilities
Passage Fund 11 8,844,498
Pension Fund 13 - 8,844,498

510,730,697
i 4

CHAIRMAN

Date: 04 April 2019

V THAKOOR

CHIEF EXECUTIVE

1
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THE DISTRICT COUNCIL OF FLACQ

INCOME AND EXPENDITURE ACCOUNT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 
31.12.2013

Notes Rs Rs

INCOME

Grant-in-Aid (14) 166,143,283

Rentals 12,557,497

Trade Fees 30,190,766

Permits 3,081,986

Other Income (16) 3,308,144

Transfer from Split Grants 2,045,149

Transfer from DC Reserve Fund 6,592,004

Other Grants (15) 2,242,653 226,161,482

LESS EXPENDITURE

Staff Costs (17) 124,677,469

Supplies and Services (18) 66,815,670

Miscellaneous Expenses 150,000

Contribution to Renewal Fund 7,122013

Social Assistance Benefits 972,533

Grants to Village Councils 5,313,600

Contribution to Passage Fund 2,094,492

Pensions and Gratuities 7,887,751 215,033,528

Excess of Income over Expenditure 11,127,954
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THE DISTRICT COUNCIL OF FLACQ
CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31.12.2013

Rs Rs
OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Cash received from Grant in Aid
Cash received from Trade Fees

Cash received from other sources (notes below)

Cash payments to suppliers
Cash payments to and on behalf of employees
Net cash inflow from Operating Activities 
Return on Investments and Servicing of Finance

INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Payment to increase Capital Outlay
Net Cash Outflow from Investing Activities

FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Government Grants
Net Cash Inflow(Outflow) from Financing 
Activities
IncreaseZ(Decrease) in Cash

167,185,936
21,803,766

32,050,274 221,039,976

(191,608,292)
73,660,016

117,948,276

(52,636,308)

29,431,684

(52,636,308)

37,661,977

14,457,353

14,457,353

Notes:

Cash received from other sources Rs

Cash received from operating activities 16,723,814

Cash received from Deposits 8,726,459

Cash received from Ex Moka Flacq District Council 6,600,000

32,050,274
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THE DISTRICT COUNCIL OF FLACQ

NOTES TO ACCOUNTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2013
>

1 General Information

As per the Local Government Act 2011, the District Council of Flacq has been set up. The 

provisions of Section 166 (3) of the Local Government Act 2011 have been compiled with, 

except for the pension fund. SICOM which is managing the Pension Fund has not yet split the 

fund between the District Council of Moka and the District Council of Flacq as at 31 December 

2013.

The Financial Statements for the year 1st January 2013 to 31st December 2013 deemed to be 

the first financial year of the District Council of Flacq. Comparative figures are therefore not 

available.

2 Accounting Policies

(i) The accounts have been prepared on a Historical Cost basis and in accordance with Generally 

Accepted Accounting Practices (GAAP) and the Local Government Act 2011 as subsequently 

amended.

(ii) Stock is valued at weighted average cost.

(iii) No depreciation is charged in the accounts.

(iv) Income has been accounted for on an accrual basis except for, one off and non-renewable 

revenues.
(v) Contribution of funds for replacement of fixed assets is made in the Income and Expenditure

Account.
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THE DISTRICT COUNCIL OF FLACQ

NOTES TO ACCOUNTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2013

3. Capital Outlay

Land and

Building

Motor

Vehicles

Plant

Machinery

&

Equipment

Office

Furniture 

and Office 

Equipment

Total

Rs Rs Rs Rs Rs

Cost as at 01.01.2013 

after splitting of assets 

from MFDC

110,141,560 47,720,166 1,748,707 2,168,665 161,779,098

Additions 24,046,631 7,621,650 2,127,977 1,989,070 35,785,328

Carrying amount at

31.12.13

134,188,191 55,341,816 3,876,684 4,157,735 197,564,426

4. Other Long Term Capital Outlay

Roads/Drains & 
Bridges

Street Lighting Other Balances Total

Rs Rs Rs Rs

Cost as at 01.01.2013 

after splitting of 

assets from MFDC

66,646,882 21,815,483 50,711,637 139,174,002

Additions 11,863,900 2,592,129 5,389,737 19,845,766

Carrying amount at

31.12.13

78,510,782 24,407,612 56,101,374 159,019,768
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THE DISTRICT COUNCIL OF FLACQ

NOTES TO ACCOUNTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2013

5. NDU Financed Projects

Land and 
Building

Street 
Lighting

Roads/Drains & 
Bridges

Other 
Balances

Total

Rs Rs Rs Rs Rs

Cost as at 

01.01.2013 after 

splitting of assets 

from MFDC

10,855,002 3,630,703 38,182,394 10,410,699 63,078,798

Additions - - - - -

Carrying amount 

at 31.12.13

10,855,002 3,630,703 38,182,394 10,410,699 63,078,798

Splitting of District Council of Moka and Flacq

Identified assets such as Property, Plant and Equipment, Motor Vehicles, Office Furniture and Computer 
that have been transferred to the District Council of Moka and the remaining Assets of the District Council 
of Flacq have been scrutinized.

And thereby the initial value of Assets has been allocated to respective District Council where it has been 
able to identify the assets being split between both councils.

For non-identified Assets to the respective councils, the allocation has been based on the Councils’ 
population as follows:

DC of Moka DC of Flacq

Population 82,000 123,000

% 40 60

Based on the above, it has been agreed by both Councils that a proportionate of 60% for DC of Flacq and 
40% for DC of Moka for all non-identified assets to be allocated accordingly to respective councils.
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THE DISTRICT COUNCIL OF FLACQ

NOTES TO ACCOUNTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2013

The value of assets (Office Furniture, Equipment and Computers) has been estimated to their current state 
and condition which provide a value in terms of its economical useful life.

6. Debtors

(Rs)

Market Stallholders 3,659,507

Trade Fees 8,387,000

NDU Grants Receivable 17,217,085

NEF Grants Receivable 5,462,389

MFDC Debtors account split 44,740,106

Split Rs 1 IM - MFDC 9,231,310

Passage Fund Debtors MFDC account split 7,988,461

MFDC Creditors account split 2,536,672

Car Loan Advances 1,417,346

TOTAL DEBTORS 100,639,879

As per the Ebiz system, Trade fees debtors amounted to Rs 18,867,850. An amount of Rs 8,387,000 in 
respect of Active debtors of Rs 1,690,125 and Inactive debtors of Rs 6,696,875 have been accounted as 
debtors as at 31 December 2013 in the FS.

The remaining balance of Rs 10,480,850 represents over debited trade fees which have been generated in 
the Ebiz system despite the fact that Traders have been ceased business and/or companies are defunct. 
Surveys have been carried out and an amount of Rs 5,021,575 have been written off in line with section 
145 of Local Government Act 2011 and Section 5.2.4 and 7.5.8 of the Local Authorities Financial 
Management following the approval of the Minister for write off.

As at to date, surveys are still on going for the remaining over debited trade fees of Rs 5,459,275 and the 
inactive debtors of Rs 6,696,875



18 May 2019 2455

THE DISTRICT COUNCIL OF FLACQ

NOTES TO ACCOUNTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2013

7. Cash and Bank (Rs)

Cash at Bank 14,356,392

Cash in Hand 100,961

Total 14,457,353

8. Creditors

(Rs)

Creditors 10,116,891

Retention Money 1,359,788

Salaries Deduction account 40,019

LIF creditors 1,250,529

Split Grants Creditors account 2,289,815

Prepayments 795,700

Total 15,852,742

9. Deposits (Rs)

Relocation of cremation Ground (Alteo) 7,000,000

Street Lighting Morcellement 1,512,500

Deposit Hall/Hire of Bus 26,000

Total 8,538,500
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THE DISTRICT COUNCIL OF FLACQ

NOTES TO ACCOUNTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2013

10. General Fund

The General Fund consists of the following as per table below:

Opening Balance Debit Credit Closing Balance

Rs Rs Rs Rs

DC Fund Applied 364,031,897 - 55,631,094 419,662,991

DC Fund unapplied 101,756,443 (56,927,646) 19,699,946 64,528,743

Capital expenditure - - 6,566,511 6,566,511

Revenue Reserve
Fund(Surplus for the Year)

- - 11,127,954 11,127,954

Total 465,788,340 (56,927,646) 93,025,505 501,886,199

11. Passage Fund

Passage Fund Split from MFDC

(Rs)

7,988,461

Passage Fund 2013 856,037

Total 8,844,498

12. Related Party Transaction

(i) There has been no related party transaction

(ii) The Central Government through the Ministry of Local Government and the Ministry of Public 
Infrastructure (National Development Unit) finances the District Council in terms of Grants. The amount 
of Grant in Aid and other Grants received from Ministry of Local Government as at 31 December 2013 was 
Rs 168,385,936 and Capital Grants Rs 37,661,977 out of which Rs 24,414,525 was financed by the NDU.
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THE DISTRICT COUNCIL OF FLACQ

NOTES TO ACCOUNTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2013

13. Pension Fund

In accordance with the Local Government Act 2011 the Pension Fund which comprises of contribution of 

the District Council (Employer) and (Employee) to meet pension liability as from July 2008, has been 

transferred to the State Insurance Company of Mauritius (SICOM) which is now managing the Fund. An 

amount of Rs 70,819,946 has been transferred to SICOM by the Ex Moka Flacq District Council 

representing contribution as at 31 December 2012.

As from January 2013, the District Council of Flacq operates two types of scheme, namely Defined Benefit 

Pension Scheme and Public Pension Defined Contribution Scheme and an amount of Rs 9,749,776 has been 

contributed towards both Schemes for the year 2013. As per statement submitted by State Insurance 

Company of Mauritius, the contribution made to both schemes amounts to Rs 8,890,692 which excludes 

the amount of Rs 842,070 made by the Moka DC for Flacq Employees and Employer Contribution and 

the amount of Rs 859,084 contributed by the District Council of Flacq for the month of Dec 2013. As per 

SICOM statement, the market value of the Fund as at 31 December 2013 was Rs 6,469,836.

Contribution to Pension Scheme for Financial Year 2013

Pension Schemes

Employees Employer

MUR MUR

3,254,256 6,495,520

Please note that contribution pertaining to the Public Pension Contribution Scheme for the month of January 
2013 to Dec 2013 is included in Sicom Defined Benefit Scheme for both Employee and Employer.

14. Grant in Aid

Recurrent Grant from Ministry

Advance payment

Additional Grant

Rs

145,968,321

7,500,000

11,474,962
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Expenditure incurred by MOLG on behalf of

the council 1,200,000

Total 166,143,283

15. Other Grant Rs

Rodent Control 800,000

Maintenance of Traffic Light 1,309,850

Public Fountains 132,803

Total 2,242,653

16. Other Income Rs

Scavenging fees 2,198,300

Advertisement 597,160

Building Permit Fees 51,250

Salle des Fetes 141,000

Toll Tax 54,000

Stale Cheques 12,638

Miscellaneous 253,796

Total 3,308,144

17. Staff Costs Rs

Basic Salary 77,593,743

Uniform 1,634,932

End of Year 5,726,461
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Travelling &Transport 8,388,897

Overtime 7,728,300

Other staff costs 2,996,359

Social Contribution 7,738,715

Allowance and Travelling to Chairman DC,

VC & Councilors 12,870,062

Total 124,677,469

18. Supplies and Services Rs

Office Furniture 407,275

Office Expenses 571,566

Maintenance 25,187,924

Publication & Stationery 925,493

Mission Expenses 147,340

Fees 1,607,274

Other goods and Services 8,822,141

Insurance 1,604,893

Goods and Services 27,541,764

Total 66,815,670

(Rec. No. 17/406492)
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||| SBM Notice of Accounts

SBM HOLDINGS LTD
Interim Unaudited Condensed Financial Statements for the quarter ended 31 March 2019

The Board of Directors of SBM Holdings Ltd wishes to inform its shareholders that the Interim 
Unaudited Condensed Financial Statements for the quarter ended 31 March 2019 has been approved 
by the board on 13 May 2019.

The Interim Unaudited Condensed Financial Statements has been published and can be viewed on 
our website: www.sbmgroup.mu

By order of the Board

D. Ramjug Chumun
Company Secretary

13 May 2019

This notice is issued pursuant to Listing Rule 12.20 and the Securities Act 2005.

The Board of Directors of SBM Holdings Ltd accepts full responsibility for the accuracy of the 
information contained in this notice.

(Rec. No. 17/406494)

Ip SBM Notice of Dividend

SBM HOLDINGS LTD
At the meeting held on 13 May 2019, the Board of Directors approved payment of an interim dividend 
of 10 cents per share for the first quarter of the financial year ending 31 December 2019 to 
shareholders registered at the close of business on 31 May 2019. The dividend will be paid on 20 June 2019 
subject to regulatory approval.

The shares of the company will be traded cum-dividend up to the market day of 28 May 2019 and 
ex-dividend as from 29 May 2019.

By order of the Board

13 May 2019

This notice is issued pursuant to Listing Rule 11.3.

The Board of Directors of SBM Holdings Ltd accepts full responsibility for the accuracy of the information 
contained in this notice.

(Rec. No. 17/406494)

http://www.sbmgroup.mu
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CORRIGENDUM

BCP Bank (Mauritius) Ltd (formerly known as Banque Des Mascareignes Ltee)
Consolidated and separate statements of profit or loss and other comprehensive income
For the year ended 31 December 2018 

2018
Group
2017 2016 2018

Bank
2017 2016

Rs 000 Rs 000 Rs 000 Rs 000 Rs 000 Rs 000

Interest income 644,637 679,943 757,510 614,876 653,026 735,288
Interest expense (224,616) (239,900) (275,500) (214,199) (231,791) (269,347)
Net interest income 420,021 440,043 482,010 400,677 421,235 465,941

Fee and commission income 175,617 138,054 139,295 134,634 102,944 116,753
Fee and commission expense (20,903) (30,298) (40,600) (19,140) (28,327) (38,978)
Net fee and commission income 154,714 107,756 98,695 115,494 74,617 77,775

Net trading income 79,728 77,814 70,597 65,636 66,910 63,148
Net income from other financial 
instruments at fair value through profit 
or loss

- - (27,941) 58,447 (49,924) (27,941)

Net Galn/Loss from sales of Securities 38,198 - - 38,198 - -
Other income 806 4,533 56,976 10,700 14,493 45,166

273,446 190,103 198,327 288,475 106,096 158,148

Revenue 693,467 630,146 680,337 689,152 527,331 624,089

Personnel expenses (268,210) (266,607) (277,180) (260,196) (259,363) (270,636)
Operating lease expenses (51,223) (49,830) (48,243) (45,753) (44,557) (43,500)
Depreciation and amortization (67,705) (65,380) (55,744) (64,217) (63,732) (51,124)
Other expenses (210,998) (203,246) (199,357) (186,589) (181,719) (160,285)

(598,136) (585,063) (580,524) (556,755) (549,371) (525,545)
Operating profit 95,331 45,083 99,813 132,397 (22,040) 98,544
Net impairment loss on financial assets (30,076) 86,325 (48,565) (18,268) 92,224 (40,551)
Profit before tax 65,255 131,408 51,248 114,129 70,184 57,993
Income tax (expense) / credit (159,128) 26,348 (1,040) (158,769) 27,442 (70)
Profit for the year (93,873) 157,756 50,208 (44,640) 97,626 57,923

Other comprehensive income
Items that may be reclassified to profit 
or loss
Foreign currency translation differences 
for foreign operations (26,086) 5,280 (17,599) (600) 204

Net change in fair value of financial 
assets through Other Comprehensive (23,976) (6,391) 12,391 (23,976) (6,391) 12,391
Income
Items that will not be reclassified to 
profit or loss
Remeasurement of retirement benefit 
obligations 6,720 (8,095) - 6,720 (8,095)

Other differences in consolidation 21,685 64,840 - - *

Other comprehensive income (21,657) 55,634 (5,208) (17,256) (15,086) 12,595
Total comprehensive income for the 
vear (115,530) 213,390 45,000 (61,896) 82,540 70,518

Profit attributable to:
Equity holders
Non-controlling interests

(93,134) 
(739)

167,336
(9,580)

54,764
(4,556)

Profit for the year (93,873) 157,756 50,208

Total comprehensive income attributable to:
Equity holders (114,791) 222,970 49,556

Non-controlling interest (739) (9,580) (4,556)

Total comprehensive income (115,530) 213,390 45,000
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BCP Bank (Mauritius) Ltd (formerly known as Banque Des Mascareignes Ltee)
Consolidated statement of changes in equity
For the year ended 31 December 2018 

 Attributable to equity holders of the Bank

Group
General

Reserves
Foreign currency

Statutory banking Fair value translation Retained Non-controlling Total
Share capital reserve reserve reserve reserve earnings Total interest equity

Rs OOO Rs 000 Rs 000 Rs 000 Rs 000 Rs 000 Rs 000 Rs 000 Rs 000
Balance at 01 January 2016 1,749,016 83,372 28,709 10,914 54,582 (223,399) 1,703,194 14,664 1,717,858

Total comprehensive Income 
Profit / (loss) for the year 50,208 50,208 (4,556) 45.652
Other comprehensive income for the 
year
Total comprehensive income / (loss) for

- - - 12,391 (17,599) 27,941 22,733 22,733

the year - - - 12,391 (17.599) 78,149 72,941 (4,556) 68,385
Transactions with owners of the 
Bank
Issue of shares 194,999 - - - - - 194,999 10,202 205,201

Total contributions
Balance at 31 December 2016 1,944,015 83,372 28,709 23,305 36,983 (145,250) 1,971,134 20,310 1,991,444

Balance at 01 January 2017 1,944,015 83,372 28,709 23,305 36,983 (145,250) 1,971,134 20,310 1,991,444

Total comprehensive income
Profit / (loss) for the year - - - - - 157,756 157,756 1,107 158,863
Transfer from general resrve - - (28,709) - - 28,709 - - -
Transfer to statutory reserve - 18,950 - - - (18,950) - - -
Other comprehensive income for the 
year - - - (6,391) 5,280 55,638 54,527 - 54,527
Total comprehensive income / (loss) for 
the year as previously stated - 18,950 (28,709) (6,391) 5,280 223,153 212,283 1,107 213,390

Effect of restatement - - - - - 20,965 20,965 - 20,965
Total comprehensive income / loss for 
the year as restated
Transactions with owners of the

- 18,950 (28,709) (6,391) 5,280 244,118 233,248 1,107 234,355

Bank
Issue of shares - - - - - - - - -
Balance at 31 December 2017 as 
previously stated 1,944,015 102,322 - 16,914 42,263 77,903 2,183,517 21,417 2,204,834

Effects of restatement - - - - - 20,965 20,965 - 20,965
Balance at 31 December 2017 as 
stated 1,944,015 102,322 16,914 42,263 98,868 2,204,382 21,417 2,225,799
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BCP Bank (Mauritius) Ltd (formerly known as Banque Des Mascareignes Ltee)
Consolidated statement of changes in equity
For the year ended 31 December 2018_______ _____________________ ______________________ ____________

Attributable to equity holders of the Bank

Group

Statutory 
reserve 
Rs OOO

.Reserves
Foreign 

currency 
translation 

reserve
Rs 000

-------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

Share 
capital 
Rs 000

General 
banking 
reserve
Rs 000

Fair value 
reserve 
Rs OOO

Retained 
earnings

Rs 000
Total

Rs 000

Non­
controlling 

interest
Rs 000

Total 
equity 
Rs 000

Balance at 01 January 2018 1,944,015 102,322 - 16,914 42,263 98,868 2,204,382 21,417 2,225,799
Total comprehensive income
First Time Application IFRS 9 & IFRS 15 - - - - - - -
Profit / (loss) for the year - - - - - (93,873) (93,873) (1,954) (95,827)
Other differences in consolidation - - - - 21,685 21,865 21,685
Other comprehensive income for the year - - - (23,976) (26,086) 6,720 (43,342) (43,342)
Total comprehensive income / (loss) for 
the year -■ * (23,976) (26,086) (65,468) (115,530) (1,954) (117,484)
Transactions with owners of the Bank - - - - - -
Issue of shares 274,050 - - - - - 274,050 - 274,050
Balance at 31 December 2018 2,218,065 102,322 (7,062) 16,177 33,400 2,362,902 19,463 2,382,365

BCP Bank (Mauritius) Ltd (formerly known as Banque Des Mascareignes Ltee)
Statement of changes in equity 
For the year ended 31 December 2018

Bank

Share capital

Rs 000

Reserves

Retained 
eamings

Rs 000

Total

Rs 000

Statutory 
reserve

Rs 000

General 
banking 
reserve 
RS 000

Fair value 
reserve

Rs 000

Foreign currency 
translation 

reserve
Rs 000

Balance at 01 January 2016 
Total comprehensive income

1,749,016 83,372 28,709 10,914 28,491 (121,299) 1,779,203

Profit for the year - - - - - 57,925 57,925
Other comprehensive loss for the year - - - 12,391 204 - 12,595
Total comprehensive income/(loss) for the year - - 12,391 204 57,925 70,520

Transactions with owners of the Bank
Issue of shares 194,999 - - - - - 194,999
Total contributions and distributions
Balance at 31 December 2016 1,944,015 83,372 28,709 23,305 28,695 (63,374) 2,044,722

Balance at 01 January 2017 
Total comprehensive income

1,944,015 83,372 28,709 23,305 28,695 (63,374) 2,044,722

Profit for the year - •• - - - 97,626 97,626
Transfer from general resrve - - (28,709) - 28,709 -
Transfer to statutory reserve - 18,950 - - - (18,950) -
Other comprehensive loss for the year - (6,391) (600) (8,095) (15,086)
Total comprehensive income for the year (as 
previously stated) - 18,950 (28,709) (6,391) (600) 99,290 82,540

Effect of restatement 20,965 20,965
Total comprehensive income for the year (as restated) - - - - 120,255 103,505
Transactions with owners of the Bank
Issue of shares - - * - - - -
Total contributions and distributions - - - - -

At 31 December 2017 (as previously stated) 1,944,015 102,322 - 16,914 28,095 35,916 2,127,262

Effects of restatement - - - - - 20,965 20,965

Balance at 31 December 2017 (as restated) 1,944,015 102,322 - 16,914 28,095 56,881 2,148,227
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BCP Bank (Mauritius) Ltd (formerly known as Banque Des Mascareignes Ltee)

Consolidated and separate statements of cash flows
For the year ended 31 December 2018

2018
Rs OOO

Group
2017

RS 000
2016

Rs 000
2018

Rs 000

Bank
2017
Rs 000

2016
Rs 000

Cash flows from operating activities
Profit / (loss) before tax
Adjustments for:

65,254 131,408 51,248 114,129 70,184 57,993

- Depreciation and amortisation
- Net impairment loss on financial

67,705 65,380 55,744 64,217 63,732 51,124

assets 30,076 (86,326) 48,565 18,268 (92,224) 40,551
- Net income from financial

instruments at fair value through 
profit and loss - (58,477)

- Profit on sale of equipment - - - -
163,035 110,462 155,557 138,137 41,692 149,668

Changes in:
- Loans and advances to banks 196,962 405,730 70,040 196,962 405,730 70,041
- Loans and advances to customers (1,452,009) (27,366) 3,998,090 (1,407,022) 20,856 3,864,593
- Other assets (373,831) 19,360 39,424 (377,077) 39,647 18,108
- Deposits from banks 9,257 (1,193) (1,512,051) 1,690 (1,209) (1,512,051)
- Deposits from customers 938,880 (4,012,175) (1,068,608) 1,018,231 (4,167,471) (954,107)
- Other liabilities and provisions 145,268 (12,863) (24,477) 354,323 97,527 64,536

(372,438) (3,518,045) 1,657,975 (74,756) (3,563,228) 1,700,788
Income taxes paid (1,402) (509) (999) (579) (226) -
Net cash (used in)/ from operating activities (373,840) (3,518,554) 1,656,976 (75,335) (3,563,454) 1,700,788

Cash flows from investing activities
- Acquisition of investment securities
- Proceeds from sale of investment

(2,163,571) (2,672,774) (2,324,322) (1,500,000) (2,236,900) (1,766,900)

securities
- Acquisition of property and

2,577,912 2,094,163 2,001,734 1,978,800 1,638,400 1,477,000

equipment
- Proceeds from sale of property and

- (18,020) (52,634) (17,851) (15,565) (44,541)

equipment (8,935) - 1,571 - 1,572
- Acquisition of intangible assets (6,335) (9,186) (86,016) (9,094) (7,863) (84,567)

Net cash used in investing activities 399,071 (605,817) (459,667) 451,855 (621,928) (417,436)

Cash flows from financing activities
- Repayment of subordinated liabilities (202,470) (57,555) (247,663) (202,470) (57,555) (247,663)
- Repayment of borrowed funds 485,258 (965,188) 2,290,465 485,326 (965,256) 2,290,465
- Proceeds from issue of shares 274,050 - 194,999 274,050 - 194,999
- Dividends paid - - - - - -
Net cash (used in)/from financing 
activities 556,838 (1,022,743) 2,237,801 556,906 (1,022,811) 2,237,801

Net Increase in cash and cash 
equivalents 582,069 (5,147,114) 3,435,110 933,426 (5,208,193) 3,521,153

Cash and cash equivalents at 01 January 
Effect of exchange rate fluctuations on

1,772,246
75,482

6,856,475

62,885

3,466,895

(45,530)

1,598,593 6,790,496 3,345,550

(76,207)cash and cash equivalents held 167 16,290

Cash and cash equivalents at 31 
December 2,429,797 1,772,246 6,856,475 2,532,186 1,598,593 6,790,496

(Rec. No. 17/406502)



2468 The Mauritius Government Gazette

CORRIGENDUM
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE MEMBER OF BCP BANK (MAURITIUS) LTD 
(FORMERLY KNOWN AS BANQUE DES MASCAREIGNES LTEE)

Report on the Audit of the Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements

Opinion

In our opinion, the accompanying consolidated and separate financial statements give a true and fair 
view of the financial position of BCP Bank (Mauritius) Ltd (formerly known as Banque des Mascareignes 
Ltee (the “Bank”) and its subsidiary (together referred to as the "Group”) at 31 December 2018, and of 
theirfinancial performance and their cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with International 
Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRSs") and in compliance with the requirements of the Mauritius 
Companies Act 2001, the Financial Reporting Act 2004 and the Banking Act 2004.

What we have audited

The Group’s and the Bank's accompanying consolidated and separate financial statements comprise:

• the statement of financial position as at 31 December 2018;
• the statement of profit and loss or other comprehensive income for the year then ended;
• the statement of changes in equity for the year then ended;
• the statement of cash flows for the year then ended; and
• the notes, comprising significant accounting policies and other explanatory notes.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with international Standards on Auditing (ISAs). Our 
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the “Auditor’s Responsibilities for the 
Audit of Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements” section of our report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for 
our opinion.

independence

We are independent ofthe Bank and its subsidiary in accordance with the International Ethics Standards 
Board for Accountants’ Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants ("IESBA Code"), and we have 
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the IESBA Code.

Other information

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the 
information included in the annual report but does not include the consolidated and separate financial 
statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated and separate financial statements does not cover the other information 
and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon. Our reporting responsibilities 
regarding the corporate governance report is dealt with in the “Report on Other Legal and Regulatory 
Requirements" section of this report.
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MAZA R S

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORTTOTHE MEMBER OF BCP BANK (MAURITIUS) LTD (FOMERLY 
KNOWN AS BANQUE DES MASCAREIGNES LT£E) (CONTINUED)

Report on the Audit of the Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements (Continued)

Other information (Continued)

In connection with our audit of the consolidated and separate financial statements, our responsibility is 
to read the other information identified above and, in doing so, consider whether the other information 
is materially inconsistent with the consolidated and separate financial statements or our knowledge 
obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have 
performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required 
to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Directors for the Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements

The directors are responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated and separate 
financial statements in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards and in compliance 
with the requirements of the Mauritius Companies Act, the Financial Reporting Act and the Banking Act 
and regulations and guidelines of the Bank of Mauritius, and for such internal control as the directors 
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated and separate financial statements that 
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated and seperate financial statements, directors are responsible for assessing 
the Group's and the Bank’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters 
related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors either 
intend to liquidate the Group and/orthe Bank or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but 
to do so.

The directors are responsible for overseeing the Group's and Bank’s financial reporting process.

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated and separate 
financial statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and 
to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance 
but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs will always detect a material 
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material 
if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic 
decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated and separate financial statements,

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain 
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

• Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated and separate financial 
statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to 
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our 
opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for 
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, 
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE MEMBER OF BCP BANK (MAURITIUS) LTD 
(FORMERLY KNOWN AS BANQUE DES MASCAREIGNES LTI-E) (CONTINUED)

Report on the Audit of the Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements (Continued)

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements 
(Continued)

• Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit 
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an 
opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s and Bank's internal control.

• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting 
estimates and related disclosures made by the directors.

• Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going concern basis of accounting 
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events 
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s and Bank's ability to continue as a 
going concern. Ifwe conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention 
in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the consolidated and separate financial 
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are 
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future 
events or conditions may cause the Group and/or the Bank to cease to continue as a going 
concern.

• Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated and separate 
financial statements, including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent 
the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

• Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or 
business activities within the Group and the Bank to express an opinion on the consolidated and 
separate financial statements. We are responsible forthe direction, supervision and performance 
of the audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned 
scope and timing of audit and significant audit findings, including any deficiencies in internal control 
that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have compiled with relevant 
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and 
other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, 
related safeguards. From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine 
those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated and separate financial 
statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE MEMBER OF BCP BANK (MAURITIUS) LTD 
(FORMERLY KNOWN AS BANQUE DES MASCAREIGNES LT&) (CONTINUED)

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

Mauritius Companies Act 2001

The Mauritius Companies Act 2001 requires that in carrying out our audit we consider and report to you 
on the following matters. We confirm that:

• We have no relationship with, or interests in, the Bank and its subsidiary other than in our capacity 
as auditor;

• We have obtained all the information and explanations we have required; and

• In our opinion, proper accounting records have been kept by the Bank as far as appears from our 
examination of those records.

Financial Reporting Act 2004

The directors are responsible for preparing the corporate governance report. Our responsibility is to 
report on the extent of compliance with the Code of Corporate Governance (the “Code”) as disclosed in 
the annual report and on whether the disclosure is consistent with the requirements of the Code.

In our opinion, the disclosure in the annual report is consistent with the requirements of the Code.

Banking Act 2004

The Banking Act 2004 requires that in carrying out our audit we consider and report to you on the 
following matters. We confirm that:

• in our opinion, the consolidated and separate financial statements have been prepared on a basis 
consistent with that of the preceding year and are complete, fair and properly drawn up and comply 
with the Banking Act and the regulations and guidelines issued by the Bank of Mauritius in relation 
to banks; and

• the explanations or information called for or given to us by the officers or agents of the Bank were 
satisfactory.

Other matters

This report is made solely to the Bank's shareholder, in accordance with section 205 of the Mauritius 
Companies Act 2001. Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the Bank's 
shareholder those matters we are required to state in an auditor's report and for no other purpose. To the 
fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the Bank 
and the Bank’s shareholder, for our audit work, for this report, or for the opinion we have formed.
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